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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors of Tai Sang Bank Limited (the 'Bank') submit their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank are commercial banking and related financial services and property investment and management. The
principal activities of the Bank’s subsidiaries are shown in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively the 'Group') for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 9.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$Nil (2022: HK$2,000).

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Bank has not issued any new shares. Details of the share capital are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Bank has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.
DIRECTORS

(a) Directors of the Bank
The directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are :

Mr Patrick Ma Ching Hang, BBS, JP Mr Ma Ching Tsun Mr Ma Ching Yuk, SBS, JP
(Chairman)
Mr Alfred Ma Ching Kuen Mr Philip Ma Ching Yeung, BBS Ms Katy Ma Ching Man (Alternate
director to Mr. Alfred Ma Ching Kuen)
Ms Amy Ma Ching Sau (Alternate Mr Ma Ching Cheng Mr Thomas Yiu Kei Chung*
director to Mr. Philip Ma Ching Yeung) (Retired on 20 January 2023)
Mr Aaron Tan Leng Cheng* Mr Stephen Chung Kong Fei* Mr James Yu Man Woon*

(Appointed on 20 January 2023)
*Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 98 of the Bank's Articles of Association, all ordinary directors retire in each succeeding two years. Accordingly,
all ordinary directors remain in office.

(b) Directors of the Bank's subsidiaries

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Ma Ching Yuk, Mr. Alfred Ma Ching Kuen, Mr. Patrick Ma Ching Hang, Mr. Philip
Ma Ching Yeung and Mr. Ma Ching Tsun are also directors in subsidiaries of the Bank. There are no other directors of the subsidiaries of
the Bank.

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP'S BUSINESS

Except for the loans disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank’s subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE BANK OR ANY
SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE BANK

At no time during the year was the Bank, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors and chief executives of the Bank (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or its specified undertakings or other associated corporation.



DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were
entered into or existed during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

(a) Review of Business

For the financial year 2023, the Group recorded a pre-tax operating profit before property revaluation loss and loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment of HK$4.65Mn, as compared to HK$5.63Mn loss in 2022. The Group’s net interest income was enhanced
by the rising interest rates. The Group’s operating income and expenses had both increased in 2023 as a result of the full year income
contributed by and operating expenses incurred for the flagship safe deposit box centre opened in Quarry Bay, Hong Kong in mid-2022.
The Group’s safe deposit box rental income for the current year increased by 55% from the previous year.

During 2023, total customers’ deposits decreased from the end of previous year by 9%. The mix of customers’ deposits for 2023 has
shifted towards fixed deposits as a result of the increased interest rates. As at the end of 2023, fixed deposits accounted for 30% of the
total level of customers’ deposits, increased from the 6% of total customers’ deposits for 2022. For both 2022 and 2023, savings
accounts took up the largest proportion of the total customers’ deposits balances.

Another major source of income for the Group came from property rental income. Net property rental income increased by 2% when
compared to 2022. Occupancy rate and net property rental income were relatively stable during 2023. However, following the overall
property market downturn, the Group’s investment properties recorded a slight 0.7% decrease in value as at the end of 2023, resulting in
the booking of property revaluation loss of HK$2.3Mn for the year 2023.

Dividend income from equity share investments also improved this year with an increase of 9% from this type of income. Higher
dividend payments for the invested equity shares held were noted for 2023.

Operating expenses increased by 4.6% in 2023. The full year operating costs for the new safe deposit box flagship centre accounted for
the majority of such increase. The HK$0.86Mn Employment Support scheme subsidies received from the Hong Kong Government in
2022 were not offered again by the Government in 2023.

The loans and advances of the Group decreased by 22% during the year, mainly resulted from the full repayment by a loan customer
during the second half of 2023. Funds received from the repayment of loans had been invested in exchange fund bills, which could
provide a reasonable level of interest yield while also serve to enhance the liquidity of the Bank. The amount of surplus funds placed
with the HKMA was also maintained at a minimum.

During the year, all relevant laws and regulations were compiled with. The Group’s conservative management on the latest balance sheet
mix and new expansion of business had resulted in a total capital ratio exceeding 85% and liquidity maintenance ratio exceeding 110%
as at the year-end of 2023, both of which were substantially above the statutory minimum.

The Group observes a strict customer acceptance policy. While the aim is not to provide a full range of banking services to satisfy all
customer needs, the Group is committed to deliver products and services with quality and flexibility such that solid customer
relationships are established and maintained.

As at the end of 2023, the total number of employees employed by the Group was 35. The Group operates in two locations, being the
head office in Central and the new safe deposit box centre in Quarry Bay. The Group adopts close communication between management
and the staff and places strong emphasis on operational efficiency, risk management, compliance, and sensible work-life balance for
employees. The Group will continue to adopt environmental protective measures in order to promote an environmental friendly working
environment for all employees.

(b) Principal Risks

The Group is exposed to various types of risks including credit risk, operational risk, liquidity risk, market risk, legal risk, strategic risk
and climate risk, the details of which are carried in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Different Board committee, viz.
Executive Committee, Credit Committee, Asset & Liability Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Risk Committee, are in place to oversee the various types of risks confronted by the Bank and give directions to
management to control and mitigate these risks accordingly.



DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(c) Important Events and Future Development

The Group will remain conservative and continue to maintain its total capital and liquidity maintenance ratios at levels with appropriate
buffers above the statutory minimums to guard against any unexpected market shocks. While the Group will continue to open new safe
deposit box centres in 2024 according to the expansion plan approved by the Board, the Group will closely monitor the latest market
situation and made appropriate adjustments to the approved plan as it is deemed necessary and appropriate by management.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this Directors' Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in
force for the benefit of any of the directors of the Bank (whether made by the Bank or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the
Bank).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANKING (DISCLOSURE) RULES

The Bank has complied with the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

PATRICK MA CHING HANG
Chairman

HONG KONG, 25 MARCH 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
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Note

ASSETS
CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS 10
PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS MATURING
BETWEEN ONE AND TWELVE MONTHS
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER ACCOUNTS 11
INVESTMENT SECURITIES MEASURED AT
FVOCI

12
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16
TAX RECOVERABLE
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS 17
LEASE LIABILITIES 16
OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 18
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 19
TAX PAYABLE
TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY
SHARE CAPITAL 20
RESERVES 21
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

APPROVED AND AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE BY THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON 25 MARCH 2024.

ALFRED MA CHING KUEN )

) DIRECTORS
PHILIP MA CHING YEUNG )

31 December

31 December

2023 2022

HKS$ HKS$
112,229,011 109,415,881
45,300,048 73,242,731
227,579,897 291,515,452
199,003,354 119,058,201
120,292,351 123,308,104
305,600,000 307,900,000
22,812,490 25,664,051

85,206 -

1,032,902,357

1,050,104,420

241,134,446 266,068,832
25,477,421 27,529,008
41,349,873 34,728,957

9,389,354 9,015,673

- 15,876

317,351,094 337,358,346
310,000,000 310,000,000
405,551,263 402,746,074
715,551,263 712,746,074
1,032,902,357 1,050,104,420

THE NOTES ON PAGES 12 TO 78 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

MR 0 A
M E

R R WA
Hofin & & ur A

B WA
g8

& m A s R
B Z B EH
HEYIZE > BB R 2
i

Pr 2 A0 4 A/ (&5 8)
AT 5 B (G2 ) / # [
PR A BB/ (B5H8)

HoAt 2o -

AR G R R
mZHH

DL PEERE HHEEET
AHAM &R W < T E
ok

BN HEEZ

AR E W E R R
ZIAH
DIAPEE 2 AR
AHA &R G W < ABIE
ez

NN HEEZ ()
et

AT BB 2
EW s/ (E548)

FNETSH B AL S
B Rz —HRy -

BfeE 2023 2022

Note HKS HKS
INTEREST INCOME 5 19,701,469 11,127,282
INTEREST EXPENSE 5 (3,709,284) (1,445,561)
NET INTEREST INCOME 15,992,185 9,681,721
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6 24,563,822 19,002,429
NET OPERATING INCOME 40,556,007 28,684,150
OPERATING EXPENSES 7 (35,902,506) (34,310,178)
OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS) 4,653,501 (5,626,028)
REVALUATION DEFICIT ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES 15 (2,300,000) (600,000)
LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (142,519) (24,759)
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 2,210,982 (6,250,787)
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) / CREDIT 9 (392,248) 1,234,630
PROFIT / (LOSS)FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EOQUITY HOLDERS 1,818,734 (5,016,157)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME :
ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT
OR LOSS:
EQUITY INVESTMENT SECURITIES MEASURED AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME:
INCREASE IN FAIR VALUE DURING THE YEAR 21 1,108,070 1,186,142

1,108,070 1,186,142
ITEMS THAT WILL BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR
LOSS:
DEBT INVESTMENT SECURITIES MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME:
(DECREASE) / INCREASE IN FAIR VALUE DURING 21 (121,615) 184,897
THE YEAR
(121,615) 184,897

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 2,805,189 (3,645,118)

THE NOTES ON PAGES 12 TO 78 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

{iF=3 i NI A RERELT kS|
Share Other Retained
Note capital reserves earnings Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
Balance at 1 January 2023 310,000,000 3,644,599 399,101,475 712,746,074
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - 1,818,734 1,818,734
Other comprehensive income
Change in fair value of investment
securities measured at FVOCI
21 - 986,455 - 986,455
Total comprehensive income - 986,455 1,818,734 2,805,189
Transfer and appropriation
Transfer from other properties revaluation
reserve to retained earnings 21 - (64,091) 64,091 -
Total transfer and appropriation - (64,091) 64,091 -
Balance at 31 December 2023 310,000,000 4,566,963 400,984,300 715,551,263
Balance at 1 January 2022 310,000,000 2,337,651 404,053,541 716,391,192
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - (5,016,157) (5,016,157)
Other comprehensive loss
Change in fair value of investment
securities measured at FVOCI
21 - 1,371,039 - 1,371,039
Total comprehensive (loss)/income - 1,371,039 (5,016,157) (3,645,118)
Transfer and appropriation
Transfer from other properties revaluation
reserve to retained earnings 21 - (64,091) 64,091 -
Total transfer and appropriation - (64,091) 64,091 -
Balance at 31 December 2022 310,000,000 3,644,599 399,101,475 712,746,074

THE NOTES ON PAGES 12 TO 78 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Mk 2023 2022
Note HKS$ HKS

QSR FHAE A GRH) NET CASH INFLOW / (OUTFLOW) FROM
SR OPERATING ACTIVITIES 22(a) 13,461,448 (229,433,324)
BEEE) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
U E LN S (B 5 H s DIVIDENDS RECEIVED ON EQUITY
FhEt A Bz S as > REds INVESTMENTS MEASURED AT FVOCI
BEZ R 6 1,075,900 989,249
I - BB R PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (1,365,276) (19,176,146)
HEA LA EER 2 HHSE PURCHASE OF EQUITY INVESTMENTS
Fat AEMAT S U 2 M MEASURED AT FVOCI
®vE - (1,490,000)
BT HEe R 35 NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES (289,376) (19,676,897)
R EE) FINANCIING ACTIVITIES
FHE @l ALy PRINCIPAL ELEMENTS OF LEASE LIABILITIES 22(c) (2,051,587) (986,605)
B EE > B B NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES (2,051,587) (986,605)
TH 4 By S B 408 5 > 1/ INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 11,120,485 (250,096,826)
R EQUIVALENTS
WA THZ R K EEH CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
45 TE H 484 1 JANUARY 137,322,647 387,419,473
ISVIERMEPS K ¥ &G CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
TH 4 TE H 484 31 DECEMBER 22(b) 148,443,132 137,322,647
E1EISE I EASS THE NOTES ON PAGES 12 TO 78 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED
B TS > — 35 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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General Information

The principal activities of Tai Sang Bank Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are the provision of banking and related financial
services, and property investment and management.

The Bank is an authorized institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office is 130-132 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in units of Hong Kong
dollars (HKS$), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2024.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Tai Sang Bank Limited have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap 622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and investment properties at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

2.1.1 Adoption of new HKFRS and amendments

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the
first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2023:

- Definition of Accounting Estimates - amendments to HKAS 8

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies - amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

2.1.2 New and amended standards not yet adopted by the Group

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published
that are not mandatory for 31 December 2023 reporting period and have
not been early adopted by the Group. These standards and interpretations
are not expected to have a material impact on the Group in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

12
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Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank's statement of financial position (Note 26), the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses
(Note 2.12). The results of subsidiaries are accounted by the Bank on
the basis of dividend received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
when the right to receive payment is established.

There are no restrictions, or other major impediments on the transfer of
funds or regulatory capital between the Group companies.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for all instruments measured at
amortised cost and debt securities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets have been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan commitment fees for
loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with
related direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate on the loan. Commission and fees arising from
negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of, a transaction for a
third party - such as the arrangement of the acquisition of shares or
other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses - are recognised
on completion of the underlying transaction.

Other operating income (including rental income from investment
properties and safe deposit box rental) is recognized when services
are provided.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets
measurement categories:
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL);

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): or

in the following

- Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are
described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a
financial liability from the issuer's perspective, such as loans,
government and corporate bonds and trade receivables purchased
from clients in factoring arrangement without recourse.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depend on:

(a) the Group's business model for managing the asset; and

(b) the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments into
one of the following three measurement categories:

- Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest (‘SPPI’), and that are not designated at
FVPL, are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount of
these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance
recognised and measured as described in note 3.1.4. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest
income’ using the effective interest rate method.

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the assets, where the assets' cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are
not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised cost
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in ‘Net Investment Income’. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in ‘Interest Income’ using
effective interest rate method.

14
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- Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented in
the profit or loss statement within 'Net trading income' in the
period in which it arises, unless it arises from debt
instruments that were designated at fair value or which are
not held for trading, in which case they are presented
separately in 'Net Investment Income'. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in ‘Interest Income’ using
the effective interest rate method.

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group's objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash
flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of
these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading
purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’
business model and measured at FVPL. Factors considered by the
Group in determining the business model for a group of assets
include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets
were collected, how the asset's performance is evaluated and
reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and
managed and how managers are compensated. An example is the
liquidity portfolio of assets, which is held by the Group as part of
liquidity management and is generally classified within the hold to
collect and sell business model. Securities held for trading are
held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or are
part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking. These securities are classified in the
‘other’ business model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
‘SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement, i.e. interest includes only consideration for
the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and
a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement.
Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement,
the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting
period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.
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Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a
contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic
ordinary share.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the Group's management has elected,
at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Group's policy is to
designate equity investments as FVOCI when those investments are held
for purposes other than to generate investment returns. When this
election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends, when
representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in the ‘Net
Trading Income’ line in the statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses
('ECL") associated with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI and with the exposure arising from loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts. The Group recognises a loss
allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of
ECL reflects:

- An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;.

- The time value of money; and

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past event, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual
cash flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the Group assesses
whether or not the new terms are substantially different of the original
terms. The Group does this by considering, among others, the following
factors:

- If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification
merely reduces the contractual cash flows to amounts the borrower is
expected to be able to pay.

- Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as profit
share/equity-based return that substantially affects the risk profile of
the loan.

- Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in
financial difficult.

- Significant change in the interest rate.

- Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

- Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that
significantly affect the credit risk associated with the loan.

16
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Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Modification of loans (Continued)

(iv)

17

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the
original financial asset and recognises a 'new' asset at fair value and
recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of
renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial
recognition of impairment calculation purposes, including for the
purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred. However, the Group also assesses whether the new
financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial
recognition, especially in circumstances whether the renegotiation
was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally
agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also
recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss on derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or
modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash
flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or
loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

The impact of modifications of financial assets on the expected
credit loss calculation is discussed in note 3.1.10.

Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets have
expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i) the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group
has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities and transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards. These transactions are
accounted for as 'pass through' transfers that result in derecognition
if the Group:

(a) has no obligation to make payments unless it collects
equivalent amounts from the assets;

(b) is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

(c) has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the assets
without material delay.
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2.6 Financial liabilities

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are classified
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for:

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities held for
trading (e.g. short positions in the trading book) and other
financial liabilities designated as such at initial recognition.
Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss are presented partially in other
comprehensive income (the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is not
attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to
market risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of
change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such a
presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in
which case the gains and losses attributable to changes in the
credit risk of the liability are also presented in profit or loss;

- Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets
which did not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing
involvement approach applies. When the transfer of financial
asset did not qualify for derecognition, a financial liability is
recognised for the consideration received for the transfer. In
subsequent periods, the Group recognises any expense incurred
on the financial liability; when continuing involvement approach
applies; and

- Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.

(i) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished (i.e.
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders of debt
instruments with substantially different terms, as well as substantial
modifications of the terms of existing financial liabilities, are
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. The terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10%
different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. In addition, other qualitative
factors, such as the currency that the instrument is denominated in,
changes in the type of interest rate, new conversion features attached
to the instrument and change in covenants are also taken into
consideration. If an exchange of debt instruments or modification of
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the
exchange or modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability
and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of:

- The amount of the loss allowance; and

- The premium received on initial recognition less income
recognised in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the amount
of loss allowance (calculated as described in note 3.1.4). The Group
has not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market
interest rate, or that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or
issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank's functional currency
and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.9
(b)

2.10

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign
currency and classified as FVOCI are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the securities
and other changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in the investment revaluation
reserve in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Bank premises represent those properties held for own use and are treated
as finance lease since the costs of land and building elements of the
leasehold properties cannot be allocated reliably at the inception of the
lease. Bank premises are stated at valuation made in prior years less
accumulated depreciation charge and impairment losses.

On adoption of HKAS 16 entities that measured property, plant and
equipment based on revaluation performed prior to 30 September 1995
were exempted from the requirement to make regular revaluations
prospectively, provided that these entities did not measure their property,
plant and equipment using the revaluation model subsequent to 1995.

Effective from 30 September 1995, no further revaluations of bank premises
have been carried out. The Group has adopted the transitional provision in
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16, which provides exemption from the need to
make regular revaluation of bank premises.

The revalued amount made prior to 30 September 1995 became a deemed
cost as the revaluation date for subsequent measurement under HKAS 16.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Bank premises Bank premises are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Portion of the bank premises value
attributable to the land element is depreciated over
the lease term, while portion attributable to the
building element is depreciated on a straight line
basis over the remaining portion of the useful life.

Leasehold
improvements

Remaining portion of the useful life of the bank
premises.

Furniture, fixtures
& equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation for furniture,
equipment and fixtures at owned premises is
calculated at 10% per annum on a reducing balance
basis after an initial provision of 20% on cost in the
year of purchase. Depreciation for fixtures at leased
premises is calculated on straight line basis over the
remaining protion of the lease.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.10 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2.11

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the consolidated
Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value
assessed by professional valuers on the basis of open market value. If
information of open market value is not available, alternative valuation
methods are used such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with valuation standards on properties published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The item is stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to generate
economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of premises
under HKAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment". However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the
gain is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income up to the
amount previously debited.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.12

2.13
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment and are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the country where the company's subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, revaluation of bank premises and tax
losses carried forward. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward are
recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which these losses can be utilised.
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2.14 Employee benefits
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Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

Group companies offer defined contribution mandatory provident
funds to all eligible employees of the Group. The funds are
provided through payments to trustee-administered funds.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Long service payments

The Group’s eligible employees who have completed a required
number of years of service to the Group are eligible for long
service payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
in the event of the termination of their employment, provided that
such termination meets the circumstances specified in the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance.

In June 2022, the Hong Kong Government enacted the
Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”) which will be effective from 1 May 2025 (the
“Transition Date”). Under the Amendment Ordinance, any
accrued benefits attributable to the employer’s mandatory
contributions under mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Benefits”) of an entity would no longer be eligible to offset
against its obligations on long service payment (“LSP”) for the
portion of the LSP accrued on or after the Transition Date. There
is also a change in the calculation basis of last monthly wages for
the portion of the LSP accrued before the Transition Date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications
of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong” (the “Guidance”) which provides clarified and detailed
guidance on the accounting considerations relating to the
abolition of the offsetting mechanism. The Guidance clarified that
following the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance, LSP is no
longer a ‘simple type of contributory plans’ to which the practical
expedient had been intended to apply.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future long
service payments expected to be made. The provision is based on
the best estimate of the probable future payments which have
been earned by the employees from their service to the Group to
the end of the reporting period.
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2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if that party controls, jointly controls or has
significant influence over the Group; is a member of the same financial
reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries; is
an associate or a joint venture of the Group; is a key management
personnel of the Group or parents, or where the Group and the party are
subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than not
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks and
central bank, placements with banks and exchange fund papers with
original maturities of three months or less, that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized in the
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the employment subsidy are included in
staff costs under operating expense, in which note 8 provides further
information on how the Group accounts for government grants.
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2.19 Leases

25

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group. For leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and to
treat these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

- Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable

- Variable lease payment that are based on a index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

- Amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees

- The exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonable certain to exercise that option

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option, and

- Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Depending on the nature of the underlying asset and the terms and
conditions of the lease, a lessee may be able to refer to a rate that is
readily observable as a starting point when determining its
incremental borrowing rate for a lease (for example, the rate that a
lessee has paid, or would pay, to borrow money to purchase the type
of asset being leased, or the property yield when determining the
discount rate to apply to property leases).

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent
third-party financing received as a starting point, where possible,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since the receipt
of third party financing. Where recent third-party financing does
not exist, the Group uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for the leases and makes
adjustments for factors specific to the lease. Lease payments are
allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received,

- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs.
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Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.19 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases with low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value leases comprise computer equipment and small items of office
furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial Risk Management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities
involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of
risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial business, and the
operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The
Group's aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and
return and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

The Group's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these
risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information systems.
The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect
changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.

Risk management policies are approved by the Board of Directors. Financial
risks are identified, evaluated and managed in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The Board provides written policies or guidelines
covering areas, such as credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. In
addition, internal audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment.

The major types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational
risks. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate and other price risks.

3.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty causes a financial loss to the
Group by failing to discharge an obligation. Adverse changes in the
economy, or in the health of a particular customer, could result in losses
that are different from those provided for at the end of reporting period.
Management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk.
Credit exposures arise principally in loans and advances. There is also
credit risk in off-balance sheet financial arrangements such as loan
commitments. The credit risk management and control are performed by
all responsible staff under close supervision by senior management.
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3.1

3.1.1

ncial Risk Management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk management

The Group manages concentrations of credit risk wherever they are
identified — in particular, to individual counterparties and groups, and
to industries. The Group controls the levels of credit risk it undertakes
by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one
borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to industry segments. Such
risks are monitored on a continuous basis and subject to periodic or ad
hoc reviews, when considered necessary.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the
ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and
capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits
where appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also mitigated in part by
obtaining collateral and corporate and personal guarantees from the
borrowers.

(a) Collateral

The Group implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral. The principal collateral types for loans and
advances are :

- Mortgages over residential and commercial properties;
- Charges over equities; and

- Pledges over deposits.

Loans and advances to customers are generally secured. In
addition, the Group will seek additional collateral from the
counterparty as soon as impairment indicators are noticed for the
relevant individual loans and advances.

(b) Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and standby
letters of credit - which represent irrevocable assurances that the
Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannot
meet its obligations to third parties carry the same credit risk as
loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit - which are
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer
authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Group up to a
stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions - are
secured by the underlying collaterals provided by the borrowers.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees or
letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to
extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the
likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments,
as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon
customers maintaining specific credit standards.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

31
3.1.2

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancements

The Group
Maximum exposure 2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$

Credit risk exposures relating to on-
balance sheet assets are as follows:
Balances with banks and central bank 12,719,691 13,849,694
Placements with banks 142,300,048 166,516,938
Investment debt securities measured at
FVOCI 177,553,392 98,716,309
Loans and advances to customers :

Loans to individuals :

- Overdrafts 5,789,708 5,671,602

Loans to corporate entities :

- Investment companies 210,337,814 274,861,201

- Small and medium size

enterprises (SMEs) 6,192,308 5,681,028

Credit risk exposures relating to off-
balance sheet items are as follows:

- Loan commitments and other

credit related liabilities 5,099,736 1,960,536

At 31 December 559,992,697 567,257,308

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the
Group at 31 December 2023 and 2022, without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet
assets, the exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts as
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Management is confident in its ability to continue to control and sustain
minimal exposure of credit risk to the Group resulting from its loan and
advances portfolio based on the following :

- 100% of the loans and advances portfolio is categorised in the top grade
of the internal rating system (2022 : 100%);

- Mortgage loans and properties investment loans, which represent the
majority of the loans and advances portfolio, are backed by collateral;

- 100% of the loans and advances portfolio is considered to be neither past
due nor impaired (2022 : 100%); and

- The Group has a stringent selection process in granting loans and
advances.

Credit risk mitigation, collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group uses a variety of techniques to reduce the credit risk arising from
its lending and money market activities. Enforceable legal documentation
establishes the Group's direct, irrevocable and unconditional recourse to any
collateral, security or other credit enhancements provided.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1

Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.2 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other
credit enhancements (Continued)

Credit risk mitigation, collateral and other credit enhancements

(Continued)

The table below describes the nature of collateral held and their

Ve 7 financial effect by class of financial asset:
ERE R BEEF R R IE— AR R AR 5 8 Balances and These exposures are generally considered to be
EIE S HE MR B EEEERE - placements with low credit risk due to the nature of the
SR — Fe I R o banks counterparties.  Collateral is generally not
sought on these balances.
FH R 4R LR G RIE TN E B RE Balances with These exposures are the outstanding balances at
1TE0E HEIIMNEESA G RO 456 central bank the Hong Kong exchange fund settlement
A B dEHER o AT S F 28 account with Hong Kong Monetary Authority,
B R R E R B RS which are unsecured. They are considered to be
B E - of very low credit risk due to the nature of the
counterparty.
PLA(EE HEEE G RE A EEEEREE Investment debt These exposures comprise solely of investments
=2 HHE# RN BT 2 M ER ST > securities in exchange fund bills issued by the Hong Kong
st A EA IRR By 3173 27 M W R B i measured at government and are considered to be very low
4IRS EE R o 4N R4 B D) R FVOCI credit risk due to the nature of the issuer.
B ERE R8T Exchange fund bills are issued on unsecured
# basis.
B RER S R R YEAR I EL P L S 45 Loans and These exposures are secured, partially secured
i 9= ¢ ¢ GiTTEE Y= =k advances or unsecured depending on the type of collateral
H > B EH e AR o F3E and type of facilities offered to customers. The
R SRR Y - Hit major types of collateral taken include
e Ry IR EE o SEEH] FEE AL residential properties, other properties, bank
(RIEEERF - 722023412 31 deposits and shares. Personal guarantees are
A > ZERE e R T5100% also obtained by the Group for credit
(20224E © 100%) enhancement. As at 31 December 2023, the
collateral coverage of loans and advances to
customers is 100% (2022: 100%).
EZS=A054 S EERRE B EEE Contingent The components and nature of contingent
K IE FERAEMTE 25 » RN TN RE liabilities and liabilities and commitments are disclosed in
FE S A A A Y 2 JE b & commitments Note 25. Regarding the commitments that are

> EERERANGEEEREE
I > EUEFTSE TERANZ &K
CINIE > B ARIE RN
FREAREE R - 7220235124
31H - BCH AR RURIEZIEAIEL
ZJ5100% (20224 : 100%) ©

unconditionally cancellable without prior notice,
the Group would withdraw the credit facilities
extended to borrowers in case their credit
quality  deteriorates. ~ Accordingly, these
commitments do not expose the Group to
significant credit risk. As at 31 December 2023,
the collateral coverage of contingent liabilities
and commitments is 100% (2022: 100%).

While the credit risk of balances with central bank is considered to be

WL ESIATRTAL > FFRf L ERTTHROR 2 (5 B bR 7
R MR > PRMTEES . 1 3B MfEE3 . 1. 8 A T
FRGK > PLAHEER 8 HEEHE ARSI
W ZAAE AR SR » BOH A RORIE RAFBU
[FISERIH 2 (E B b - TG RAEH B Rk
fhi

very low, as stated in the above analysis, the credit risk, expected
credit loss measurement and loss allowances of loans and advances,
investment debt securities measured at FVOCI, contingent liabilities
and commitments, balances and placements with banks and
investment debt securities measured at FVOCI are analysed in detail
from note 3.1.3 to note 3.1.8.
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Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.3 Loans and advances, placements with banks and investment debt

HHEBEE ARAMG SIS 2 REFHER

EERGK ~ SR TR A HEERE
HHEZEET A AL G s 2 B ARG
et T

£H The Group

B FGER Loans and advances
RTTIEIZEPRAT Placements with banks
PN EESt= Investment debt
HEFET A K MAT securities measured at
Gl &k FVOCl

B

1220235 2 20224R 12 31 H > A EHAE
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HE 2 H A AR 21
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IR B EIRE SR SR T [FI SRR I (5
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securities measured at FVOCI

Loans and advances, placements with banks and investment debt
securities measured at FVOCI are summarised as follows :

2023412 A 31H 20224F12 A 31H
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
FEHRH BRI E FEHRHERE
Neither past due Neither past due
nor impaired nor impaired
HKS$ HKS$

222,319,830 286,213,831
142,300,048 166,516,938
177,553,392 98,716,309

There were no loans and advances, placements with banks and
investment debt securities measured at FVOCI that were past due but
not impaired nor loans and advances that were impaired at 31
December 2023 and 2022. The credit quality of the portfolio of loans
and advances and placements with banks that were neither past due nor
impaired was of satisfactory grading by reference to the internal rating
system adopted by the Group.

During the year, the Group did not obtain any assets by taking
possession of collateral held as security (2022 : Nil). The Group has
no repossessed assets as at 31 December 2023 (2022 : Nil).

Under the Pre-approved Principal Payment Holiday Scheme for
Corporate Customers (the “Scheme”) as advocated by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority as part of the financial assistance scheme for
combatting COVID-19 detrimental impact on the Hong Kong
economy, the Group has during the current financial year allowed the
rescheduling of the repayment of principal of loans to a total book
value of HK$274,861,201 as at 31 December 2022. The Scheme was
only offered to the Group’s eligible corporate borrowers in Hong Kong
that had annual sales turnover of HK$800Mn of less and that had no
outstanding loan payments overdue for more than 30 days. The
Scheme was last offered up to 31 July 2023. The modification of the
cash flows of these rescheduled loans has resulted in immaterial
differences in the gross carrying amount of each participated loan
which has been presented as interest income in the statement of
comprehensive income. All the rescheduled loans under the said
Scheme are of performing credit grading under stage 1 of expected
credit loss measurement. All loans fell back to their normal repayment
schedules after the completion of the Scheme on 31 July 2023.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.4 Expected credit loss measuremnet

HKFRS 9 outlines a 'three-stage' model for impairment based on changes in
credit quality since initial recognition as summarized below:

- A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in 'Stage 1' and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.

- If a significant increase in credit risk ('SICR') since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to 'Stage
2' but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

- If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument
is then moved to 'Stage 3'.

- Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that
result from default events possible within the next 12 months.
Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on
expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

- A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with HKFRS 9
is that it should consider forward-looking information.

- Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those
financial assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition. Their
ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

The 'three-stage' model for impairment based on changes in credit quality
under HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets) is summarized in the following table:

VR EVENELUIEREEEES

12-month expected credit losses

FIFEE SEOREEL IR
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
( B ¥Rt DUARAS FH e b 5% A B
(¥IAEHERE) Wi (B A5 FRAED
(initial recognition) (Significant increase in credit (Credit-impaired assets)

risk since initial recognition)

R E ST RS Rk e A THRME R
Lifetime expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses

FETE I & A B RS R A st ETHAIE A
RN > SEEER A 2 BRI s e T

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in addressing
the requirements of the standard are discussed below:
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1
3.1.4

3.1.5
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Credit risk (Continued)

Expected credit loss measuremnet (Continued)

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in
addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a
significant increase in credit risk when one or more of the
following qualitative or backstop criteria have been met:

Qualitative criteria:

For retail mortgages or loans, if the borrower meets one or more of
the following criteria:

- In short-term forbearance
- Direct debit cancellation
- Extension to the terms granted

- Previous arrears within the last 12 months

For corporate lendings and treasury instruments, if the borrower is
on the significant financial difficulty and the lending meets one or
more of the following criteria:

- Significant adverse changes in business, financial and/or
economic conditions in which the borrower operates

- Actual or expected forbearance or restructuring

- Actual or expected significant adverse change in operating
results of the borrower

- Significant change in collateral value which is expected to
increase the risk of default

- Early signs of cashflow/liquidity problems such as delay in
servicing of loans

Backstop

A backstop is applied and the financial instrument considered to
have experienced a significant increase in credit risk if the
borrower is more than 30 days past due on its contractual

payments.

The assessment of SICR incorporates forward-looking information
and is performed at annual credit assessment of each loan/lending
and at the end of financial year for all financial instruments held by
the Group. The criteria used to identify SICR are monitored and
reviewed periodically for appropriateness by the Group.

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which is
fully aligned with the definition of credit-impaired, when it meets
one or more of the following criteria:

Quantitative criteria
The borrower is more than 90 days past due on its contractual
payments.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1

Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.5 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

Qualitative criteria:

The borrower meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates the
borrower is in significant financial difficulty. These are instances where:

- The borrower is insolvent

- There are cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower
- The borrower is in breach of loan covenants or conditions

- The borrower is probable to initiate bankruptcy proceedings
- The borrower's competitive position has deteriorated

- The borrower is downgraded below investment grade level

The criteria listed above have been applied to all financial instruments
held by the Group and are consistent with the definition of default used
for internal credit risk management purposes. The default definition has
been applied consistently to model the Probability of Default (PD),
Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss given Default (LGD) throughout
the Group’s expected loss calculations.

3.1.6 Measuring ECL - Explanation of assessment process

The Group assesses the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) individually for
each financial asset. The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (12M)
or Lifetime basis depending on whether a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is
considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the
discounted product of the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at
Default (EAD), and Loss Given default (LGD), defined as follows:

- The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its
financial obligation (as per "Definition of default and credit-
impaired" above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD), or over
the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

- EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the
time of default, over the next 12 months (12M EAD) or over the
remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

- Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Group's expectation of the
extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of
counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of
collateral or other credit support.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each
future month and for each individual exposure. These three components
are multiplied together and discounted back to the reporting date and
summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original
effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1

3.1.6

34

Credit risk (Continued)

Measuring ECL - Explanation of assessment process (Continued)

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop
on each exposure from the point of initial recognition throughout the
lifetime of each loan. The maturity profile is based on historical
observed data and is estimated individually based on the Group's
knowledge of each loan.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the
expected payment profile, which varies by each loan.

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors
which impact the recoveries made post default. These vary according
to each loan exposure.

- For secured products, this is primarily based on collateral type
and projected collateral values, historical discounts to
market/book values due to forced sales, time to repossession and
recovery costs observed.

- For unsecured products, LGD's are typically set at each loan,
which are influenced by collection strategies, including
contracted debt sales and price.

ECL measurement

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL forward-looking
macroeconomic information, such as property price index, is
incorporated as part of risk parameters estimation. The Group has
regularly reference to macro-forecast data and expert judgement to
ensure that relevant factors could be taken into consideration in the
ECL calculation.

As the Group's loan portfolio consists of limited number of borrowers
that are of different nature and background, the economic variables
and their associated impact on the PD, EAD and LGD of each
exposure vary. Judgment on individual loans of such factors has been
applied in this process. Each individual loan exposure is analysed
based on the historical records and future outlooks which are
applicable to each exposure on a case by case basis.

As with any economic forecast, the projections and likelihoods of
occurrence are subject to a degree of inherent uncertainty and
therefore the actual outcomes may be significantly different to those
projected. The Group considers these forecasts to represent its best
estimate of the possible outcomes.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 EEEREREG) 3.1 Credit risk (Continued)
3.1.7 FEEAERAEELEZETE@E) 3.1.7 ECL measurement (Continued)
TS R RS — S AR E AL Maximum exposure to credit risk — Financial instruments
SRTH subject to impairment
TEREWATERRE AR L EE 2 &R The following tables contain the analysis of the credit risk
T B2 (EH B T T 08 o Y4 exposure of financial instruments for which are subject to ECL
MEEIEREEINAEEESEEE assessment. The gross carrying amount of financial assets below
T RS B JE g e also represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on
these assets.
(H) ZBFBGKEFEETFIE (a) Loans and advances to customers and accrued interest
2023
TS FEAMEEE ECL staging
FE1FBEE EY2 FIMEE
REAENE REFEHE RETENHE BACSRLEGH
SEi=PS HIEHA% HEREA RENSREE Bt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit:
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL.  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS$ HK$
Bl ES Credit grade
TR Performing 222,678,211 - - - 222,678,211
TR Gross carrying amount 222,678,211 - _ - 222678211
THHIE R ECL allowance - - } i} :
2022
TEHAS FHHEAREE: ECL staging
E1MEE: E Y2 EX] 2
LEAFGE BEFENE BETEEE BACREEH
% HIEHA% His AL BENSREE &5t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit-
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL.  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS$ HK$
fEA%E%R Credit grade
RIARLT Performing 286,551,008 - - - 286,551,008
HETHI44%H Gross carrying amount 286,551,008 - . - 286,551,008
THHIEH#E#EMH  ECL allowance - - } ) }
(Z) EFRE (b) Loan commitments
2023
A AEAMEE ECL staging
S1RBEE FoFEE HFIREE
EAENE  REFEHE RETEHHE BACRLEGH
EEESPS HiEREL HE B RENSREE st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit:
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
EREH Credit grade
FBLRAF Performing 5,099,736 - - - 5,099,736
HRIHIAEZEH Gross carrying amount 5,099,736 - . i 5.099.736
THHIEH#E %M ECL allowance - - - ) j
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(Z) BRURIEE)

ERE®R
RIARAF

R A8#H
THIE R

() FBUESE R E S K BT FE

ERER
R RAF

R AEEH
TS R AEH

EREHR
I RAF

R ASEH
TS R AEH

Credit grade
Performing

Gross carrying amount

ECL allowance

Credit grade
Performing

Gross carrying amount

ECL allowance

Credit grade
Performing

Gross carrying amount

ECL allowance

3.1

Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.7 ECL measurement (Continued)

(b) Loan commitments (Continued)
2022
IS HIRAIEE: ECL staging
SR FOMEEE BIMEE
REATNE REFEPE BEECEPEHE BATCRLEGH
RiE%L  HWERER HEHBR RENSREE dat
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit:
12-month ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$
1,960,536 - - 1,960,536
1,960,536 - - 1,960,536
(c) Balances and placements with banks and accrued interest
2023
RS FIHEAPEE: ECL staging
EIFEE: FOMEEL LRI
R2EATRHE REFEEE BEEFEEHE BACRERESH
Rk HEREX HfEREA RENSREE &8st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit:
12-month ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$
148,180,822 - - 148,180,822
148,180,822 - - 148,180,822
2022
FHEAEKLMEE ECL staging
SIFEE SEOFEEY IR
REAEHE REFENE BECEEHRE BACREREH
A% HERER HEREL BENERMEE &t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit
12-month ECL.  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS$
174,516,703 - - 174,516,703
174,516,703 - - 174,516,703
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s 2 R ERBE S
BERER Credit grade
R BREF Performing
HRTHIAEEE Gross carrying amount
HHEAEKAEH  ECL allowance
fERER Credit grade
T RAF Performing
HRIFI4EER Gross carrying amount
THEAE RS2 ECL allowance
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.7 ECL measurement (Continued)

(d) Investment debt securities measured at FVOCI
2023
THHAE FIHEAIEE: ECL staging
SR FOMEEE 3P
REATNE REFEPE BEECEPEHE BATCRLEGH

MRk  HEREX HfERE% RENSREE st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit:
12-month ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
177,553,392 - - - 177,553,392
177,553,392 - - - 177,553,392
2022
FUREMEKMEE ECL staging
BIREER PBPEEL LRI
REAFEHE BEFENE BRECENEHE BACREEGH
H#%  HfEREE HEREL RENEREE &8st
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Purchased credit:
12-month ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
98,716,309 - - - 98,716,309
98,716,309 - - - 98,716,309
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The Group's policies regarding obtaining collateral have not
significantly changed during the reporting period and there has
been no significant change in the overall quality of the collateral

held by the Group since the prior period.

The Group’s financial assets that are secured have sufficiently
safe “loan to value” (LTV) ratios, which result in no loss
allowance being recognised in accordance with the Group’s

expected credit loss model.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1

Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.7 ECL measurement (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance for the
Group include the following items:

1 Mortgage collateral valuations; and

(ii) Listed share collateral valuations.

Set out below are the changes to the ECL as at 31 December 2023 that
would result from reasonably possible changes in these parameters
from the actual assumptions used in the Group's economic variable
assumptions (for example, the impact on ECL of each of upward or
downward movements in collateral valuations):

YRR S (5 Mortgage collateral valuations

-20%

4% No change +20%

iyt 2 fE{E  Listed share collateral valuations

-10%

A& No change +10%

3.1.8 Loss allowance

38

The loss allowance can be impacted by a variety of factors, including:

- Transfers between ECL stages due to financial instruments
experiencing significant increases or decreases of credit risk
or becoming credit-impaired in the period, and the
consequent step up or step down between 12-month and
Lifetime ECL;

- Additional allowances for new financial instruments
recognised during the period, as well as releases for

financial instruments de-recognised in the period;

- Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs,
EADs and LGDs in the period, arising from regular credit
assessments;

- Financial assets derecognized during the period and write-
offs of allowances related to assets that were written off
during the period.

The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance
between the beginning and the end of the annual period:
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2023 12A 31 H Z L EH

Loss allowance as at 1

Januarv 2023
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2023

Loss allowance as at 1
Januarv 2022
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2022

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2023

Transfer between ECL stages
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2023

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.8 Loss allowance (Continued)

(a) Loans and advances to customers

EIMEEE EOMEEE B3P B AR R4
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 1= R ER
128 A Y EEFAFENE EEFEEYE SRIEE
FRBX HERAERX  HEMABEZRX Purchased

12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- HEst

ECL ECL ECL impaired Total

HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$

EIFEER EPEER LX)\

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 ﬁ%;ﬁ%
128 A BEFEYE ZBEEENE ERIEE
15 AR HERER S HER Purchased

12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- HE=t

ECL ECL ECL impaired Total

HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$

(b) Loan commitments

WIBE  SUEE EEE moss
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 1 FI R A
R2ERFEY EEFAFRNE ZEEFEE SRIEE
(ELEEEVS s R #HEABER Purchased

12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- {E=t

ECL ECL ECL impaired Total

HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
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Transfer between ECL stages
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Loss allowance as at 31
December 2022
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Loss allowance as at 1
January 2023
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2023

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2022
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2022

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.8 Loss allowance (Continued)

(b) Loan commitments (Continued)

E1FEEL 2R PIBE g A s
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 EERER
12MEAEH EEEEYE BEFESRE LSRHEE
EREX HEAEX SRR Purchased

12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- st

ECL ECL ECL impaired Total

HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$

(c) Balances and placements with banks

1R Pl BB s Dma
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 =R E
1MEHEY BEAHEYE BEAHEYNE 2 SHEE
fEHBEX HIEABX H{E A%  Purchased

12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- gt

ECL ECL ECL impaired Total

HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
FE1EE FE2EER FEIMEE A B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 f=F @ EH
1MEAEY ZEAENTE ZEGEDE 2 SRRE
fEREX HIEABX H{E 4%k  Purchased

12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- gt

ECL ECL ECL impaired Total

HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
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3.1.8 HRREEE)

(T) DAHEENEHEBEH AEMGSWE I REE
BmER

20234E1 A 1 H Z Bk EHE Loss allowance as at 1
January 2023
B2 A (TS R ] 2 RS Transfer between ECL stages

LI~ ELIESER L EY)  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

W2 BT

TEAHINS et & Fiase  Financial assets derecognised
during the period

20234E12A31 H 28K %#EM#%E  Loss allowance as at 31
December 2023

202251 A1 H Z3BR 2 Loss allowance as at 1

January 2022

RSP EL R 2 RS Transfer between ECL stages

IBAINER ~ IBLIBSZ 24 Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

W1 B

EARRAN s> 4xRhsEE  Financial assets derecognised
during the period

20224F12H31H 2 #H5%%#%  Loss allowance as at 31

December 2022

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.8 Loss allowance (Continued)

(d) Investment debt securities measured at FVOCI

F1FEER FEOPEE BIER maipsmas
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 EERER
1MEAEY EEFEHE BEEEEE SRiEE
EREX HEAEX #fEHEK  Purchased

12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- st

ECL ECL ECL impaired Total

HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BB FIBE o
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 =R E
1MEHEY BEAHEYE BEAHEYNE 2 SHEE
fEHBEX HIEABX H{E %  Purchased

12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- gt

ECL ECL ECL impaired Total

HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$
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3.1.10
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Credit risk (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when
it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include: (i)
ceasing enforcement activity and (ii) where the Group’s
recovery method is foreclosing on collateral and the value of
the collateral is such that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. However, there were no such assets
being written off during the year ended 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022.

Modification of financial assets

Apart from the rescheduled loans stated in note 3.1.3, the
Group sometimes modifies the terms of loans provided to
customers due to commercial renegotiations, or for distressed
loans, with a view to maximizing recovery.

Such restructuring activities include extended payment term
arrangements, payment holidays and payment forgiveness.
Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or
criteria which, in the judgement of management, indicate that
payment will most likely continue. These policies are kept
under continuous review. Restructuring is most commonly
applied to term loans.

The risk of default of such assets after modification is assessed
at the reporting date and compared with the risk under the
original terms at initial recognition, when the modification is
not substantial and so does not result in derecognition of the
original asset. The Group monitors the subsequent
performance of modified assets. The Group may determine that
the credit risk has significantly improved after restructuring.

The Group continues to monitor if there is a subsequent
significant increase in credit risk in relation to such assets
through the use of specific models for modified assets.

All rescheduled loans of the Group under the Pre-approved
Principal Payment Holiday Scheme (“PPPHS”) are of
performing credit rating and are of book value amounted to
HK$267,192,969 as at 31 January 2023 (31 December
2022:HK$274,861,201). Such loans resumed their normal
repayment schedules from 1 August 2023 when the PPPHS was
discontinued on 31 July 2023.
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The Group
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
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Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

@

Investment debt securities

measured at FVOCI

Loans and advances to

customers :
Loans to individuals :
- Overdrafts

Loans to corporate entities :

- Investment companies

- SMEs

At 31 December 2022

Placements with banks

Balances with banks and

central bank

Investment debt securities

measured at FVOCI

Loans and advances to

customers :
Loans to individuals :

- Overdrafts

Loans to corporate entities :

- Investment companies

- SMEs

Geographical sectors

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group's main credit
exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by geographical region as
of 31 December 2023 and 2022. For this distribution, the Group has
allocated exposures to regions based on the country of domicile of its

counterparties.

Credit risk exposure by geographical sectors is classified

according to the location of counterparties after taking into account the

transfer of risk.

oKl
TR
Asia Pacific
T excluding BN ke
Hong Kong Hong Kong Europe Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
- 85,300,048 57,000,000 142,300,048
12,719,691 - - 12,719,691
177,553,392 - - 177,553,392
5,789,708 - - 5,789,708
210,337,814 - - 210,337,814
6,192,308 - - 6,192,308
412,592,913 85,300,048 57,000,000 554,892,961
- 166,516,938 - 166,516,938
13,849,695 - - 13,849,695
98,716,309 - - 98,716,309
5,671,602 - - 5,671,602
274,861,201 - - 274,861,201
5,681,028 - - 5,681,028
398,779,835 166,516,938 - 565,296,773
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The Group

As at 31 December
2023

Placements with
banks

Balances with banks

and central bank

Investment debt
securities measured
at FVOCI

Loans and advances

to customers :

Loans to individuals

- Overdrafts
Loans to corporate
entities :

- Investment

companies

- SMEs

As at 31 December
2022

Placements with
banks

Balances with banks

and central bank

Investment debt
securities measured
at FVOCI

Loans and advances

to customers :

Loans to individuals

- Overdrafts
Loans to corporate
entities :

- Investment

companies

- SMEs

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(Continued)

(b) Industry sectors

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group's main credit
exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by the industry sectors

of its counterparties.

ftE R
A5t  Whole-sale KEAH]

EIEZ Financial  and retail Investment 5PN 4EEE
Sovereign institutions trade companies Individuals Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$

- 142,300,048 - - - 142,300,048

7,400,553 5,319,138 - - - 12,719,691

177,553,392 - - - - 177,553,392

- - - - 5,789,708 5,789,708

- - - 210,337,814 - 210,337,814

- - 6,192,308 - - 6,192,308

184,953,945 147,619,186 6,192,308 210,337,814 5,789,708 554,892,961

- 166,516,938 - - - 166,516,938

6,540,395 7,309,300 - - - 13,849,695

98,716,309 - - - - 98,716,309

- - - - 5,671,602 5,671,602

- - - 274,861,201 - 274,861,201

- - 5,681,028 - - 5,681,028

105,256,704 173,826,238
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.2

3.2.1

Market risk

The Group takes on minimal exposure to market risks, which is
the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency
and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and
specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility
of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

The Group performs periodic stress tests to monitor its exposures
to market risks. Stress tests provide an indication of the potential
size of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by the Group are in general risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to risk category.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by senior management
and by Board Committees. The stress testing is tailored to the
business and typically uses scenario analysis.

Sensitivity analysis for 2023 and 2022

As at 31 December 2023, no significant open positions in foreign
currencies were taken, hence the net interest income for foreign
currencies were not sensitive to interest rate changes. Interest
sensitivity applies mainly to Hong Kong Dollar ('HKD')
positions, whereby if the HKD market interest rates had been 100
basis points lower with other variables held constant, the Group's
profit after tax for the year and reserves would have been
HK$1,488,380 and HK$1,488,380 lower (2022: 100 basis points
lower, HK$2,880,577 and HK$2,880,577 lower) . This arose as a
result of lower net interest income earned on HKD financial
instruments.

The Group's equity risk position arises mainly from the holdings
of equity securities all being classified as financial assets
measured at FVOCI, the majority of which being listed in Hong
Kong. Such holdings are held for long term investment purpose.
At 31 December 2023, if Hang Seng Index had been 10% lower
(2022: 10% lower) with all other variables held constant and the
equity instruments moved according to the historical correlation
with the index, the Group's investment revaluation reserve would
be HK$1,201,009 lower (2022: HK$1,276,468 lower). The
Group's equity securities measured at FVOCI would be
HKS$1,201,009 lower (2022: HK$1,276,468 lower).

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, majority of the Group's
financial assets and liabilities are denominated in HKD or United
States dollars ('USD') and as HKD is pegged to the USD,
therefore the Group is not exposed to significant currency risk.

The method and assumption used on the above sensitivity
analysis on interest rate risk and equity price risk is performed on
the same basis for both 2023 and 2022.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.2 THEEE &) 3.2 Market risk (Continued)

3.2.2 HMEER 3.2.2 Foreign exchange
FEERZE N Y NG TS BT R H 75
TR RR B B A B i - DL T 2%
TR ER Y 12 H 31 H AR sz 2 S NS TE R
b - RIS EIEEE EEBAFEIRAE
A% E M -

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash
flows. The table below summarises the Group's exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk at 31 December. Included in the table are
the Group's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by

currency.
BEAERNKINEE S8ERZ 2 Concentrations of currency risk on-and off-balance sheet items
B FE7T HoAt Haag
HK Dollars US Dollars Others Total
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
£H The Group
20235%12H31H At 31 December 2023
B Assets
[ERER RS &= VEIE S Cash and balances with banks 111,705,789 149,423 373,799 112,229,011
e EEEIE SHEEIN Placements with banks maturing
EVENERAES between one and twelve months 30,000,000 15,300,048 - 45,300,048
2 PR B HATRETE Loans and advances to customers
and other accounts 227,472,706 107,164 27 227,579,897
PN EESFE B E Investment securities measured at
SEhEt AR S UL FVOCI
R EEA 198,970,995 32,359 - 199,003,354
Y SEE A Property, plant and equipment 120,292,351 - - 120,292,351
&Y Investment properties 305,600,000 - - 305,600,000
HEHEESE Right-of-use assets 22,812,490 - - 22,812,490
BEUZ O] > Fi K Tax recoverable 85,206 - - 85,206
BEGET Total assets 1,016,939,537 15,588,994 373,826 1,032,902,357
=t Liabilities
2 PR Deposits from customers 226,160,712 14,841,165 132,569 241,134,446
TS Lease liabilities 25,477,421 - - 25,477,421
Hith & E & EH Other liabilities and provisions 41,206,164 143,597 112 41,349,873
B TE & & Deferred tax liabilities 9,389,354 - - 9,389,354
=Ui-e=v-1n Total liabilities 302,233,651 14,984,762 132,681 317,351,094
BEAERNFHE Net on-balance sheet position 714,705,886 604,232 241,145 715,551,263
BEERE Credit commitments 5,099,736 . . 5,099,736
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.2

Market risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Foreign exchange (Continued)

The Group

At 31 December 2022
Assets

Cash and balances with banks

Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months

Loans and advances to customers

and other accounts

Investment securities measured at

FVOCI

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Right-of-use assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits from customers
Lease liabilities

Other liabilities and provisions
Deferred tax liabilities

Tax payable

Total liabilities

Net on-balance sheet position

Credit commitments

iy I HAtr HH%H

HK Dollars US Dollars Others Total

HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
102,658,066 6,360,668 397,147 109,415,881
65,000,000 8,242,731 - 73,242,731
291,379,706 135,718 28 291,515,452
119,015,420 42,781 - 119,058,201
123,308,104 - - 123,308,104
307,900,000 - - 307,900,000
25,664,051 - - 25,664,051
1,034,925,347 14,781,898 397,175 1,050,104,420
251,798,750 14,124,997 145,085 266,068,832
27,529,008 - - 27,529,008
34,563,654 165,188 115 34,728,957
9,015,673 - - 9,015,673
15,876 - - 15,876
322,922,961 14,290,185 145,200 337,358,346
712,002,386 491,713 251,975 712,746,074
1,960,536 - - 1,960,536
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.2

3.23

48

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items -
repricing analysis

Interest rate benchmark reform — phase 2 provide targeted relief from (i)
accounting for changes in the basis for determining contractual cash
flows of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as
modifications, and (ii) discontinuing hedge accounting when an interest
rate benchmark is replaced by an alternative benchmark rate as a result
of the reform of interbank offered rates (“IBOR reform”). The
amendments do not have an impact on this financial report as the Group
does not have contracts that are indexed to benchmark interest rates
which are subject to the IBOR reform

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash
flow risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but
may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate
repricing that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily by senior
management.

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to interest rate risks.
Included in the table are the Group's assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity
dates.
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3.2 WEREE &) 3.2 Market risk (Continued)
3.2.3 FIFREE) 3.2.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)
LE > AEREEAERINEEEEFIER Interest sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items - repricing
BEE-EEEINT(E) analysis (Continued)
£E The Group
3FEI12 155 sl IS5,
HEH AN 1 3(E H & H i 54 Non-
Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over interest HEZE
1 month months months years S years bearing Total
HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$

20238128 At 31 December

31H 2023
3 Assets
[FEAFER 4 R AT Cash and balances
IaEES with banks 97,394,557 - - - - 14,834,454 112,229,011
TEHAYFIE S Placements with
I CENENV banks maturing
& A A EIHA between one and

twelve months - 6,427,588 38,872,460 - - - 45,300,048
BTG S Loans and advances
THHETH to customers and

other accounts 37,573,755 184,746,075 - - - 5,260,067 227,579,897
DIAE{EERT  Investment
EHEZSE securities measured
AHAEEEW at FVOCI
ETRdits it - 29,786,533 147,766,859 - - 21,449,962 199,003,354
H&E Other assets - - - - - 448,790,047 448,790,047
wEL Total assets 134,968,312 220,960,196 186,639,319 - - 490,334,530 1,032,902,357
=iy Liabilities
EEFR Deposits from

customers 169,351,582 8,222,539 8,651,236 - - 54,909,089 241,134,446
FHE & Lease liabilities 174,318 350,206 1,602,151 11,217,563 12,133,183 - 25,477,421
HiEE Other liabilities - - - - - 50,739,227 50,739,227
BEEE Total liabilities 169,525,900 8,572,745 10,253,387 11,217,563 12,133,183 105,648,316 317,351,094
SRR Total interest
FEEET sensitivity gap (34,557,588) 212,387,451 176,385,932  (11,217,563) (12,133,183)
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.2 Market risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)

32 WBEE @&
3.2.3 FEEE &)
H£H The Group
R20224E£12H At 31 December
31H 2022
BE Assets
BEFIN4 K% Cash and balances
REZE with banks
EHIYFEZE  Placements with
FKIERY1Z212(8  banks maturing
HNEH between one and
twelve months
EFBGK I Loans and
ft AR TH advances to
customers and
other accounts
DUAEEEE  Investment
= HHESHET  securities
AHAEFEU measured at
oA S FVOCI
HAthr & Other assets
EEAT Total assets
=i Liabilities
EHEF Deposits from
customers
HEAE Lease liabilities
Hith & & Other liabilities
afFaet Total liabilities
¥iFg 2 Total interest
HEAE sensitivity gap
33 REESEE

3ZE12 15 Lichic ISVt
HEH AN 123 H {@H 4 54 Non-
Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over interest LA
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
93,674,712 - - - - 15,741,169 109,415,881
- 38,242,731 35,000,000 - - - 73,242,731
19,039,464 267,174,367 - - - 5,301,621 291,515,452
- - 98,716,309 - - 20,341,892 119,058,201
- - - - - 456,872,155 456,872,155
112,714,176 305,417,098 133,716,309 - - 498,256,837  1,050,104,420
193,756,698 7,912,847 - - - 64,399,287 266,068,832
168,163 337,841 1,545,583 10,231,269 15,246,152 - 27,529,008
- - - - - 43,760,506 43,760,506
193,924,861 8,250,688 1,545,583 10,231,269 15,246,152 108,159,793 337,358,346
(81,210,685) 297,166,410 132,170,726  (10,231,269) (15,246,152)
3.3 Liquidity Risk
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Liquidity risk arises from the mismatch in the cash flows arising from
on-balance sheet assets and liabilities, plus the settlement characteristics
of off-balance sheet activities.

The Group's liquidity management process, as closely monitored by
senior management in accordance with policies and guidelines approved
by the Board, includes the following tasks :

- day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to
ensure that requirements can be met;

- maintaining adequate amount of highly marketable assets that can
easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen interruption to

cash flow;
THESEE S & - monitoring liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory

requirements; and

- managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.
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The Group

At 31 December
2023

Assets
Cash and

balances with
banks
Placements with
banks maturing
between one and
twelve months

Loans and
advances to
customers and
other accounts

Investment
securities
measured at
FVOCI

Property, plant
and equipment

Investment
properties
Right-of-use
assets

Tax recoverable

Total assets
Liabilities
Deposits from
customers
Lease liabilities

Other liabilities
and provisions
Deferred tax
liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liquidity
gap

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3  Liquidity risk (Continued)

Monitoring and reporting take the form of maturity profile projections for
the next day, week and month respectively, as these are key periods for
liquidity management. Mismatches between medium-term assets and
liabilities together with the level and type of undrawn lending
commitments, overdraft facilities usage and contingent liabilities are also
monitored under the usual conservative strategy of the Group.

3.3.1 Maturity analysis

The table on the following page analyses the Group's assets and liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at end of
the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

BIEY  MEALIA 1238 A 3ZEI12MEA 158 feshiREeD

Repayable on Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over HEFIHAH A
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS$

15,229,011 97,000,000 - - - - - 112,229,011

- - 6,427,588 38,872,460 - - - 45,300,048

15,307,836 1,888,223 2,124,339 4,232,748 83,756,609 119,336,036 934,106 227,579,897

- - 29,786,533 147,766,859 - 21,449,962 199,003,354

- - - - - 120,292,351 120,292,351

- - - - - 305,600,000 305,600,000

- 237,630 475,260 2,138,671 11,406,245 8,554,684 - 22,812,490

- - - 85,206 - - - 85,206

30,536,847 99,125,853 38,813,720 193,095,944 95,162,854 127,890,720 448,276,419 1,032,902,357

169,341,180 54,919,492 8,222,538 8,651,236 - - - 241,134,446

- 174,318 350,206 1,602,151 11,217,563 12,133,183 - 25,477,421

6,749,577 3,303,203 4,684,115 24,485,391 2,111,458 16,129 - 41,349,873

- - - - - - 9,389,354 9,389,354

176,090,757 58,397,013 13,256,859 34,738,778 13,329,021 12,149,312 9,389,354 317,351,094

(145,553,910) 40,728,840 25,556,861 158,357,166 81,833,833 115,741,408 438,887,065 715,551,263
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The Group

At 31
December 2022

Assets

Cash and
balances with
banks

Placements with
banks maturing
between one
and twelve

Loans and
advances to
customers and
other accounts

Investment
securities
measured at
FVOCI

Property, plant
and equipment

Investment
properties

Right-of-use
assets

Total assets
Liabilities
Deposits from
customers

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities
and provisions

Deferred tax
liabilities

Tax payable

Total liabilities

Net liquidity
gap

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

33 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.3.1 Maturity profile (Continued)
B HEH B 1238 3ZE12{EA 155 S

Repayable on Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over HEFHAH 4azEE
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$

16,141,673 93,274,208 - - - - - 109,415,881

- - 38,242,731 35,000,000 - - - 73,242,731

19,080,382 1,069,116 2,570,332 5,171,163 160,772,979 101,918,974 932,506 291,515,452

- - - 98,716,309 - 20,341,892 119,058,201

- - - - - 123,308,104 123,308,104

- - - - - 307,900,000 307,900,000

- 237,630 475,260 2,138,671 11,406,245 11,406,245 - 25,664,051

35,222,055 94,580,954 41,288,323 141,026,143 172,179,224 113,325,219 452,482,502  1,050,104,420

250,640,717 7,515,268 7,912,847 - - - - 266,068,832

- 168,163 337,841 1,545,583 10,231,269 15,246,152 - 27,529,008

5,520,643 2,196,802 3,930,519 21,128,205 1,936,658 16,130 - 34,728,957

- - - - - - 9,015,673 9,015,673

- - - 15,876 - - - 15,876

256,161,360 9,880,233 12,181,207 22,689,664 12,167,927 15,262,282 9,015,673 337,358,346

(220,939,305) 84,700,721 29,107,116 118,336,479 160,011,297 98,062,937 443,466,829 712,746,074
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3

3.3.2

Assets held for managing
liquidity risk (contractual

EEH The Group
120234E12H31H At 31 December 2023
JELTERERE Non-derivative cash flow
aE Liabilities
ZEFER Deposits from customers
HE AR Lease liabilities
£ Other liabilities
=Tt Total liabilities
(E¥EHHE) (contractual maturity)
REEEREE SR
R EEGEYERIA)

maturity)
120224124318 At 31 December 2022
ETEHERE Non-derivative cash flow
=01 Liabilities
ZEER Deposits from customers
HEAE Lease liabilities
Hir& & Other liabilities
AfREE Total liabilities
(EKEAHE) (contractual maturity)
FEEHREIE$E, Assets held for managing
b EE(ELEHIR)

maturity)

AR TR B AR E
PORYE 2 BREARER S FIEE
e RATRIE > UG Z 5K
TR R A N B 5 B2 48 R IR [RISERK IR
o WIEH G EER - — 80 a
LU H B— AN Z % P RGO
BEEI - FTFFA 2 SRR e
A Ry EFRIIER 0 LH B e (AR S
et -

liquidity risk (contractual

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Non-derivative financial liabilities and assets held for managing liquidity risk

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under non-
derivative financial liabilities and assets held for managing liquidity risk by
remaining contractual maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,
whereas the Group manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected
undiscounted cash inflows.

i H LA 1236 A 3Z12{EH A

Up to 1-3 3-12 More than 4EEE

1 month months months 1 year Total

HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS
224,260,672 8,222,538 8,651,236 - 241,134,446
250,000 500,000 2,250,000 26,580,000 29,580,000
10,139,500 4,756,781 23,823,583 2,127,587 40,847,451
234,650,172 13,479,319 34,724,819 28,707,587 311,561,897
112,776,627 36,302,162 187,639,190 - 336,717,979
258,155,986 7,912,846 - - 266,068,832
250,000 500,000 2,250,000 29,580,000 32,580,000
7,729,154 3,977,897 19,477,275 1,952,788 33,137,114
266,135,140 12,390,743 21,727,275 31,532,788 331,785,946
109,816,235 38,778,095 134,590,398 - 283,184,728

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding loan
commitments include cash, balances with banks and central bank, items in the
course of collection and exchange fund bills and placements with banks. In the
normal course of business, a proportion of customer loans contractually repayable
within one year will be extended. The portfolio of marketable securities held
provides further reserves to meet unexpected cash outflows.
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Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Off-balance sheet items

The Group
AN
No later than fEEHHH “arA
1 year Indetinite Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
At 31 December 2023
Loan commitments 5,099,736 - 5,099,736
At 31 December 2022
Loan commitments 1,960,536 - 1,960,536

(@)

34

(@)

Loan commitments

The dates of the contractual amounts of the Group's off-balance sheet financial
instruments, that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities,
are summarised in the above table.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not presented at fair value in
the Group's statement of financial position are estimated as follows:

(i)  Placements with banks

The fair value of overnight placements to banks is their carrying
amount. Fixed interest-bearing placements are maturing within one year
from the end of the reporting period and their carrying value
approximates fair value.

(i)  Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are net of provisions for impairment
and bear interest at a floating rate and their carrying value approximates
fair value.

(iii)  Deposits from customers

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which
includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount repayable on
demand. The fair value of those balances bearing interest at a floating
rate is their carrying value. Fixed interest-bearing deposits from
customers are maturing within one year from the end of the reporting
period and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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(b)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable
inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources; unobservable
inputs reflect the Group's market assumptions. These two types of inputs have
created the following fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as price)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

- Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The
Group considers relevant and observable market prices in its valuations where
possible.

Assets measured at fair value :

The Group
1k F28% 538K sk
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
31 December 2023
Recurring fair value
measurement
Equity investments
measured at FVOCI 21,124,268 - 325,694 21,449,962
31 December 2022
Recurring fair value
measurement
Equity investments
measured at FVOCI 20,205,892 - 136,000 20,341,892

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between all levels of fair
value hierarchy classifications. Predominately of the Group’s fair value financial
assets are at Level 1 equity investments. The fair value of the Level 3 equity
investments as at 31 December 2023 was measured using an adjusted asset based
approach with significant unobserved inputs and hence was classified as Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy. The most significant unobservable input for
measuring the fair value of the investment was the net assets value of the
investee and the fair value of the investment would largely change in proportion
to the change in the net assets value of the investee.

55



3 MBEREE @

BAEH

EENEHEEAR (HRSESGa 5
RRZ S ) 2 HIER ¢

- ESTIRTTSEPRPINSRITSE (EA ) M
A2 BATRTE RSRTT SR BRI EH R
SRIT Z SRRRIRIT

- REEEE DR E T AEEEE Y
RETT > (eI R R AT

- REEZRREN KRS R AR
RZEARERE - ]

- DUS R R DAJR\ b Ry B 2 7 A R
BA > DT Bl i A s B AR 2 A
b B [l HAE

EEZEHET HILERTE (BA)
AN 2 5B EE A TEARIE S RO E
BEARZER - HrfR Z BRI ERIER
EEECMEHER -

FESREEEHES HRTEERT

B B er— (A R ERITSE CEA) B

FIMERRTE] Z i (RELR Z B AT R bR

» RERBIEEEAH LRSS

FEZELE < r20234F 12 31H » EAR

JEEER Ty LAE Rl B R R IR SR T2 (
BA)BREEICHRFELE iR 2 BE DL
THE k&ia ZBiEtE - WA ER

TR CEAO AR -

HRT 2 BEATE e BURECE R i i R 5|
R SR IR KRG 2 BB A
Kb HEATHME 2 BIE - BORKIE
e o SRATERF (R AR E AT e BUR PATE
TRATA L E Z BB ERBAEBURN -

T H A AT R LA > I DIEE
IRITEESTATA AR ZEBIRE KB E
RITIEZ ARG ISFRI

PRAEEATTRERIS - — NS &
AFERE LA I E R E FR - A0
ZEARTE I LER(RPE MRS LERET > 3%
FER NS ZERE R RE B
EHE o MEEETHIIN R -

BEAh - SRATANE Y AR - W&
BRI T Z AR SR
HHEARZHE -

FE—RZBITAEIRAET - EfiET
i R PR S ER B S AR AT RERZ B R A
AR R S A B R -

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.5 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept
than the 'equity' on the face of consolidated statement of financial position,
are :

- to comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital)
Rules of the Banking Ordinance and the authorization criteria of
licensed bank under the Banking Ordinance;

- to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the Group's stability and its
business development; and

- to employ capital in an efficient and risk based approach with an aim
to optimize risk adjusted return to the shareholders.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by
the Group's management, employing techniques based on the Banking
(Capital) Rules. The required information is filed with the HKMA on a
quarterly basis.

The HKMA requires each bank or banking group to maintain a capital
adequacy ratio (“CAR”), defined as the ratio of total regulatory capital (as
defined under the Banking (Capital) Rules) to the risk-weighted assets, at
or above the minimum as set out in section 3A of the Banking (Capital)
Rules. The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2023 are computed
on both solo and consolidated basis of the Bank as specified by the HKMA
under section 3C of the Banking (Capital) Rules for its regulatory
purposes, and are in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.

The Bank's policy on capital adequacy as approved by the Board of
Directors sets out the objectives, policies and process for managing capital
and assessing the adequacy of capital to support its current and future
activities. The Bank reviews its policy on capital adequacy on a regular
basis to ensure all necessary changes are reflected in the policies.

CAR is monitored by the Bank on a daily basis to ensure compliance with
all relevant statutory requirements and regulatory guidelines governing the
banking business.

Other than statutory CAR, an internal trigger CAR is applied for control
purposes. If the actual CAR falls below the trigger ratio, the case would
immediately be reported to the Board and the HKMA, and remedial action
will be taken.

In addition, the Bank will assess the impact on its capital when there are
new products, new investments, or any proposed significant transactions.

Semi-annual stress tests are also performed to assess the potential impact
of extreme business conditions on capital and to develop strategies to
mitigate the adverse effects where necessary.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.5 Capital management (Continued)

The table below summarises the ratios and the composition of regulatory capital of
the Group as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022. The Bank complied with
all of the externally imposed capital requirements by the HKMA throughout the year.

2023 2022
Common equity tier 1 capital ratio 62.45% 56.47%
Tier 1 capital ratio 62.45% 56.47%
Total capital ratio 85.26% 77.51%
Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.5% 2.5%

The above capital ratios represent the consolidated ratios of the Bank computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. In
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the Bank has adopted the “basic
approach” for the calculation of the risk weighted assets for credit risk and the “basic
indicator approach” for the calculation of operational risk. The Bank has been
exempted from the calculation of risk weighted assets for market risk.

The Bank is required to calculate and report its capital ratios on the consolidated
position based on the regulatory scope of consolidated figures in addition to the
Bank's solo position based on its unconsolidated level figures. As at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022, the basis of consolidation for accounting purpose
differs from the basis of consolidation for regulatory purposes, under which only
Success Land Enterprises Limited, Golden Wisdom Development Limited, Team
Gold Investment Limited and Gold Harmony Enterprises Limited are included as
subsidiaries in the consolidated Group for regulatory purposes.

The capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above capital ratios
and reported to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority is analysed as follows :

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$°000

Common equity tier 1 (CET1) capital

CET!1 capital instruments 264,987 264,987
Retained earnings 399.759 398.075
Disclosed reserves 4,567 3,645
669,313 666,707
Less : Cumulative fair value gains arising from
revaluation of land and buildings (272,019) (274,383)
Regulatory reserve for general banking risk (1,800) (1,800)
Total CET1 capital after deductions 395,494 390,524
Additional Tier 1 capital - -
Total Tier 1 capital after deductions 395,494 390,524

Tier 2 capital
Reserve attributable to fair value gains on revaluation

of land and buildings 142,665 143,729
Regulatory reserve for general banking risk 1,800 1,800
144,465 145,529

Less : Tier 2 capital deductions - -

Total Tier 2 capital after deductions 144,465 145,529

Total capital base 539,959 536,053
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Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgments in Applying Accounting
Policies

@

(d)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professional valuer on an open market
basis at a valuation date. The fair values are assessed in accordance with
the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties (2020 Edition) published by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The contractual rental income and
the expected future market rental income after allowing for outgoings and
maintenance requirements are capitalised at observed market yields. The
principal assumptions underlying the estimation of market value are those
related to: the receipt of contractual rentals; expected future market
rentals; rent free periods; maintenance requirements; and observed market
yields. Changes in the assumptions used in the valuation would affect the
fair value of investment properties.

In addition, the values are also assessed by reference to comparable sales
transactions around the valuation date as reported in the relevant market
at similar locations. Appropriate adjustments have been made on the
values of the subject properties for relevant factors, such as location
difference, building age, time of transaction, shop frontage, floor levels
and pedestrian flow, etc.

Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex
models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and the
resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation
techniques used in measuring ECL is further detailed in note 3.1.4, which
also sets out key sensitivities of the ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

- Choosing assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

- Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking

scenarios for each type of product/market and the associated ECL;
and

- Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of
measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the
Group in the above areas is set out in note 3.1.4.
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Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgments in Applying Accounting

Policies (Continued)

(c) Determination of deferred taxation

In determining the deferred tax positions of the Group and of the Bank,
significant judgment is required in determining the tax implications of the
transactions entered into by the Group. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that it could be recoverable. Deferred tax

liabilities are recognised at full.

Management reviewed all the transactions entered into by the Group and
by the Bank, and all deferred tax assets (to the extent recoverable) and
deferred tax liabilities are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements except for the certain tax losses carry forwards that the
realisation of related tax benefit through future taxable profits is not

probable.

Net Interest Income

Interest income
Cash and balances and placements with banks
Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities measured at FVOCI

Others

Interest expense
Deposits from customers
Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

Others

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
8,850,778 1,775,547
8,264,900 8,343,880
2,522,233 991,959
63,558 15,896
19,701,469 11,127,282
2,665,884 406,183
8 63
948,413 1,013,395
94,979 25,920
3,709,284 1,445,561

The interest income and interest expenses are for financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss.

The interest expenses on lease liabilities relate to interest for the lease liabilities
recognized on the long term property lease entered into by the Group as lessee

for its expanded safe deposit box business.
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Other Operating Income

Fees and commission income
- Credit related fees and commissions
- Other fees
Less : Fees and commission expense
- Other fees and commission paid
Net fees and commission income

Net gain from trading of foreign currency

Gross rental income from investment properties

Less : rental outgoings

Air-conditioning and management fees
Dividend income from:

- listed equity investments measured
at FVOCI

- unlisted equity investments measured
at FVOCI

Safe deposit box rental
Exchange differences
Others

Operating Expenses

Staff costs (Note 8)

Depreciation - property, plant and equipment
Depreciation - right-of-use assets

Auditors' remuneration

Premises and equipment expenses

Computer expenses

Administrative expenses

Professional fees

Directors' fee (Note 23)

Other operating expenses

Staff Costs

Wages and salaries
Write back for annual leave and long-service

Pension cost - defined contribution plan (Note (i))

Less: ESS wage subsidy received (Note (ii))

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS

6,000 1,500
182,114 137,769
(66,834) (67,560)
121,280 71,709
8,694 11,640
9,361,232 9,150,320
(3,382,185)  (3,754,536)
5,979,047 5,395,784
2,072,006 2,164,812
1,062,300 964,769
13,600 24,480
15,304,963 9,854,932
(3,638) (19,807)
5,570 534,110
18,454,801 13,523,296
24,563,822 19,002,429
2023 2022

HKS$ HKS
18,007,958 16,397,701
3,016,931 2,611,244
2,851,561 2,851,561
1,180,000 965,000
2,573,743 2,277,479
1,748,222 2,237,175
2,407,954 2,611,020
996,015 698,100
2,469,324 2,469,324
650,798 1,191,574
35,902,506 34,310,178
2023 2022

HKS$ HKS
18,292,731 16,890,258
(835,345) (402,869)
550,572 774,312

- (864,000)
18,007,958 16,397,701

Staff costs include salary and contribution to retirement scheme paid as directors'

emoluments (Note 23).

Note (i): Pension cost

There were forfeited contributions totaled HK$259,439 utilized during the year or
available at the year-end to reduce future contributions (2022: HK$11,338) .

Contributions totaling HK$127,112 (2022: HK$132,341) were payable to the

defined contribution plan at the year end.
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Staff Costs (Continued)
Note (ii) : Employee Support Scheme ("ESS") subsidy received

The Group applied for the ESS and received HK$864,000 during 2022. The subsidy
was provided by the Hong Kong SAR government (the “Government”) to the
employers in Hong Kong with the aim to help employers to retain their staff during the
difficult financial period. The Group has accounted for the subsidy on cash receipt
basis.

To qualify for the subsidy under the ESS, the Group had to satisfy a number of
conditions required by the Government. Otherwise, there would be penalties or the
subsidy received would have to be refunded. The Group has mostly met the conditions
under the ESS and did not consider that material financial contingencies would occur
due to the receipt of the subsidy under the ESS. The ESS subsidy was not offered by
the Government in 2023.

Income Tax Expense / (Credit)

Hong Kong income tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Current income tax expense - Hong Kong profits tax 18,567 91,783
Deferred income tax expense/(credit) (Note 19) 373,681 (1,326,413)
Income tax expense/(credit) 392,248 (1,234,630)

The tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before tax differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows :

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Profit/(Loss) before income tax 2,210,982 (6,250,787)
Tax calculated at tax rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) 364,812 (1,031,380)
Adjustment on difference tax rate applicable to group
company (12,403) (37,956)
Income not subject to tax (593,692) (469,459)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 450,928 130,375
Other 191,561 195,924
Adjustment in respect of prior years (8,958) (22,134)
Income tax expense/(credit) 392,248 (1,234,630)
Cash and Balances with Banks
2023 2022
HKS$ HK$
Cash in hand 2,509,320 2,291,979
Balances with banks and central bank 12,719,691 13,849,695
Placements with banks maturing within one month 97,000,000 93,274,207
112,229,011 109,415,881
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Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Loans and advances to individuals
- Overdrafts 5,789,708 5,671,602
Loans and advances to corporate entities
- Investment companies 210,337,814 274,861,201
- SMEs 6,192,308 5,681,028
Loans and advances to customers 222,319,830 286,213,831
Accrued interest 920,017 1,015,895
Other accounts 4,340,050 4,285,726
Loans and advances to customers and
227,579,897 291,515,452

other accounts

There were no impaired loans or non-performing loans at 31 December 2023
(2022: Nil).

The Group accepted property mortgages and listed securities at fair value of
HK$503,000,000 and HK$16,094,789 respectively (2022: HK$1,030,000,000
and HK$16,657,881 respectively) as collateral for loans, which it is permitted to
sell or re-pledge in the event of default by the borrower, of which no properties
or securities (2022: Nil) were re-pledged or lent to third parties.

Investment securities measured at FVOCI

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Debt securities
- exchange fund bills, unlisted, at market
value 177,553,392 98,716,309
Equity securities
- listed in Hong Kong, at market value 21,091,909 20,163,111
- listed outside Hong Kong, at market value 32,359 42,781
- unlisted, at estimated fair value 325,694 136,000
Total equity securities 21,449,962 20,341,892
199,003,354 119,058,201

Investment securities measured at FVOCI are analysed by categories of issuers
as follows :

- Sovereign 177,553,392 98,716,309
- Banks and other financial institutions 11,774,380 12,379,799
- Corporates 8,816,082 6,966,093
- Others 859,500 996,000

199,003,354 119,058,201

The movement in investment securities measured at FVOCI is summarised as
follows :

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
At 1 January 119,058,201 17,665,750
Surplus from changes in fair value (Note
21) 986,455 1,371,039
Additions 208,958,698 200,021,412

Redemptions / Disposals (130,000,000) (100,000,000)

At 31 December 199,003,354 119,058,201
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incorporation activities

RAEVEEH & Ve
HIRAE Hong Kong Property
TSB Property management
Management

Limited

mlEMEAR B RERA
NG| Hong Kong Investment
Success Land holding
Enterprises

Limited

BEEREAR B RERA
/NG| Hong Kong Investment
Golden Wisdom holding
Development

Limited

REeEREAR BT RERA
NG| Hong Kong Investment
Team Gold holding
Investment

Limited

EEREAR B RERA
NG| Hong Kong Investment
Gold Harmony holding
Enterprises

Limited

Investment securities measured at FVYOCI (Continued)

Equity investments measured at FVOCI

The Group has designated at FVOCI investments in a portfolio of equity securities that were
acquired for investment purposes. The Group chose this presentation alternative because the
investments were made for their dividend income rather than with a view to profit on a

subsequent sale.

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 and 2022, which are held by the Bank

directly, are as follows :

2023412H31H
31 December 2023

2022412 H31H
31 December 2022

FrFF 81T

Gy v JEE Aok R A HEELEH RE LS HEH
Particulars of issued Interest Total assets ~ Total equity
shares held held

HKS HKS$

KA T 2 4 %H
Total assets Total equity

HKS HKS$

10, 000 3H i & 100% 1,215,726 1,021,183
RS 17T

10,000 ordinary

shares of HK$1

each

pliayiiltasyicainl 100% 2 5
AT

2 ordinary shares of

HKS$1 each

22,900, 00083 3H 100% 35,749,861 35,435,202
Pt T R TH B 1

TG

22,900,000 ordinary

shares of HK$1

each

19,800, 000 % 35 100% 31,554,100 31,262,096
e F R TR

7t

19,800,000 ordinary

shares of HK$1

each

1 5 335 e 5 B T 100% 19,194,265 (2,010,296)
BT

1 ordinary shares of

HKS$1 each
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1,233,943 1,037,176

35,985,328 35,597,971

31,938,591 31,610,461

18,490,919 (718,759)
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost or Deemed cost at valuation

At 1 January 2023
Additions
Write-off / disposal

At 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2022
Additions
Write-off / disposal

At 31 December 2022
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

At 1 January 2023

Charge for the year

Write-off / disposal

At 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2022
Charge for the year

Write-off / disposal
At 31 December 2022

Net book value
At 31 December 2023

At 31 December 2022

The Group’s bank premises at their net book values are analysed as follows :

In Hong Kong, held on :
Leases of over 50 years

Leases of under 50 years

64

e

HEE Rt

Furniture,
174k fixtures and KR
Bank premises equipment Total
HKS$ HKS$ HK$
150,285,740 39,229,993 189,515,733
- 143,697 143,697
- (825,773) (825,773)
150,285,740 38,547,917 188,833,657
150,285,740 18,116,740 168,402,480
- 21,185,543 21,185,543
- (72,290) (72,290)
150,285,740 39,229,993 189,515,733
51,344,868 14,862,761 66,207,629
358,722 2,658,209 3,016,931
- (683,254) (683,254)
51,703,590 16,837,716 68,541,306
50,986,146 12,657,770 63,643,916
358,722 2,252,522 2,611,244
- (47,531) (47,531)
51,344,868 14,862,761 66,207,629
98,582,150 21,710,201 120,292,351
98,940,872 24,367,232 123,308,104
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
94,683,176 94,798,784
3,898,974 4,142,088
98,582,150 98,940,872
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Investment Properties

The Group's interests in investment properties at their net book values are analysed
as follows :

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$

In Hong Kong, held on :
Leases of over 50 years 293,200,000 295,300,000
Leases of under 50 years 12,400,000 12,600,000
305,600,000 307,900,000

All investment properties were classified as level 3 asset of fair value hierarchy as of
31 December 2023 and 2022.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations for
future repairs and maintenance.

In the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, direct operating expenses
include HK$12,542 (2022: HK$Nil) relating to investment properties that were
unlet.

Valuation basis of investment properties

The investment properties were revalued on the basis of their open market values,
which were derived by the following valuation methodologies adopted by Jones
Lang LaSalle Limited, the independent firm of qualified property valuers, as at 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

- Sales evidence on the market on comparable properties around the time of
valuation; and

- Capitalisation of the income potential using appropriate capitalisation rate,
which was derived from analysis of sale transactions and the valuer’s
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or expectations.

The fair value measurement of investment properties is positively correlated to the
market rental and negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances for fair value
measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the year ended 31 December
2023:

2023 2022
HKS HKS
At 1 January 307,900,000 308,500,000
Deficit from fair value adjustments on
investment properties (2,300,000) (600,000)
At 31 December 305,600,000 307,900,000

65



16

17

18

19

AEAEREREEAR

AR E - T

//////

SEE R A — B E R g0y frRBeE 0T
20234 F12 A 31 HAE DL E 2 AERMEERE - 2
023FEEN - SEENEHIY > A AL E -

ARG E I CRURMEST S B aeR i
A - HEREZAE SRR eSS
WFRZMTEESA -

B

R ROR LA
T
SRR K

Hr S R M

AR

HEEE
T Z B WA
FERFFIE

JEAS I R HA &5 5
AR AR

RIERTRHL

B A IEER A A R A B A R R
B KB B IR AE T A5 A B (] — B BB B A
RARE, SRACBETH & K A ey G ARIRSY - 5y
ZEGEINT

ARAE LI E -
- B AR 1 2{1 A U B 2 AR R

SEAE B 1
- B2 A S AERUE A

?<N

RIEFL A A T

Right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Right-of-use assets - building 22,812,490 25,664,051
Lease liabilities 25,477,421 27,529,008

The Group leased a property as its new safe deposit box location and had the above right-
of-use assets as at 31 December 2023. There were no new additions to the Group’s right-
of-use assets during 2023.

The depreciation charge of right-of-use assets is shown in note 7 of the consolidated
financial statements. The interest expense on the lease liabilities is shown in note 5 of
the consolidated financial statements.

Deposits from Customers

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Demand deposits and current accounts 57,552,544 65,018,025
Savings deposits 111,788,636 185,622,692
Time, call and notice deposits 71,793,266 15,428,115

241,134,446 266,068,832

Other Liabilities and Provisions

2023 2022

HKS$ HKS$

Cashier orders 2,519,504 3,366,334
Rental deposits 21,183,007 16,421,582
Rental income received in advance 10,745,130 7,820,062
Accrued interest 346,816 127,744
Accounts and other payables 3,830,135 5,500,152
Amount due for clearing 2,725,281 1,493,083
41,349,873 34,728,957

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2023 2022
Deferred tax assets : HKS HKS$

- Deferred tax assets to be recovered after
more than 12 months (8,202,176) (8,813,895)
Deferred tax liabilities :

- Deferred tax liabilities to be incurred after
more than 12 months 17,591,530 17,829,568

Net deferred tax liabilities 9,389,354 9,015,673
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Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows :

At 1 January

Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note 9)

At 31 December

2023 2022

HKS$ HKS$

9,015,673 10,342,086

373,681 (1,326,413)

9,389,354 9,015,673

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows :

Deferred tax liabilities

IIZRFIATTES
Accelerated tax A EEEXER |
depreciation  Fair value gains Total
HK$ HKS$ HKS$
At 1 January 2022 715,339 16,197,800 16,913,139
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 829,495 86,934 916,429
At 31 December 2022 1,544,334 16,284,734 17,829,568
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (273,135) 35,097 (238,038)
At 31 December 2023 1,271,699 16,319,831 17,591,530
Deferred tax assets
Gk HeAth, HaEA
Tax losses Other Total
HK$ HKS$ HKS$
At 1 January 2022 6,475,642 95,411 6,571,053
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 2,248,690 (5,848) 2,242,842
At 31 December 2022 8,724,332 89,563 8,813,895
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (606,462) (5,257) (611,719)
At 31 December 2023 8,117,870 84,306 8,202,176

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forwards to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.

Share Capital
20234-12H31H
31 December 2023

20224E12H31H
31 December 2022

b4 e g
No. of Shares HK$ No. of Shares HKS
Ordinary shares
issued and fully paid : 310,000,000 310,000,000 310,000,000 310,000,000
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2023 2023
i
Group
HAtr 42 &g =i ETE gk
EEGAE B fEhfH it T e
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation revaluation General  Regulatory Retained
reserve' reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ earnings Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
202318 1H At 1 January 2023 1,918,892  (684,550) 610,257 1,800,000 399,101,475 402,746,074
DU EES 2 B HEs Surplus on revaluation of
#hst AE A 2 HE IS 2 investment securities measured at
WEss A& BRI FVOCI - 986,455 - - - 986,455
R THHTEE T B B LR Transfer from revaluation reserve
A &ﬁ%)ﬁﬁs to retained earnings on
depreciation of bank premises’ (64,091) - - - 64,091 -
A FE 5 F Profit for the year - - - - 1,818,734 1,818,734
20234125 31H At 31 December 2023 1,854,801 301,905 610,257 1,800,000 400,984,300 405,551,263
RFE Representing :
SRATEANTE N\ E] Bank and subsidiaries 1,854,801 301,905 610,257 1,800,000 400,984,300 405,551,263

"HL S E BRI TYMRIEY)  'The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises prior to 30
3 BEE N e EEGR September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.10).
CFIEE2.10 ) FrefEH 774k
#A19954E9 H30H A2 B
i A 2 MR B A

MR (L S TUIRIEI 5% “The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of debt and equity investment securities measured
EEHEER (MfEE2.5) T at FVOCT until such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note 2.5).
EME LA HEREEE
BT AHAM S S U 2 (7
1 A IEE T I R
MR BB AT 2 A HEEZ
Ratiggd) -

ST T EEE BAEEE  JThe general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.
B 7 B R T HEREE

/fnz{‘%{ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ F#SE *The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purpose.
1TEIRPINA R SRIEE > Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

K - B2 éiﬂﬁ%ﬁ)\

BIEREAT - WK HIE SR

BT -

S TSHIR YR B R HTRE 2% This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the historical cost
YRR R RSB FHET of the premises of HK$12,665 (2022 : HK$12,665).

BN B AR IR AR T AR

12,6657T(20224F =

12,6657T) °
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Reserves (Continued)

2022

At 1 January 2022

Surplus on revaluation of
investment securities measured
at FVOCI

Transfer from revaluation

reserve to retained earnings on
- 5

depreciation of bank premises

Loss for the year

At 31 December 2022

Representing :

Bank and subsidiaries

EE
Group
HAth P2 && LiE EE gk
EGGEE  EMEE R Cl T W
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation revaluation  General Regulatory Retained
reserve' reserve’  reserve’ reserve’ earnings Total
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
1,982,983 (2,055,589) 610,257 1,800,000 404,053,541 406,391,192
- 1,371,039 - - - 1,371,039
(64,091) - - - 64,091 -
- - - - (5,016,157)  (5,016,157)
1,918,892 (684,550) 610,257 1,800,000 399,101,475 402,746,074
1,918,892 (684,550) 610,257 1,800,000 399,101,475 402,746,074

'The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises prior
to 30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.10).

*The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments measured at FVOCI
until such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note 2.5).

The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.

*The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision

purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

SThis is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the
historical cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2021: HK$12,665).
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Notes To Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating

®

~—~

activities

Operating profit/(loss)

Dividend income from equity investments
measured at FVOCI

Depreciation - property, plant and equipment

Depreciation - right-of-use assets

Decrease / (increase) in accrued interest and
other accounts

Increase in other liabilities and provisions

Decrease / (increase) in loans and advances to
customers

Decrease in deposits from customers

Increase in placements with banks and exchange
fund bills with original maturity over 3 months

Income tax paid

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating
activities

Cash flows from operating activities included:-

- Interest received

- Interest paid

2023 2022
HKS HKS$
4,653,501 (5,626,028)
(1,075,900) (989,249)
3,016,931 2,611,244
2,851,561 2,851,561
41,554 (469,927)
7,842,495 9,480,522
63,894,001 (70,953,151)

(24,934,386)

(42,708,660)

(32,809,997)

(133,479,418)

(119,649) (48,881)
13,461,448 (229,433,324)
19,797,347 10,306,933

3,490,212 1,320,169

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the
following balances with less than three months' maturity from the date of acquisition.

Cash in hand (Note 10)

Balances with banks and central bank (Note 10)

Placements with banks with original maturity
within 3 months

Exchange fund bills with maturity within 3
months

70

2023 2022

HKS$ HKS$
2,509,320 2,291,979
12,719,691 13,849,694
103,427,588 121,180,974
29,786,533 -
148,443,132 137,322,647
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Notes To Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

(¢) Changes in liabilties arising from financing activities

The following table sets out an analysis of the cash flows and non-cash flows
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

R ARE
HKS$
At 1 January 2022
Financing cash flow
Inception of lease 28,515,613
Principal elements of lease liabilities (986,605)
Other changes
Interest expenses 1,013,395
Interest payments (1,013,395)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 27,529,008
Financing cash flow
Principal elements of lease liabilities (2,051,587)
Other changes
Interest expenses 948,413
Interest payments (948,413)
At 31 December 2023 25,477,421
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Benefits and Interests of Directors (Disclosures Required by Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G)

(a) Directors' emoluments and retirement benefits

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid to or
receivable by directors of the Bank during the year in
respect of their services as directors were as follows:
Fees 2,469,324 2,469,324

The aggregate amounts of emoluments and retirement
benefits paid to or receivable by directors of the Bank
during the year in respect of their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Bank or its subsidiary undertakings were as follows:

Salary 1,300,000 500,861

Employer's Contribution to Retirement Scheme - -

1,300,000 500,861

3,769,324 2,970,185

(b) Loans to directors and controlled body corporates by directors

Particulars of loans made to directors and controlled body corporates by directors are

as follows:
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Aggregate amount of loans outstanding at the
end of the year 125,532,258 125,644,370
Maximum aggregate amount of loans during
the year 127,050,225 171,205,160

All loans to directors and controlled body corporates by directors are granted on
values not greater and on term not more favourable than to borrowers of the same
financial standing but unconnected with the Bank.

Related-Party Transactions
(a) Transactions with key management

A number of banking transactions were entered into with related parties in the normal
course of business. These include the extension of credit facilities and deposit taking. For
deposits taken and credit facilities extended, the interest rates charged are under terms and
conditions that would normally apply to customers of comparable standing.

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions entered into with key
management which include directors, relatives and companies controlled or significantly
influenced by them in addition to those disclosed in note 23, which were carried out in the
normal course of the Group's business :

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$

Loans
Average balance during the year 191,733,574 175,659,529
Outstanding as at end of year 150,457,140 213,099,094
Interest income 6,297,284 5,105,521
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Related-Party Transactions (Continued)

(a) Transactions with key management (Continued)

The loans granted to related parties during the year are collaterised by
properties, shares in listed companies and deposits. The fair value of these
mortgaged properties and shares in listed companies as at 31 December 2023
were HK$363,000,000 and HK$16,094,789 (2022: HKS$890,000,000 and
HK$16,657,881) respectively. No provisions have been made in respect of
loans advanced to related parties (2022: Nil).

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS
Deposits
Average balance during the year 132,929,847 179,296,271
Outstanding as at end of year 138,720,580 149,194,722
Interest expense 1,622,683 298,635
Contingent liabilities and commitments
contract amount
Other commitments with an original
maturity of under 1 year or which are
unconditionally cancellable 5,099,736 1,960,536
Property management fee income (note (i)) 74,561 158,063
Property rental income (note (ii)) 525,053 1,163,091
Property consultancy fee expense (note (iii)) 405,000 240,000
Property commission expense (note (iv)) 96,050 148,903

Notes :

(i) Property management fee income included fee income charged on the
property managed by the Group on an actual costs incurred basis and
management fee charged on an arm's length basis for premises leased to
companies controlled by directors.

(i) Property rental income was charged on an arm's length basis for premises
leased to companies controlled by directors.

(iii)) Property consultancy fee expense was charged on an arm’s length basis
for consultancy services provided by a company controlled by directors

(iv) Rental commission expense was charged on an arm’s length basis for
rental commission to a company controlled by directors

(b) Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries

During the year, the Bank entered into transactions with subsidiaries that are
wholly-owned by the Bank in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms. The income and expenses during the year and on-balance
sheet outstanding at the reporting date are as follows:

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Income and expense during the year
Interest income 1,118,051 940,906
Other operating income 1,665,830 1,236,020
Operating expense 217,236 216,741

The interest rates in connection with loan to subsidiary are under terms and
conditions normally applicable to customers of comparable standing.
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Related-Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries (Continued)

Other operating income represents income from providing management
services, information technology services, rental administration services,
financial control and accounting services and other administration services to
the Bank's subsidiaries by the Bank.

Other operating expense represents rental and management fee expenses paid to
its subsidiary by the Bank for the rental of office unit owned and held by the
subsidiary.

All income and expense on these transactions are determined on an arm's
length basis.

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS
On-balance sheet outstanding at the
reporting date
Loan to a subsidiary 21,000,000 19,000,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries 10,657,625 9,562,150

(c) Transactions between the companies within the Group

During the year, the Bank and its wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into
transactions with another wholly-owned subsidiary that provide property
management services for properties owned and held by the Bank and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. The property manager remuneration paid by the Bank and
its wholly-owned subsidiaries are determined in the ordinary course of property
management business and on normal commercial terms. The amount of income
received and expenses paid between the Group companies during the year are
as follows:

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Income and expense during the year
Property manager remuneration paid by the
Bank and its subsidiares 464,868 430,680
Property manager remuneration received by a
subsidiary within the Group 464,868 430,680

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(a)  Credit commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitment, and the
aggregate credit risk weighted amount :

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Contract amount
Other commitments with an original
maturity of under 1 year or which are
unconditionally cancellable 5,099,736 1,960,536
5,099,736 1,960,536

Credit risk weighted amount - -
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Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (Continued)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)
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Operating lease commitments - the Group as lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2023 2022
HKS$ HKS
Land and buildings
- not later than one year 9,185,793 9,052,820
- later than one year but not later than five
years 4,295,301 7,023,198
13,481,094 16,076,018

The Group leases out investment properties (Note 15) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases typically for a period from one to three
years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the prevailing market conditions. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

Capital commitments

The Group does not have any capital expenditures contracted for but
not recognized as liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022.

Repairs and maintenance: investment properties

The Group does not have any contractual obligation for future repairs
and maintenance of the investment properties not recognized as a
liability as at 31 December 2023 (2022: HKS$Nil).

Legal proceeding

The Group initiated a legal proceeding on 11 February 2021 as plaintiff
via the issuance of a writ of summons to the Group's previous cleaning
contractor as defendant, for damages caused by negligence of the said
cleaning contractor and the lack of duty of care when carrying out their
contracted work on 25 July 2020 which caused damages due to flooding
from a fire sprinkler broken by the staff of the cleaning contractor. The
Group's HK$882,199 original claim on the damages from the defendant
was revised during 2022 to HK$726,559, which was assessed by an
independent surveying expert engaged by the Bank for this case. After
various negotiations between the Group and the defendant since then,
the case was eventually agreed by both parties to be settled. The
defendant agreed to proceed with a final court settlement of
HK$440,000 and HK$260,000 for reimbursement of legal costs in
February 2024. Upon receipt of the above settlement and
reimbursement from the defendant, this legal proceeding would be
closed.
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Statement of Financial Position of the Bank

N 20234E12H31H 20224E£12H31H
Note 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
HKS HKS$
BE Assets
RIS B AR E 2 R0 Cash and balances with banks 112,229,011 109,415,881
TE SRS EROR 1 12 Placements with banks maturing between one
& 3 PYE 8 and twelve months 45,300,048 73,242,731
KRR K HA AR IR Loans and advances to customers and other
accounts 248,389,437 310,295,556
AN EER = B S Investment securities measured at FVOCI
AHAM &R B < &R 5 199,003,354 119,058,201
T B AT wEE S Investment securities in subsidiaries 13 42,710,003 42,710,003
Vg > HBEE LA Property, plant and equipment 116,393,377 119,166,016
&Y% Investment properties 233,500,000 234,800,000
B{iHEESE Right-of-use assets 22,812,490 25,664,051
HEGE Total Assets 1,020,337,720 1,034,352,439
aiE Liabilities
P/ Deposits from
-IfE AT - Subsidiaries 10,657,623 9,562,149
-HitzE - Other customers 241,134,446 266,068,832
S Lease liabilities 25,477,421 27,529,008
HAh B (E R A Other liabilities and provisions 40,357,662 33,619,240
IRIEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 9,356,462 8,986,071
= Ui=0=F Total Liabilities 326,983,614 345,765,300
T2 Equity
AN Share capital 310,000,000 310,000,000
BEHE Reserves 27 383,354,106 378,587,139
MLt Total Equity 693,354,106 688,587,139
AR aAEA: Total Equity and Liabilities 1,020,337,720 1,034,352,439

FEHEE024F3H 258
AE R PR TESEA -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2024.

FEVERE MA CHING KUEN, ALFRED )
HE ) Directors
EES MA CHING YEUNG, PHILIP )
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Reserves of the Bank

2023

At 1 January 2023
Surplus on revaluation of
investment securities measured

at FVOCI

Transfer from revaluation
reserve to retained earnings on

depreciation of bank premises”

Profit for the year

At 31 December 2023

1T
Bank
ERIRYES & i EE Ferlic
EEGE  EGEE O BE H R R
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation revaluation  General Regulatory Retained
reserve' reserve’  reserve’ reserve’ earnings Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
1,918,892 (684,550) 610,257 1,800,000 374,942,540 378,587,139
- 986,455 - - - 986,455
(64,091) - - - 64,091 -
- - - - 3,780,512 3,780,512
1,854,801 301,905 610,257 1,800,000 378,787,143 383,354,106

'The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises
prior to 30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.10).

*The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of debt and equity investment securities
measured at FVOCI until such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets

(Note 2.5).

The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.

*The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision

purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

>This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the
historical cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2022 : HK$12,665).
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27 $RfTZEEHEEE) Reserves of the Bank (Continued)

2022 2022
AT
Bank
He2E wE 5 EE eelis
EGGEE MGG R et BT HeH
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation revaluation  General Regulatory Retained
reserve' reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ earnings Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
FA2020241H1H At 1 January 2022 1,982,984 (2,055,589) 610,257 1,800,000 379,343,114 381,680,766
PN EES = B = Surplus on revaluation of
#Et A=EAM S mEIEE investment securities measured
&S 2 BRI at FVOCI - 1,371,039 - - - 1,371,039
RfTHHTE T B E L Transfer from revaluation
sl A 85 reserve to retained earnings on
depreciation of bank premises’ (64,091) - - - 64,091 -
RIFEE R5TE Loss for the year - - - - (4,464,666) (4,464,666)
2022912 H31H At 31 December 2022 1,918,893 (684,550) 610,257 1,800,000 374,942,539 378,587,139
“H S TR "The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises
WsE o BEE R R @ st prior to 30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.10).
¥ OOMEEE2.100 FrfEH BT
HEFA 19959 H30H FT 2 &
fiiifri 28 A 2 MR TFIE B4 0
? B E L TR IBE The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments measured at
BESEER (MffEE2.5) FVOCT until such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note 2.5).
ﬁﬁfﬂﬁ%’f DAEEESER
EFhEt AHMErE Wz
’f?éﬁn& &7 E A T B
HRTZ AEEEZ BataeE
ij] o
3 B T A B ER T *The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.
A 80 > W R TR
%o
S Ty ﬁff—?é “The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
SRTTRIEHIN AR 4 @‘f": purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.
AR GﬁfﬁZéiﬂE%
/\E@%/ﬁﬁ ’ Ezﬁgﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ
RLEH GG -
S TSI R B IR 5This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the

FEZERR R R AT E 2 A historical cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2021: HK$12,665).
Presm & =50 2 IR IERR T

H212,665TC(2021 4 « M

12,6657T) °
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The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying information to the financial

statements and does not form part of the financial statements.

Non-Bank Mainland Exposures

The Group did not have any non-bank Mainland exposures as at 31 December 2023 (2022 : Nil).

Currency Concentrations

The US dollar net position, the RMB net position and the EUR net position, each constitutes more
than 10% of the total net position in all foreign currencies respectively, are reported as follows :

US Dollar Position:

Equivalent in Hong Kong dollars
Spot assets

Spot liabilities

Net long position

RMB Position:

Equivalent in Hong Kong dollars
Spot assets

Spot liabilities

Net long position

EUR Position:

Equivalent in Hong Kong dollars
Spot assets

Spot liabilities

Net long position
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RAT
Bank
2023 2022
HK$°000 HKS$°000
15,589 14,782
(14,985) (14,290)
604 492
R1T
Bank
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
342 367
(133) (145)
209 222
PRAT
Bank
2023 2022
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
31 30
31 30
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Loans and Advances to Customers

Gross advances to customers by loan usage

Loans for use in Hong
Kong

Industrial, commercial and
financial

-property development
-property investment

Wholesale and retail trade
Individuals
-others

Investment companies

Segmental Information

(i) Business activities

2023 2022

B HHEAY

HAtrdEOr A R

Z R 8

Amount Amount

j=/ESYC| covered by E#E%E  covered by
Gross collateral/ Gross collateral/
advances other security advances other security
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
71,862,691 71,862,691 73,114,737 73,114,737
113,228,140 113,228,140 113,987,916 113,987,916
6,192,308 6,192,308 5,681,028 5,681,028
5,789,708 5,789,708 5,671,602 5,671,602
25,246,983 25,246,983 87,758,548 87,758,548
222,319,830 222,319,830 286,213,831 286,213,831

The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong and in two classes of business -
commercial banking and property investment. The commercial banking business
includes, inter alia, acceptance of deposit from customers and the provision of
lending, trade financing, foreign exchange, and other credit facilities to customers.
Property investment represents interests in various commercial properties held for

rental purposes.

At 31 December 2023, commercial banking and property investment accounted for
HK$727,302,357 and HK$305,600,000 of the Group's operating assets respectively
(2022: HK$742,204,420 and HK$307,900,000). For the year ended 31 December
2023, contributions to the Group's operating income from commercial banking and
property investment, were HK$32,503,454 and HK$8,052,553 respectively (2022:
HK$20,645,089 and HK$8,039,061 respectively).

(i)

Overdue and impaired loans by geographical area

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has no overdue or impaired loans (2022: Nil).
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Segmental Information (Continued)

(iii) International claims

The information as at 31 December on international claims discloses
exposures to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is
derived according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
account any transfer of risk.

2023 2022

RATIEIZE k) HRATIEIZE 4asE
Banks Total Banks Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$’000
85,300 85,300 166,517 166,517
57,000 57,000 - -

Corporate Governance

In monitoring the operations and the financial soundness of the Group, the
Board has established seven specialised committees for handling matters which
require detailed review or in-depth consideration, namely, the Executive
Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”), Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Committee. The Audit Committee is made up of directors who are independent
non-executive directors. Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Risk Committee are chaired by independent non-executive directors and
comprised of a majority of members being independent non-executive directors.
Other committees are comprised of Chief Executive & General Manager and
other directors and senior executives of the Bank as appointed by the Board.

The Executive Committee handles major matters arising from business and
operational activities. It relieves the full Board from the needs to carry out
detailed review of information and operational activities and also co-ordinates
the work of other Board committees. The Credit Committee, in addition to its
usual role in evaluating credit applications and making credit decisions, also
serves the vital role of monitoring the loan portfolio quality of the Group. The
ALCO oversees the Group's operations relating to interest rate risk, exchange
rate risk and liquidity risk. In particular, ALCO ensures that the Group has
adequate funds to meet its obligations. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in providing independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process and internal control systems of the Group by working closely with the
Group's internal and external auditors. The Remuneration Committee establishes
policies on the Group's remuneration paid to senior management and key
personnel and monitors their proper implementation. Nomination Committee is
responsible for the review of suitable candidates for directors and senior
management posts. The Risk Committee oversees the overall risk of the Group
and ensures the proper function of the Group's risk monitoring framework.

The Group has complied with the requirements set out in the Supervisory Policy
Manual entitled "Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized
Institutions" issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority in all material
aspects.
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Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

The key prudential ratios of the regulatory consolidated group as

TEEEZE DRy i85 PO HoR 2 FEEr R O RIS R K at 31 December 2023 with the previous four quarter ends as
MIZITF o comparatives are disclosed in Template KM1 as below.
BERRKMI: F ERELRRIBE TGS ERE) Template KM1: Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory
Consolidated Basis)
(a) (b) (©) @ (¢)
20234 20234 20234 20234 20224
12H31H 9H30H 6H30H 3H31H 12H31H
31/12/2023 | 30/09/2023 | 30/06/2023 | 31/03/2023 | 31/12/2022
BEEEBAR (BEE)GE%5'000) Regulatory capital (amount) (HKS$'000)
1 %@Hyj‘%*i’&(CETl) Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) 395,494 394,198 394,498 392,746 390,524
2 4_’2}52 Tier | 395,494 394,198 394,498 392,746 390,524
3 Z- =N Total capital 539,959 538,872 539,172 538,275 536,053
E%ﬂnﬁ%&%ﬁ(&gﬁ)(ﬁ%ﬁ?%m RWA (amount) (HK$'000)
4 |m\s i BE K Total RWA [ 633328 | 698280 | 698,177 685,812 691,558
B R AR EE AR
(DLUBE BB ZE R Risk-based regulatory capital ratios (as a percentage of RWA)
FEFTR)
5 |CETI1EE (%) CET]1 ratio (%) 62.45% 56.45% 56.50% 57.27% 56.47%
6 | —&REEE (%) Tier 1 ratio (%) 62.45% 56.45% 56.50% 57.27% 56.47%
7 |HEEALLE (%) Total capital ratio (%) 85.26% 77.17% 77.23% 78.49% 77.51%
FSPCETIREZER (B
JE S RS R B 4 Additional CET1 buffer requirements (as a percentage of RWA)
=R)
SRR Capital tion buffe
g |PIRESRETFAZOK (%) - Capital conservation buffer 2500% | 2.500% | 2500% | 2.500% | 2.500%
requirement (%)
% Count lical ital buff
o |EFHRETAZR outriereyetiea’ capttal butier 1.000% 1.000% 1.000% 1.000% 1.000%
(%) requirement (%)
S UL ESTERE fyZEsk  Higher loss absorbency requirements
10 {(%) ( REERNG- (%) (applicable only to G-SIBs or D- N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
SIB=VD-SIR ) SIBs)
=T A][ f4 LEHy4E Total Al- ific CET1 buff
1y [FRPTRAERIEAYHECET - Total Al-specific e 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
A2 BT R (%) requirements (%)
L2 T R L ATE 2
12 R ?*"Eﬁ%mﬂﬂ&ﬁ CET]I available after meeting the AI’s S4.45% 48.45% 48.50% 49.27% 48.47%
Z{iﬁﬁ JE (& FTHIHICETI minimum capital requirements (%) e e =ue e e
0
(EEFRE=) BFE3R Basel 111 leverage ratio
SEFEAREE R EE &K EST  Total leverage ratio (LR) exposure
13 = (SEHE000) measure (HK$'000) 722,779 709,560 717,453 712,317 738,101
14 FEFREER(LR) (%) LR (%) 54.72% 55.56% 54.99% 55.14% 52.91%
RENMEE SLLHLCR) / Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) / Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (LMR)
REN:4ER EEZR(LMR)
70 A SE 1R 1RE - Applicable to category 1 institution only:
=W % 1 1 1 1
15 S REh& EHQLA) Total high quality liquid assets N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
bl (HQLA)
16 ;3 &R 4a%E Total net cash outflows N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
17 |LCR (%) LCR (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
LR F A EE 2 - Applicable to category 2 institution only:
17a [LMR (%) LMR (%) | 97.18% 51.51% 69.71% 67.86% 78.20%
%ﬁﬁ?@gﬁﬁ:i‘ﬁ(NSF Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) / Core Funding Ratio (CFR)
R) / Z.LEEEZE(CFR)
0 FE A EE 1 SR Applicable to category 1 institution only:
18 T}Eﬁfaﬁ‘/"/\zlﬂgﬁ Total available stable funding N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
19 |preEfe E &S 48%E Total required stable funding N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
20 INSFR (%) NSFR (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
R P A EE2 AJERE ¢ Applicable to category 2A institution only:
20a |CFR (%) CER (%) [ wNA N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

Template KM1: Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory Consolidated
Basis) (Continued)

Note:

N/A: Not applicable

Risk-based regulatory capital ratios

The table summarizes the capital ratios calculated as computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules under regulatory consolidated
basis of the Bank as at the dates shown. The constituent elements of the
Total capital as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 have been
disclosed in note 3.5 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Group. All of the Common Equity Tier 1 capital, Tierl capital and Total
capital of the Bank’s regulatory group have slightly increased from 30
September 2023 mainly due to the net result of the operating profit and
mark-to-market surplus on investment securities measured at FVOCI for
the last quarter of 2023, partially offset by the property revaluation loss on
investment properties as at the end of December 2023. With the decrease of
RWA between the last two quarter ends of 2023, the Group’s regulatory
consolidated CET1 ratio, Tier 1 ratio and Total capital ratio as at 31
December 2023 have all increased slightly from those as at 30 September
2023.

The Bank uses the Basic Approach for calculating credit risk and the Basic
Indicator Approach for calculating operational risk. The Bank was granted
by the HKMA an exemption from the calculation of market risk under the
exemption criteria under section 22(1) of the Banking (Capital) Rules on
22 March 2016 and has excluded market risk in the calculation of capital
ratio since then and as at 31 December 2023.

The Capital conversation buffer ratio for the Bank for 2023 is 2.5% (2022:
2.5%) as stipulated by the Banking (Capital) Rules. While the Bank only
operates and has private sector credit exposures in Hong Kong for the
purposes of the calculation of its Countercyclical capital buffer ratio, the
applicable Countercyclical capital buffer ratio for the Bank equals to that of
Hong Kong as at 31 December 2023, which amounts to 1% (2022: 1%).

Basel I1I leverage ratio

The leverage ratio shown above represents the regulatory consolidated
leverage ratio calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.
The exposure measure for 31 December 2023 was slightly higher than that
as at 30 September 2023, as a result of the larger size of the consolidated
statement of financial position that was mainly caused by the higher level
of customers’ deposits for the fourth quarter of 2023. This factor together
with the increase in the regulatory Group’s Tier 1 capital have led to a
decrease in the Group’s consolidated leverage ratio as at 31 December
2023 when compared to 30 September 2023.

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) / Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (LMR)

The Bank, as a category 2 institution for the purpose of the Liquidity Rules,
is only required to maintain and report LMR on a solo basis. As such, the
Bank is not required to report LCR. The above LMRs are the quarterly
average LMRs calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s
average LMR of the Bank’s solo position within the reporting quarters. The
increase in the average LMR noted for the current quarter as compared to
the last quarter was mainly due to the fact that more exchange fund bills
were maintained by the Bank during the fourth quarter of 2023, which had
the impact of pulling up the level of liquefiable assets and the LMR.
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Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory Basis) (Continued)

Template KM1: Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory Consolidated
Basis) (Continued)

Note:

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) / Core Funding Ratio (CFR)

The Bank, being a category 2 institution for the purpose of the Liquidity
Rules, is not required to report NSFR and CFR.

Higher Loss Absorbency (HLA)

The Bank is not designated as a domestic systematically important authorised
institution and as such is not subject to the HLA requirements under the
Banking (Capital) Rules. HLA ratio is not required to be reported by the
Bank.

Overview of Risk Management and Risk RWA (on Regulatory
Consolidated Basis)

The overview of risk management and the RWA of the regulatory
consolidated group as at 31 December 2023 and 30 September 2023 are
disclosed in Table OVA and Template OV 1 as below.

(M)

Table OVA: Overview of Risk Management

While management of major risk areas is delegated to the relevant
Board Committees, the full Board assumes the ultimate responsibility of
overseeing and monitoring the Bank's overall risks. These Committees
include Credit Committee (for credit risk), Asset & Liability Committee
(for capital adequacy, liquidity, market and interest rate risk) and Risk
Committee (for operational and other risks).

Both the Board and bank management fully acknowledge the Bank's
low risk appetite, hence the Bank's activities are confined to a few areas
which the Bank is able to identify, assess and exercise full control over
the risks. Control limits on different activities are set out in the relevant
policies which Board members were provided with updated copies at
meetings. A risk-averse culture has been built throughout the
organization, reinforced by active communications with staff, weekly
management meetings and annual staff briefings on the code of conduct.
All policies and operating procedures are available for handy reference
by staff.

The management information system applied by the Bank permits
timely and accurate position reporting for regular reviews by
management and relevant staff. Positions, or anticipated positions
arising from taking certain activities with resultant pressure to meet the
policy limits, will be brought to management attention promptly. Impact
analysis and sensitivity analysis will be performed, and viable
alternatives posted, for management decisions to mitigate the risks. For
the important control limits, trigger levels below such limits are set
serving as cushions allowing time for management to take actions to
rectify.

Important functions and activities, as determined by the Board, are
subject to periodic compliance checks. The findings are posted to senior
management for information, and to the relevant functions who are
required to respond with remedial plans. At the same time, Internal
Audit formulates 3-year audit plans for review and acceptance by Audit
Committee, and conducts audit works according to plan with results
presented at Audit Committee meetings where management would
respond with action time-table.

Stress tests are performed semi-annually to examine the key issues
including the risk of delinquent interbank placements, deposit run-off,
risk of capital adequacy from falling property values, risk in meeting the
various sections of the Banking (Exposure Limits) Rules due to
escalating values of property. Reverse stress tests are performed
annually to examine the sufficiency of buffers in meeting the different
sections under the Banking (Exposure Limits) Rules.
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7 ESEEE R E IR Overview of Risk Management and Risk RWA (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
(RBEEGEER) (H) (Continued)
(i) HERROV1 : RIS AE (ii) Template OV1: Overview of RWA as at 31 December 2023 (Unaudited - on
2023%12H31H FRIBE B4 S Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
£t
(a) (b) (©)
HARE A
R e S Mmfn .
RWA .
capital
requirements
20234 20234 20234
12H31H 9H30H 12H31H
31/12/2023 ] 30/09/2023 | 31/12/2023
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
1 BESE A LR R G & EN (S A R Credit risk for non-securitization exposures 753,296 821,678 60,264
2 HSTCEHH A Of which STC approach - - -
2a HPBSCEH&EA Of which BSC approach 753,296 821,678 60,264
3 H P EREIRBE B Of which foundation IRB approach - - -
4 BB AR AT UL Of which supervisory slotting criteria approach - - -
5 H & RIRBEE A Of which advanced IRB approach - - -
6 |s5rremmn m et R SS;?:EE;?; default risk and default fund i i ]
7 Hf1SA-CCR Of which SA-CCR - - -
Ta H R T bR 7% Of which CEM - - -
8 H P IMM(CCR)EEE Of which IMM(CCR) approach - - -
9 Hrp A Of which others - - -
10 _JCVAJE CVA risk - _ .
1 B R R e S T A B SR 7 A Ty JEquity positions in banking book under the simple i ) )
SRATINE P HEERE R 5 risk-weighted method and internal models method
12 | et SR GEE—LTA E$iect1ve investment scheme ("CIS") exposures i i ]
13 RS E T SR e R E—MBA CIS exposures — MBA - - -
14 VRS E T B E RS —FBA CIS exposures — FBA - - -
14a | EERE 1 i e SEE# AR JCIS exposures - combination of approaches - - -
15 |=Z U e\ Settlement risk _ N i
16 ISRITIRAIAYEE 251 LR Al R AR 3 Securitization exposures in banking book - - -
17 H.dr SEC-IRBA Of which SEC-IRBA - - -
18 H.dr SEC-ERBA Of which SEC-ERBA - - -
19 H.dr SEC-SA Of which SEC-SA - - -
19a H.dr SEC-FBA Of which SEC-FBA - - -
20 |5 Market risk - _ _
21 HSTMERE Of which STM approach - - -
22 HePIMMETEA Of which IMM approach - - -
2Z SRR TR 2~ VA JE i & 3EhY  [Capital charge for switch between exposures in
23 [ EARE K (KEEThsEEHEZE 4% H] Jtrading book and banking book (not applicable before N/A N/A N/A
ENfED) the revised market risk framework takes effect)
24 BEFIRIFE R Operational risk 54,400 51,225 4,352
24a \E )55 fa 6 o i Sovereign concentration risk - - -
25 (AR PRy 8%E (ZE5THE250%E % |Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (subject i . )
=) to 250% RW)
26 JEATIREEE Capital floor adjustment - - -
26a E&Bﬁiﬁn%ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ Deduction to RWA 174,368 174,623 13,949
Hf R GiEE R E RN —% Of which portion of regulatory reserve for
26b SRTTERS Hﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁfﬁ&* HaAE general banking risks and collective provisions - - -
HEHE which is not included in Tier 2 Capital
TR | o ot e e
26¢ *ﬁﬂ.{§1ﬁé{éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ'}?§ buildings which is not included in Tier 2 174,368 174,623 13,949
A RSSO Caita
27 [4EEt Total 633,328 698,280 50,667
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Overview of Risk Management and Risk RWA (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

(ii) Template OV1: Overview of RWA as at 31 December 2023 (Unaudited - on Regulatory

(2) The decrease noted in the credit risk for non-securitization exposures calculated on BSC

approach between the above two periods was mainly due to the decreases noted in higher risk-
weighted assets of loans, investment properties and interbank placements, being partially
offset by the increase in the holdings of lower risk-weighted assets, that is, exchange fund
bills for the position of 31 December 2023. Operational risk have also increased due to the
higher level of operating income for the fourth quarter of 2023.

Linkages between Financial Statements and Regulatory Exposures

The differences between accounting and regulatory scopes of consolidation and mapping of
financial statement categories with regulatory risk categories are disclosed in Template LI1, while
the main sources of differences between regulatory exposure amounts and the carrying values in
the financial statements are given in Template LI2 below. Table LIA provides explanations of
differences between accounting and regulatory exposure amounts as at 31 December 2023.

Frey st B R B R 2 25 -
() MERRLIL @ st S-S HiE 2 N (i) Template LI1: Differences between Accounting and Regulatory Scopes of Consolidation
ZER B R R and Mapping of Financial Statement Categories with Regulatory Risk Categories
Fg Rl Birt ¥t
(a) () © | @ | @ |1 ® |
JEHHYIRTEE Carrying values of items:
E8m | EEESE ZHFTE FREDH
BHRRER | #E TR (ZEARE | FRBES | 2/HUE | ZTBERE | ERREA
HIIRE B HfE REZRAH IR R MR TEZERR | fEEAHR
Carrying Carrying subject to subject to |subject to the| subject to |not subject to
values as | values under | credit risk | counterparty |securitization| market risk capital
reported in scope of framework | creditrisk | framework | framework | requirements
published | regulatory framework or subject to
financial |consolidation deduction
statements from capital
722023812831 H As at 31 December 2023
EiE Assets HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
iﬁ£§é&ﬁﬁigj Cash and balances with banks 112,229 112,229 112,229 - - - -
EHAE E 2 2 Placements with banks maturing
N EIVEIEIAE ] between one and twelve months 45,300 45,300 45,300 ) B B )
H L d ad t t
PG  HAIE oans and advances to customers 227.580 227561 227561 i ) ) i
H and other accounts
PIAFEER 2R "
LB A e Ln\\//::)s(t;ent securities measured at 199,003 199,003 199,003 ) i i )
Bl Z A 2
|[reps@ s 2 #5%  |Investment in subsidiaries | -| 10| 10| -| | | |
|2z - s man i |Property, plant and equipment | 120,292| 120,292| 120,292| -l - -l |
|z | nvestment properties | 305,600 305,600 305,600| -| | | -|
|ﬁ1§ﬁﬁ%;§\@ IRight—of—use assets I 22,813| 22,8]3| 22,8]3| -| —| —| -|
| fx | Tax recoverable | 85| 51] 51] -| | | -|
| et | Total assets | 1,032,902] 1,032,859 1,032,859] -| . . -|
| 22 | Liabitities | | | | | | [ |
|g;§-§y~ |Deposits from customers | 241,135' 242,341| | -| -| -I 242,341'
e e |Lease liabilities | 25,477| 25,477 - -| - | 25,477
| et g s |Other liabilities and provisions | 41,350 41,364 - -| - i 41,364|
|2]§H)§3F§EIE%1§ |Current tax liabilities | -| —| —| —| —| —| —|
| e | Deferred tax liabilities | 9,389 9,350| | | .| . 9,350
|emzes [ Total liabilities | 317351] 318,532 | -| - - 318,532
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RARLI2 : BRI RREM R R T2

Linkages between Financial Statements and Regulatory Exposures

(Continued)

(ii) Template LI2: Main Sources of Differences Between Regulatory

TREME 2 HE2E T ERIE Exposure Amounts and Carrying Values in Financial Statements
(@) ® | © | @ [ @
ZPITEZFHF ZIEE Items subject to:
wr | pRamEz | ascmp | HTERRR | WHERE
HEZE B
Credit risk Securitization Count.erp.arty Market risk
Total credit risk
framework framework framework
framework
2023512 831H As at 31 December 2023 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
. o - Asset carrying value amount
Bt A g A s
| ;E%é%g;iﬂ@ under scope of regulatory 1.032.859 1 032,859
Iﬁl ; A consolidation (as per template T T )
LIl)
e - Liabilities carrying value
B A 4 A .
5 E%%é gﬁz%%};?% amount under regulatory scope
LEil ; 1 LR of consolidation (as per ) ) )
template LI1)
Total net amount under
e N 4
3 Efﬁ%“m G TR regulatory scope of 1,032,859 1,032,859 -
lRGis consolidation
| 4 |%§E%F§%§9 NEEE Off-balance sheet amounts 5,100 5,100 -
KRR EHF2EEFEFR A Differences due to different
5 |ArS By ERE (BEAIA netting rules, other than those 8,242 8,242 -
FEUTHIEZERAN) already included in row 2
HEEE B ENFTEE Exposure amounts considered
6 Y R b R IR B EE for regulatory purposes 1,046,201 1,046,201 )
(iii) FELIA : 720234125 31 H st EHEEE E R (iii) Table LIA: Explanations of Differences Between Accounting and

R 2 2R

FARRRIRLT LA (2) 51 -2 e Ty HUE $RTT R H ST
SENEAEIEE2023F12H31 H 2 4763
8 R 1 B P B T B 2 S S A S R
Z SHIRIT Z It B A S ES RN Sr e B
MYEEI3A - SEEEHTE A S A E S LR
GBHRRNA -

btz IR etz S R B R (B

RZEGFEFEBEEAE > FERERRZ &S

EE D EAEITE A E - BEEESEARA
H ~ EEERARAE - FEREARAE

KEBEAEARAE - (FREGERZGE

IRHHE ERIRERRLILZ (0)5IA -

FARRERRLITA (a) FIEL (b) 51| 2 Bd » HA2 530
REKX -

GrET SRR Z IR (A B B fa R A R
EFPRIERRLI2A » 7220234E12H31H - M
HEA AR -

Regulatory Exposure Amounts as at 31 December 2023

The amounts in column (a) in Template LI1 are taken from the consolidated
financial statements which have been prepared based on the consolidated
results and financial data of the Bank and its five wholly owned subsidiaries
made up to 31 December 2023. The five subsidiaries of the Bank are listed in
Note 13 of the consolidated financial statements. There are no subsidiaries
which have not been included in the consolidated financial statements.

The above basis of consolidation for accounting purposes differs from the
basis of consolidation for regulatory purposes, under which only four of the
subsidiaries, namely, Success Land Enterprises Limited, Golden Wisdom
Development Limited, Team Gold Investment Limited and Gold Harmony
Enterprises Limited, are included as subsidiaries in the consolidated Group
for regulatory purposes. The consolidated carrying values under the scope of
regulatory consolidation are included under column (b) in Template LI1.

Differences between the amounts in columns (a) and (b) in Template LI1 are
not material.

The carrying values in the consolidated financial statements and the
regulatory exposure amounts are listed in Template LI2. There is no
difference between these two as at 31 December 2023.
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8 RS EEAE FEE Linkages between Financial Statements and Regulatory Exposures
(Continued)

(iii) FHBLIA : 120234FE12H 31 H &t (iii) Table LIA: Explanations of Differences Between Accounting and
JE RIS BEE > B 2 =HENERE (8]) Regulatory Exposure Amounts as at 31 December 2023 (Continued)
BN T — R E B Z &R The Group does not engage in business that subject itself to counterparty
X G TS B R e ZE 68 K iS5 2Rk - credit risk framework and securitization framework. In addition, the Group
L4h > EEESESMEE SR has received exemption granted by HKMA for calculating market risk.

FT R TS R -

EEBHMAESEAGBREANRINITEH The Group adopts prudent valuation estimates for all its on and off-balance
PR (SE - BT 2 (G ER sheet items. The valuation techniques and methodology adopted by the
i B 7 R R A R S S A TS B I Group has been detailed in Note 3.4 of the consolidated financial
=3 .44 - statements.

(iv) 2023212831 H * (RIBESE 4SS A (iv) The Template PV1 of the regulatory consolidated group as at 31
ZEHEFEGEFARCIIRIERPV December 2023 on prudent valuation adjustments is disclosed below.
W -

FBERRPVL © 7A20234E12 431 HEE G (E Template PV1 : Prudent Valuation Adjustments as at 31 December 2023
e
(REEFN - TRIBEE sE S A1) (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
(@) (®) ©) @ (e) (4] (9] ()]
Hrph:
= oo
REWRIDE o=
=3 =
A nterest| . Commo-| Of which: In
Equity FX] Credit] . Total In the .
rates| dities] . the banking
trading book
book
000 HKS '000
1 I FHIARTEEM: Close-out uncertainty, | i i | | | i i
Hrp o of which:
2 R Mid-market value| - - - - - - - -
3 IR %N Close-out costs| - - - - - - - -
4 g Concentration - - - - - - - -
5 BEEI%IE Early termination - - - e - - - -
6 5= e Model risk - - - - - - - -
7 VEBEEE Operational risk - - - e - - - -
s lapgems ]::)\;fssting and funding i _ _ ] ] i i )
9 VRBEHUE AF== Unearned credit spreads - - - - - - - -
10 lesermremmm lc:(l:;lsre administrative 1 i i 1 1 i | i
11 JEA R Other adjustments . - _ | i i 1 i
12 \ABEgEsE Total adjustments - - - - - - - -
B Note:

BT RFR AN BIRTTE (BEA) B
AAPRIEHEATE E R -

The Bank is not required to make any valuation adjustments for the
purpose of Banking (Capital) Rules section 4A.
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BEAGHE LR BN (IRBEEGREE
BE)

20234F12H31 H K20234F6 H30H 2 &
AFE R LR TIIRIZ H 201445E1 H 1 HBA%G
AL SRTSR (B BAGHR > AR
RIS SRTTIE (EAO) BRI 3 (1) ATt
R T 2 SR tER -

PUREISHIRIA2023E12 531 H K
2023F6 A30H 2 BB EE A (FERRCCL) K
732023512 H31 H 202356 H30H LA
Fitéra RO B E RS E 2 BRI
FERRCC2) -

BIRRCCL : FR20234FE 1231 HESE

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

The calculation of the capital ratios as at 31 December 2023 and 30 June 2023 is based on
the Banking (Capital) Rules (“BCR”) effective from 1 January 2014. The capital ratios
represent consolidated ratios of the Bank computed in accordance with section 3(1) of the

BCR.

The tables below present the composition of the regulatory capital as at 31 December 2023
and 30 June 2023 (Template CC 1) and the statements of financial position based on the
accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory reporting scope respectively as at 31
December 2023 and 30 June 2023 (Template CC 2).

(i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2023

7 R (R - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
BB EGSER)
KFELEESGEGHE TE
ERBERNSEREBMK
B
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
B%H| sheet under the regulatory
(%' 000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
Y BRHE—&R(CET)EA : EiB K L5 CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
. BHIFSETHEERCETIE AR ZE R INE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital 264.987 1
o] FE BRI RS 1y it instruments plus any related share premium ’ )
TR A Retained earnings 399,759 ©
[ Disclosed reserves 4,567 B)HHHS5)+(6)
— — Direcily issued capital subject to phase-out i -
4 |FIECETI BRSLERIELRTT | rimemens from CET! (only applicable to i A
23 73 NTEA L = . . .
RA (AR TEERL ) non-joint stock companies) Not applicable Not applicable
- = g g Minority interests arising from CET]1 capital
SR S ST 2 5 ST SR =7 instrumZnts issued b 1cognsolidated bankp
FPANICETI ¥ A B A 2 6 D I L v comsoneed
5 HE2e (AIEF AL & EEAGCETIZ A subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount -
E? Bl AWREER = allowed in CET!1 capital of the consolidation
BED group)
6 |BEEFRRZEICETIEA CET]1 capital before regulatory adjustments 669,313
CETI1ER : BRE IR CET]1 capital: regulatory deductions
7 b fE R Valuation adjustments -
; N Goodwill (net of associated deferred tax
8 w8 (BAIREREAERE AR o -
9 HirfmpEE (SR IEER Other intangible assets (net of associated deferred
HAE) tax liabilities) -
PRIERIEE E ( EHIERMHER VIR LR Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred tax
10 -~ . -
HAR) liabilities)
11 |BRETREI A Cash flow hedge reserve -
» FEIRB VA TELAEHHE & B i%HE Excess of total EL amount over total eligible
R B provisions under the IRB approach .
HES 5 b2 Sy AR AR THE AV AT Credit-enhancing interest-only strip, and any gain-
13 |E5%E ~ HEUES K CETIE ARNTHA on-sale and other increase in the CET1 capital -
W EEE arising from securitization transactions
14 A EEGSENEERASTE B Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
J\ i S22 e Py 2 A Y4B risk on fair valued liabilities -
15 FUEMIZSHVBIR S EE & & (B4 Defined benefit pension fund net assets (net of
FrAH kA IR RER TS () associated deferred tax liabilities) )
HEFER B HICETI E AR ZRAEE ( Investments in own CET] capital instruments (if
16 | RIS EEaBERPRE not already netted off paid-in capital on reported -
SrEA IR ) balance sheet)
e - Reciprocal cross-holdings in CET1 capital
25 / e AoEE -
17 | B XFFANCETI B AR E instruments
. - v Insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
ﬁ@ﬁ%éﬁé‘\fe 19#5’9%@3@%%‘;@% instrguments issued by financial sector entit?es that
18 [ THICETIE AR ZEEHIIEE RLACKE -

& (BUH10%F I %0

are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
(amount above 10% threshold)
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9 EBREEEFTEER(RBEES: Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
BEERE) ()
() BEARCCL : 202312831 HERE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2023
B R (FEHFZ - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
BB SR ERE) ()
KRN EGFETET
HEABERNSERY
RotiiB
Source based on
reference numbers of the
balance sheet under the
e regulatory scope of]
(5% 000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount consolidation
WEEE ST HE DM SR Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital instruments
19 |2fTHYCET1 EAZE AV E KLACKYE issued by financial sector entities that are outside the scope -
(HH10%9E > %) of regulatory consolidation (amount above 10% threshold)
20 R EEUETRE (CIISRAEER IR E Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated deferred tax A3 i FH
TRIEAE) liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
51 AT M B E A IR e IEE E Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net A3 A A
(BRI IR e TE & (S ) of associated deferred tax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
22 |EBHI15%P IR > 8 Amount exceeding the 15% threshold Rii# i Not applicable | i ffiNot applicable
2 Hrb AR e B E A of which: significant investments in the ordinary share of A3 A
WE financial sector entities Not applicable Not applicable
24 |H - Bt TR of which: mortgage servicing rights 7R3 FINot applicable A3 FINot applicable
)5 Hoop o T S A AR R SRR TE of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary AN ANk
‘iE differences Not applicable Not applicable
A CETI & AN A E i m S T i National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1
26 | : 273,819
B capital
5% LR ', 3
2% %;E%g%q% ;ig’;{;j ?fig T)E Cumulative fair value gains arising from the revaluation of 272,019 3148
a }L&E = E Lt land and buildings (own-use and investment properties) ’ Gr+®)
2%
26b | —fEER TR E G L Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,800 (6)
2% SRS E S48 AV AR TS Securitization exposures specified in a notice given by the
C | xe — -
Bl e MA
26d DRI B 3t By TSR RN 3T Cumulative losses below depreciated cost arising from the
EN A EE N EAN EfEEE institution's holdings of land and buildings )
26e | ZIREIERITINB A SINEARE X Capital shortfall of regulated non-bank subsidiaries -
A E B R A EH N E T E Capital investment in a connected company which is a
26f | A4 E (U SRS S AN EEREAY15%  [commercial entity (amount above 15% of the reporting -
78 institution's capital base)
Jy [remRmAT IR L I o dover :
FUBRIM ZAAECET 1 E A LBRAY R HIR .
deductions
28 |BICET1E AR S BB eE%EE Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 273,819
29 |cET1 B CET1 capital 395,494
ATIEAR : Eig AT1 capital: instruments
30 GEEMRATI E AT {a A R R (5575 Qualifying AT capital instruments plus any related share
& premium -
3 o fRE R e s AR Y R AR of which: classified as equity under applicable accounting
il standards i
0 o fRE e s Y R & of which: classified as liabilities under applicable accounting
il standards i
Py eps e Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
V=4 =N ET =N -
33 | FAEAT] R FLRIHIEA from AT capital
H&EEIRTTIN B AT ST HE=F AT] capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
34 |FFEWATIEARZR (5t ASEAEZEE  |subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in -
HIATIE AR EEE ) AT]1 capital of the consolidation group)
35 o BN B TR AR A i of which: ATI capital instruments issued by subsidiaries
LHERIRITATI B R subject to phase-out arrangements i
36 |BEEHIRZRIATIEA AT1 capital before regulatory deductions -
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FHEFEMEREZED (REAR
. CEARAL) HIRAFE2(DIET 8
EFR T R2ARME , H)

designated for the 5% threshold but no longer meets the
conditions) (for institutions defined as “section 2
institution” under §2(1) of Schedule 4F to BCR only)

9 EBREEETAEEN(RBEES Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EERE) (E)
(i) BERRCCT : 72023512 H31H (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2023
BB B AR R (REEER - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
RBEESFSER) (8)
REMEEGEBETE
EARRNSERE AR
B
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
E(ZH| sheet under the regulatory
(3% 000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
ATIEAR @ BEEHTK AT1 capital: regulatory deductions
37 |INMEEA S ATIEAZEZBRE Investments in own AT]1 capital instruments -
38 |G XA ATIE AT Reciprocal cross-holdings in AT1 capital instruments -
et e At I Insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital
N B A g \ J4Ehseprae | : : p1
39 g;?;ir?:zigf ;C?%BE; %}tﬂiiﬁg instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
:i Z i 0?/\ Fﬁ;; ) * outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount .
S o above 10% threshold)
- e S Significant LAC investments in AT capital instruments
N B A 42 5 \ 1 o iy A e
40 g;ﬁ;ETT:EiEE *?Ezl\gfsii%iﬁ issued by financial sector entities that are outside the -
(T FURIE A scope of regulatory consolidation
4l WHANATIE ARG A S e e National specific regulatory adjustments applied to AT1 i
B capital
4 KA RN HEARDAIIRRMZE  |Regulatory deductions applied to AT1 capital due to i
TEATIE AR EE B insufficient Tier 2 capital to cover deductions
43 | EATIE AN IR ZE Total regulatory deductions to AT1 capital -
44 JATIER AT1 capital -
45 A—fl;‘éi)(—&&gz& =CETIRE +  1orq capital (T1 = CET1 + ATI) 395,494
TREA B REES Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
46 GBI T ARE AR o] FH B R {55 Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any related i
ARl share premium
L IR — 4T 2B N e Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
TEIE AR I YE it & K ) ) -
A7 | HE =R B A from Tier 2 capital
A4S tRITH B AT R T IIHRE= Tier 2 capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
48 AN REARZERE (n[3t ASGFEE subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in -
EH A AR ) Tier 2 capital of the consolidation group)
" Hifr (B 2y B T Z A HE R |of which: capital instruments issued by subsidiaries )
LRI E A subject to phase-out arrangements
50 GEMRET A RE RN ERERHS R Collective provisions and regulatory reserve for general 1.800 ©)
—REERTT S b B R banking risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital ’
51 |BEEHDRZ A 4 &S Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,800
TREA  BEEHIR Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
52 A HEREAR B — 4 E AR ERE IS Investments in own Tier 2 capital instruments -
53 | R XIFAN _HEARZERE Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 capital instruments -
. i o Insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
N B 85 4 s ] [ 1 o iy 2 i it
;ﬁ;% Z};iﬁ[}#gg};%:iiéiﬂ instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
54 ;TEE] 05??;;); Casmr) 50]% outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount -
f; - on i = ’ above 10% threshold and, where applicable, 5%
280 threshold)
RSB DNk ese  |Insignificant LAC investments in non-capital LAC
IEEALACA EMIEE KLACHYE liabilities of financial sector entities that are outside the
saa ( Z BiHs E BB S %Pl g {E 1% |scope of regulatory consolidation (amount formerly )
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Not applicable

9 EFERETEBERRBEESE Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EA) (H)
(i) BERRCCL : #A2023412H31H (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2023
BB M (R B - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
IRBEE SR EEE) (&)
REUEESCBEETE
EABRERNSERE AR
7
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
BZg| sheet under the regulatory
(% 000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
i o s Significant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
N B 5 42 O \ 4B ity
55 gjj::g% %%iiﬂgégggigfiéig instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
’Eg ?lei/_\i T%;gg ) XA outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of )
PR = = . . e
eligible short positions)
v e . Significant LAC investments 1n non-capital LAC
N B 5 42 O \ A B ity
55 Q%EXI?\CV;:{IES’]@ éﬁ{igig%i?; liabilities of financial sector entities that are outside the
a K gai:’ﬂ # %_%\ES A scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short )
PAERIRE positions)
RN R E AN 5 A E S National specific regulatory adjustments applied to Tier 2
56 |en . (142,665)
B capital
bl 1 s Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising from the
IIELE e A — 4 BRI - B e i o . 3
s6a |H5Em ([ R RIGE R T EE revaluation of lan an) 1u1bl1n]gcs (ow?—use an - (142.665) [@)+B)+8)]
- N o investment properties) eligible for inclusion in Tier ’ *45%
N ==YANNV pas
AT BT S canital
mE (& I == Az B
s6b gTé/g‘KfE_J?&ii%)g;ﬂ; éaii%ﬁ Regulatory deductions applied to Tier 2 capital to cover
jﬁt"dm AR —SR AR = B the required deductions falling within §48(1)(g) of BCR i
NE
57 | B B AR HIRAEEE Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital (142,665)
58 | ZE&REA Tier 2 capital (T2) 144,465
EEEAEE (BEX = —G&FE .
59 mE . : Total regulatory capital (TC = T1 + T2) 539,959
=) s
60 |EERIItEGEE Total RWA 633,328
BALE(ERBIESERN TS L)  |Capital ratios (as a percentage of RWA)
61 |CET1 EALLR CET]1 capital ratio 62.45%
62 |—&EARLER Tier 1 capital ratio 62.45%
63 |4EE AR Total capital ratio 85.26%
eI BB ETE AR ([j#45E%E  |Institution-specific buffer requirement (capital
64 |AREEZE N EEIEETEARLEE conservation buffer plus countercyclical capital 8.00%
e R U RS TERE ST R ) buffer plus higher loss absorbency requirements)
65 | H b : s il & R R of which: capital conservation buffer requirement 2.500%
66 A - R A AR T of which: bank specific countercyclical capital buffer 1.000%
ZEK requirement : °
67 | A - BE R IR PR TR of which: higher loss absorbency requirement 0.00%
68 FERFE R EEARR EZ e L#E HAY CETI (as a percentage of RWA) available after meeting 54.45%
CET1 ({5E Bt 8Zan & 5rEL ) minimum capital requirements 70
EEEREEREIE (G0 (B . s -
—\ = D National minima (if different from Basel 3 minimum
=) RIEERRRE) { )
69 |EEEEECETH{EEER National CET1 minimum ratio I@‘fﬂ K@fﬁ
Not applicable Not applicable
s e . . . . 3 A A3
H R — A A R LR National Tier 1 t _ ,
70 [FIREHREE A R ational et T minimurm ratio Not applicable Not applicable
71 |EEEEEEE R KRR National Total capital minimum ratio A A

Not applicable
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over cap after redemptions and maturities)

9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
FEBE) ()
(i) BEHRCCI © 13202312 H31H (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2023
B AR 7 SH R (RSB - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
MR E SR 21 ()
KR EEGREHE &
EAERNSERERMR
B
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
BZH| sheet under the regulatory
(FE¥EE'000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before
N 3 7% i
R ITRPIEHIRE (BBRIIMER) visk welghting)
EEEGGHIE M ERE TR ST Insignificant LAC investments in CET1, AT1 and Tier 2
72 |WJCETIEARZEE - ATIEARNEE F — 4 capital instruments issued by financial sector entities that -
RERIIEE KLACKE are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
et e At ] e L Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital instruments
ERE ST A HE DM S RICE TR ST 18 . . priat]
73 HICET1 A St A LACIY issued by financial sector entities that are outside the -
FURIE e scope of regulatory consolidation
74 PABSHEE M (EERAERRAY IR IEF IE Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated deferred tax A5 PSR
&) liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
75 AT M= B AR IRERIEE E (B30 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences RE St
FAERR A IR AR IE & (R ) (net of associated deferred tax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
S 5 5 ) Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier
AT A ARG S R PP P P
2 capital
R ARSI, [T e T
76 |STC:%%% SEC-ERBA. SEC-SA & P ! PpIoact, . 1,800
SEC.FBA R4 (MM 1-IRAT) approach and SEC-ERBA, SEC-SA and SEC-FBA (prior
+ VS . to application of cap)
TEBSCEHE A STCE B K SEC- Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the BSC
77 |ERBA. SEC-SA K SEC- approach, or the STC approach, and SEC-ERBA, SEC- 9,416
FBAT 3 A ~SRE AT & LR SA and SEC-FBA
AT A A RIIRBE S B Provisions ehglble for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
78 SEC-IRBA R4 (&R IR exposures subject to the IRB approach and SEC-IRBA -
) s LS Al (prior to application of cap)
19 TEIRBEHEE K SEC- Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the IRB
IRBA FAJ3F A 4R A it & FR approach and SEC-IRBA _
: N - Capital instruments subject to phase-out
ZESEREIRRI AR (EE arrl:mgements(only apleicable tl:etween 1 Jan 2018 and
201841 5 1 H%202241 5 1 H B )
1 Jan 2022)
%0 PRI LRI CET1 R ZZ 8 Current cap on CETI capital instruments subject to N3 AN
7T FIR [phase-out arrangements Not applicable Not applicable
81 HPREE FIRTT 51 A CETI 178088 (1 Amount excluded from CETI due to cap (excess over cap A3 A3t
FFRIE o] R FIHTIR 8 H IR = %) after redemptions and maturities) Not applicable Not applicable
82 FIFHE N AR T AT K H Current cap on ATI capital instruments subject to phase-
77 LR out arrangements .
83 IR E T FIRITTAREFA AT ZR078088 ( Amount excluded from ATI capital due to cap (excess
ZEE T NEa] R BRI EEHH [IR = %) over cap after redemptions and maturities) i
84 FIFH I Z IR 4R BN T E Current cap on Tier 2 capital instruments subject to
77 LR [phase-out arrangements .
g5 IR B FIRTT A AA ZRE R HTE8E ( Amount excluded from Tier 2 capital due to cap (excess
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EBE) (8)
() BEHRCCT © 1R2023FE 1231 HEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2023
BEAES YRR > SH R (RSB - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
BB B AERE) (§)
TEERA BT - Notes to the Template:
BBERE (EZ=EHE=)
TH|AE Description Hong Kong Foom
basis Basel 111 basis
9 HitEEEE (EHIRHBRREREERE) Other intangible assets (net of associated deferred
tax liabilities) ) ]
fik Explanation
FAIEERZE RN (BEBHE=) X As set out in paragraph 87 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel Committee (December 2010),
A (20101F12 7 ) SE8TERARAIE: » ffaftaeE mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”) may be given limited recognition in CET1 capital (and hence be
MR {ECETIE AN TFLLEREMRDE (IFH excluded from deduction from CET1 capital up to the specified threshold). In Hong Kong, an Al is
B CET IS ALK wE 285 » (HUFSE required to follow the accounting treatment of including MSRs as part of intangible assets reported in
PO IR ) - fEF - SUA MR R the AI's financial statements and to deduct MSRs in full from CET1 capital. Therefore, the amount to
Gt R o R S FREY | A L be deducted as reported in row 9 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
T BRI S R — 5> » M{ECET reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 9 (i.e.
V& th 2 SR IR LSS RE - R 15 the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amount of MSRs to be
%_éﬁﬁﬁfﬁi&?ﬁ??ﬂiﬁcﬂ’ﬂ%{@ﬂﬁé@%ﬁ’* (E deducted to the extent not in excess of the 10% threshold set for MSRs and the aggregate 15%
FEF Y, ﬂ£;> %ﬂi?ﬁ?[{f}aﬁiﬂ’ﬂéﬁzé’ﬁ , Ezli%ﬁmﬂ'ﬂ threshold set for MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary differences and significant investments in
r <E%%ﬁ]]]i§: >\ﬁ;5§ ! IE#'E?—&E’J%@EP& CET1 capital instruments issued by financial sector entities (excluding those that are loans, facilities
SR E@E%%%ﬁ@i&ﬂ’ﬂ%(éﬁ CEIfE & /% or other credit exposures to connected companies) under Basel III.
FAE | T TEVEEE) o MR AR A
HR RS At CE BB T LU T aH » SRR
HBE (CIERBE=) TR atE g
FRERY10% i Rl da (g e B - iy
M7 FLFTE A AR AL RV A E BT e R SE TR
BTCETIEARBIERIGE (NEFEE
AN EIRE - Bl s S AR R
WERTEE ) FTERT1S%EEREFTE RR -
10 REMIEEE (BEHIREHGREREE®) Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred tax
liabilities) ) )
frg Explanation

IEAEIERZE S ST (EERBE=)
7% (20104R12 ) 569K 8TERFFIE » 15
TP UEBARIER I & 0 T > T
IR P SUH R IR AR T & A R P AECET L EE
FATLAIRMEHERY (R ATHECETIER
FUHR P HEERER - (ELSEFMERIRD - 27/
B T AR EENACR - SRR HEAECET
VAR P2 A R IERIHAE - Bt
TEEE 1 0FT AR ARV BRI SE g = ¢
EEEM L =) M AHURAVEER - AN
0" (EZEREED) A% T T ERIEEE
FoSCH R S5 1 077 Ffr DR e 9 50 B R KRR Y
TESE 10T TRrEE RIS (BN7E " &A1
TEERHEER) o TR AR R R
T 1 72 B BRI IR AR T 25 A A T DA T o
AP AR (E2EREBE=) TRtk
FERLPTEE AR AV IR AER T P E AV 10%F I e
LS IGE BN - T M2 S A AR Y ik
IERUHEE RN SRR E R R TAVCETI AR
ERNVEARE (FEEBERNAERAFRNEG
A B AL R B RREE ) FTERY
BEGIS%PIE AR -

As set out in paragraphs 69 and 87 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel Committee (December
2010), DTAs of the bank to be realized are to be deducted, whereas DTAs which relate to temporary|
differences may be given limited recognition in CET1 capital (and hence be excluded from deduction
from CET]1 capital up to the specified threshold). In Hong Kong, an Al is required to deduct all DTAs
in full, irrespective of their origin, from CET1 capital. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as
reported in row 10 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount reported under the
column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 10 (i.e. the amount reported
under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amount of DTAs to be deducted which relate
to temporary differences to the extent not in excess of the 10% threshold set for DTAs arising from
temporary differences and the aggregate 15% threshold set for MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary
differences and significant investments in CET1 capital instruments issued by financial sector entities
(excluding those that are loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies) under|
Basel 1L
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EBE) (8)
(i) BERRCCL : A20234F12 831 HEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2023
BERZHBR (R B -RIBEESE (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EE) (&)
TERRATEE © (48) Notes to the Template: (Continued)
B (BEEFEHE=)
TE|IRAE Description Hong Kong FoxE
basis Basel 111 basis
NEEEGZAREDIINISRZE BTN Insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
CETIEAEBNIEERLACKE (BH10% instruments issued by financial sector entities that
18 P2 80)) are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation B -
(amount above 10% threshold)
fiE e Explanation
BETENR SR TS TICETIE A ZEEMN For the purpose of determining the total amount of insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
FFEARLACK E4REE - 2 o T R R it instruments issued by financial sector entities, an Al is required to aggregate any amount of loans,
T AT B 4 B S B B I 7 )\ E T T 8 facilities or other credit exposures provided by it to any of its connected companies, where the
FAMYEEL - BB o H (S A R R IE &5 t4E connected company is a financial sector entity, as if such loans, facilities or other credit exposures
BH 0 SRR - BB A A R RIS were direct holdings, indirect holdings or synthetic holdings of the Al in the capital instruments of the
T IUEI MR E RS - R A AR A% financial sector entity, except where the Al demonstrates to the satisfaction of the MA that any such
SRR E AT S A MR RE loan was made, any such facility was granted, or any such other credit exposure was incurred, in the
[ e ol T L 2 SN (o L s T MR S A ordinary course of the Al's business. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as reported in row 18 may|
F o SRR P B A 3% S s ~ L be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount reported under the column "Basel III basis"
S B e S [T T 3% S P R in this box represents the amount reported in row 18 (i.e. the amount reported under the "Hong Kong|
RIBRSN o R » 155 1877 P s H THIURAYEL basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the
IR EE R (CEHERES) HE IR Al's connected companies which were subject to deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
B - AN T (EZER T =) H%E
T PR Y SRR s SRR AR Y AE 55 1 8TT RSy
B (HIME T BB ) TN ESRIEE)
a5 7 2 R PR BB BRI T A T H T
RARE AT A S A EIRY AR BliE s
it P B ARE ) & 5 T 48EE -
RESEEESHE DI SHETERTH Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
CETIEAEBHNE RLACIEE (BH10%P9 instruments issued by financial sector entities that
19

v Y

are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - -
(amount above 10% threshold)

e

R ER ERIEH AR TRICET I AR
HARLACR LS » sl i R
LA <t i R Y T R N B A B
YRR ~ Rl B A (S R b R HE Y ST 4
» BEAIRE SRR Rl B (S R R By
WA E R - MR A RER A% E
RICE ISRV B A S — A - B wl AT AE [
<RE L B AN (0 S 4Rl T AR R A
R R TP MM E S - # T
SERE B B T 3% S A (5 A e HE o
BRob o RIL > 1225 197 T A/ T HTRE B
AREGER (BERE=) FEFHIRITE
B o TR T (EERGES) A% IH
T HEERAYEER Ry A SR BRI L 55 1 9T AT L SR 8L
(R TEBAAE ) TH T ERAYEE) o T
R IEERRET BRI INE T AT
FYFE TR A I A FIAT R Rl S A
15 R R HE R A5 48E -

Explanation

For the purpose of determining the total amount of significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities, an Al is required to aggregate any amount of loans,
facilities or other credit exposures provided by it to any of its connected companies, where the
connected company is a financial sector entity, as if such loans, facilities or other credit exposures
were direct holdings, indirect holdings or synthetic holdings of the Al in the capital instruments of the
financial sector entity, except where the Al demonstrates to the satisfaction of the MA that any such
loan was made, any such facility was granted, or any such other credit exposure was incurred, in the
ordinary course of the Al's business. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as reported in row 19 may|
be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount reported under the column "Basel III basis"
in this box represents the amount reported in row 19 (i.e. the amount reported under the "Hong Kong|
basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the
Al's connected companies which were subject to deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EBE) (8)
(i) BERRCCL : A20234F12 831 HEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2023
BERZHBR (R B -RIBEESE (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EE) (&)
MERRATEE © (88) Notes to the Template: (Continued)
B (BEEFEHE=)
TE|IRAE Description Hong Kong FoxE
basis Basel I1I basis
NEEEGZATREIINISRZE BTN Insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital
ATIEAEBNIEEALACKEE (BH10%P9 instruments issued by financial sector entities that
39 (8D are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - -
(amount above 10% threshold)
R Explanation
BN EEAREBIT B T EEREE The effect of treating loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies which are
BEEA B\ E AV EER ~ RluE s E A (S E G financial sector entities as CET1 capital instruments for the purpose of considering deductions to be
EIERBCETIEAER (R FCAEREL made in calculating the capital base (see note re row 18 to the template above) will mean the
SITHIMTEE ) (EHIIRATEEE » e <A mn headroom within the threshold available for the exemption from capital deduction of other
EATIE AEEIH A IEE K LACIR EHIEA insignificant LAC investments in AT capital instruments may be smaller. Therefore, the amount to
ISR ER S P 2 R W RE A B/ - IR > 1 be deducted as reported in row 39 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
39T A TR EE T e e =i (2 reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 39 (i.e.
EEWES) BEEHRITEGE « 1A the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of]
C(EZEREGES) B E N ERARES loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the Al's connected companies which were subject to
SRR I S 397 TR FE SR e (BIAE T Bk deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
FAE | T TIEVEEE) o MR AE bR
TEB AN ITE T A TR rI A
N EIRVER - RlE s A (S R R dE Ry
EratEE -
REREESHEYMISHETESTH Insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
_RERZEBHFEERLACKE (EH10% instruments issued by financial sector entities that
54 (MR (CANEH) S%ME 8 are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - -

(amount above 10% threshold and, where
applicable, 5% threshold)

fre

RNt R AR B R T8 SRR
AR A AN TR G~ Rl A5 A e
HRYER BCETIE AR (R ESUARIBAREE 18
TTAYMSEE ) A LRI &R - RSB

T AR A A SIS H A I F B RLACT Y A
HUREER S P =R T RE A A/ - BRI -

TEESSATTHTHASR A TR BEH T e g =it ¢
EEEM A =) M AHURAVEER - AN
0" (EZEREED) A% T T ERIEEE
SRR TE S SAT TR PRIV B (BIE T &

AEERE | TH N ESRAVEED o R TTAEER

PRAEE RV T304 T H THIRATRE rT i
AHEN TR Bl A R I
Y EataRas -

Explanation

The effect of treating loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies which are
financial sector entities as CET1 capital instruments for the purpose of considering deductions to be
made in calculating the capital base (see note re row 18 to the template above) will mean the
headroom within the threshold available for the exemption from capital deduction of other|
insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital instruments may be smaller. Therefore, the amount to
be deducted as reported in row 54 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 54 (i.e.
the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of]
loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the Al's connected companies which were subject to
deduction under the Hong Kong approach.

i
ESTHER10%PHE R SUP B R DI (2
) MR AP AR 7 AR ICET1
AR AR ST - 5% PR R S
ZEGHILM (BEBHES) K (20105
125 ) SS8ELFTHE « MBS AR -

e

Remarks:

The amount of the 10% threshold and 5% threshold mentioned above is calculated based on the
amount of CETI capital determined in accordance with the deduction methods set out in BCR
Schedule 4F. The 15% threshold is referring to paragraph 88 of the Basel IlI text issued by the Basel
Committee (December 2010) and has no effect to the Hong Kong regime.
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BAGH IR BN (FRIBEES
EELE) (&)

() BERRCCL * 1220234E6 H30H

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2023

EEEAR MR (RSB - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
MR B E SR )
REUEESCBEETE
EABERNSFRERMKR
7
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
B(ZH| sheet under the regulatory
(G&¥E'000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
5 - TE=ER
gﬁﬂ;ﬁg BCETHER : R fet CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
1 HBER{THAECETIEAZEENfE  |Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instruments 264,987 .
A8 BE IR 7 ks (E plus any related share premium > (€]
RE A Retained earnings 398,511 @)
CRE A Disclosed reserves 5,283 (3)+(@4)+(5)+(6)
Py . , N P Directly issued capital subject to phase-out . .
4 %ﬁCEglﬁgﬁfﬁﬁﬁj%ﬁfj arlrang)e}nients ﬁ‘orﬁlCET 1 ;OZIy aﬁplicabl@ to non-joint N tz:ﬁlfﬁ b N tz:ﬁlfﬁ bl
KA (RBHRIFERA A stock companies) ot applicabie ot applicable
HEFEIRTTHT B A SIS T RS = Minority interests arising from CET1 capital
5 FHARCETIEAZEEAN)/VEEEE  |instruments issued by consolidated bank subsidiaries
fEzs (E A4S EEENICETIA AN  |and held by third parties (amount allowed in CET1 -
LEED) capital of the consolidation group)
6 |ESEEIEE Y FIHICETIEA CET1 capital before regulatory adjustments 668,781
CETIEA : BEEHIR CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
7 |{d{EFEE Valuation adjustments -
8 |EE (EIIERIEERIEAE) Goodwill (net of associated deferred tax liabilities) -
9 HitrfEE (CHREBIIEER Other intangible assets (net of associated deferred tax ]
HAR) liabilities)
IRIEMIEE E (OIS B AR R Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred tax
10 - e -
THEE) liabilities)
11 | B B Cash flow hedge reserve -
1 EIRBEFEE TELAAZEB L S B H#EF  |Excess of total EL amount over total eligible provisions
SBHEE under the IRB approach B
HHES 77 L2 S 2 AR R THE AV AL A Credit-enhancing interest-only strip, and any gain-on-
13 | 2548 ~ HEURES CETIEARRH A |sale and other increase in the CET1 capital arising from -
e securitization transactions
14 AP EEGEENEERESNEH Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on
JE\Fi S e iy A Y4B R fair valued liabilities -
15 FUE AR IR SR e EE (T Defined benefit pension fund net assets (net of
FrAR kA IR AERTIH & ) associated deferred tax liabilities) -
IERER B HICETIEAZEAIIEE ( |Investments in own CETI capital instruments (if not
16 B RERENEEABERRRE already netted off paid-in capital on reported balance -
G A PR ) sheet)
17 |G XFFENCETIEAZR Reciprocal cross-holdings in CET1 capital instruments -
e o i Insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
PR B S R LM insful;lents issued lrJl;// ﬁnancrzlial 1sector entithels that are
18 |#ATHICETIEARZEENIIEE RLACK: . - -
2 (R 10%PTHE > 8 outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount
= o above 10% threshold)
s e At T I Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
E@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ’?l\ﬁ@(ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ? in;gtruments issued by financial sector entli)ties that are
19 [B{THICETI EAEHENEALACKE . - -
B 10%PHE > ) outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount
(8 i above 10% threshold)
2 HHEEAETME (EAUPRERRIVIELE Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated deferred tax A3 A3
MIE&(E) liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
2 TR M 2 B A R IR TEE 7 ( Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences E S| A3
EFIRAR AR IR T & ) (net of associated deferred tax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
22 |HBH15% T > 8 Amount exceeding the 15% threshold A5t FANot applicable | A<jii FiNot applicable
3 Hep o R emZEE R mRTE R of which: significant investments in the ordinary share A3 EST
fa= of financial sector entities Not applicable Not applicable
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9 EFERETEBERRBEESE Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EA) (H)
(i) BERRCC * #A2023%£6H30H (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2023
BB AR 4R (RSB - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
RBEEGEER) (§)
KEUEEGEHET
HEARRNSEBHRE
R
Source based on
reference numbers of the
balance sheet under the
BZE regulatory scope of|
(% 000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount consolidation
24 |Hrh o B At EE R of which: mortgage servicing rights 36 I Not applicable K3t i Not applicable
Hoob o TR M R A A R SRR TE of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary A ESCN
25 |2 : . .
B differences Not applicable Not applicable
P CETIE AR A EHEE S EE;  |National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1
26 | . 274,283
ik capital
S R EEEEY) (B ERIEERR) Cumulative fair value gains arising from the revaluation
26a |BEITEEEMGMESN EBAFEEE of land and buildings (own-use and investment 272,483 (3)+(8)
U zs properties)
26b | —f%SRTT R B BE i Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,800 (6)
2% S RVEHE S48 TR ATTEHNEE Securitization exposures specified in a notice given by
[ g i -
AL JE R A the MA
26d Rt A 1Y 3 5 @S BT Cumulative losses below depreciated cost arising from
BB B T P A 0 R AR the institution's holdings of land and buildings )
26e | ZHEIERITIH B A\ SN E AR K Capital shortfall of regulated non-bank subsidiaries -
INEEFEE TR A HE N\ S TAYE  |Capital investment in a connected company which is a
26f | AHEE (HBHHHREEEARBEI15  [commercial entity (amount above 15% of the reporting -
% 81 institution's capital base)
RS T IEMATIE AR K &R DL Regulatory deductions applied to CET1 capital due to
27 | ZEIECETIEARHIRAVES 1 |insufficient AT1 capital and Tier 2 capital to cover -
N5 deductions
28 |BCETIEANEEHIRKEZE Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 274,283
29 |CET1 &4 CET]1 capital 394,498
ATIEAR : Eig AT1 capital: instruments
30 EEATIE R ZS A B Qualifying AT1 capital instruments plus any related share
it premium )
31 o iR A S ERT B ASE  |of which: classified as equity under applicable
el accounting standards )
1 Hoor o fRE s Y R A& of which: classified as liabilities under applicable
| accounting standards i
s NN e Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
L 2% R It 1T 25 7 . . -
33 e ATI EI@/E/&EH7E SNIR fromAT] capital
H4EEIRITINE A ST HE =T AT1 capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
34 |FFEMATIEARZE (A3t A4S HE subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in -
EIATIE RN EEE ) AT1 capital of the consolidation group)
35 At B LN G T YE R |of which: ATI capital instruments issued by subsidiaries
FHEHIRATATI &K 2ZpE subject to phase-out arrangements .
36 |BEEHIRZRINATIE A AT1 capital before regulatory deductions -
37 |INMEREA SIIATIE R Z BN E Investments in own ATI capital instruments -
38 | B NIF A IATI E AR Reciprocal cross-holdings in AT1 capital instruments -
St e s ] s Insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital
e R S AR UM R RICR TR ins;t%’ur;lentls1 issuedlb; ﬁnanciallsector ent?tlies that are
39 |BITHIATIEARZERIIEERLACK de th ¢ regul lidati -
2 (R 0% 1) outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount
= o above 10% threshold)
e AL o Significant LAC investments in AT1 capital instruments
4 |[PEBEESSEEL I RETE  [0F . e that o
0 STHIAT I A S B A LACHY S issued by financial sector entities that are outside the -
8 AP A scope of regulatory consolidation
a1 WEHARATIE AN S A S i National specific regulatory adjustments applied to AT1
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9 BREEETEBN(RBEESE Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
SR (&)
() HARCCL © 73202346 H30H (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2023
BEEEE R > AH R (R - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
R E G EERE) (E)
IR BB EHE T
HEABERNSEREY
R
Source based on
reference numbers of the
balance sheet under the
B5E regulatory scope of
(% 000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount| consolidation
ATIEAR @ BEEHTK AT1 capital: regulatory deductions
0 KGHE TR 4 E AL ZE  |Regulatory deductions applied to AT1 capital due to .
TEATVE AR LS R, insufficient Tier 2 capital to cover deductions
43 | HATIEANEE S HIREEZE Total regulatory deductions to AT1 capital R
44 |ATIEAR AT1 capital -
45 A—fflgjé)( THEA =CETIRA + | capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1) 394,498
ZREA BB R EES Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
46 EEE R E AR N A FH B R Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any related i
izt share premium
S AR — 4 e . e Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
= L R S - ] ) ’ _
Ml R e e from Tier 2 capital
A4 ERITH B A TR T IHE= Tier 2 capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
48 IFEN R EARZERE (n[3t ASGFESE subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in -
[y — AR ) Tier 2 capital of the consolidation group)
19 o BN B T A WE ) of which: capital instruments issued by subsidiaries )
LRI &R subject to phase-out arrangements
50 EERE A BB RN EEESE S Collective provisions and regulatory reserve for general . ©
— R SRTT S b L banking risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital >
51 |BEEINRZ AN R ES Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,800
TRER - BEEHIR Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
52 |INMERER B 4 EARNEIBEIEE Investments in own Tier 2 capital instruments -
53 |G N AN _E AR Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 capital instruments -
" - et Insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
A B A 4 A \ 7 o iy 2 i
g}gj}g; il zgii%#g;gg%:ﬁﬁéiﬂ instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
54 ;?EEEO(?FEHE;; ConiEr ) SU/?E] outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount -
/?; n on i = ’ above 10% threshold and, where applicable, 5%
i 2 0 threshold)
e E ST S HIE DM e RIE RS Insignificant LAC investments in non-capital LAC
HIEEARLACEENIEE KLACKE liabilities of financial sector entities that are outside the
S4a (ZHiHHs & BIES%P IS E B{H K2 1%  |scope of regulatory consolidation (amount formerly] i
RNEFEMIEGEE) (HEAPD designated for the 5% threshold but no longer meets the
T (BEARHKAD) HEAFE2(OFE T conditions) (for institutions defined as “section 2
EEE TEMEHRE | ) institution” under §2(1) of Schedule 4F to BCR only)
e et Significant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
N B AL 4 AR A E ity
55 ‘gﬁ\fﬁ; % %ii#g;gifi%ﬁj% instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
zg D;;\i 5;; A outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of .
ke e E) eligible short positions)
e et Significant LAC investments in non-capital LAC
N B AL 4 S R A E it
55 g%ﬁ;ié%j{fg Ej(ézll:ij;’%f (E%%ﬁu liabilities of financial sector entities that are outside the
a $i:,x 5?\%5\ A scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short .
bresifarig) positions)
56 N BRI S A National specific regulatory adjustments applied to Tier 2 (142.874)

99




BIHART)

liabilities)
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Not applicable

9 BREEETEBN(RBEESE Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EERE) (&)
(i) FERRCCL © 12023465 30H (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2023
BB AR Y HR (REE- (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
REE SRS AR (§)
KEUEEGEHETE
EAERNSZ R
7
Source based on
reference numbers of the
balance sheet under the
BZE regulatory scope of]
(GE¥E'000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount consolidation
sl 1 Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising from the
B B A — S - i o il (o . 3
s6a s (@RISR ETEE revaluation of land an lulbllng?s (owil-use an Ter (142,874) [2)+3B)*+(8)]
- N o investment properties) eligible for inclusion in Tier ? *45%
o T 2 1 B PR ey properties) cle '
78 (& 11y 28 GtH o2
s6b fET*gﬁjgﬁﬂ_sz’(ig;glg)ﬂ{? f“ g[ﬁ]ﬁ Regulatory deductions applied to Tier 2 capital to cover
:ﬂé’b[m WAE—H PR B the required deductions falling within §48(1)(g) of BCR .
57 |H BRI AEEE Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital (142,874)
58 |Z4REA Tier 2 capital (T2) 144,674
=g Py = —4fE
59 m?ﬁ?':‘%gﬁ (REA BAEK Total regulatory capital (TC = T1 + T2) 539,172
+ ZREE)
60 |EpEIIREEERE Total RWA 698,177
BEARLER(LEEIIEEENE 2 L) Capital ratios (as a percentage of RWA)
61 |CET1 BEALLR CET1 capital ratio 56.50%
62 | —&EAREER Tier 1 capital ratio 56.50%
63 |4EEAREER Total capital ratio 77.23%
et B ETEATR ([5#£45E % |Institution-specific buffer requirement (capital
64 |AREEZR f FHISEE AL 1 conservation buffer plus countercyclical capital 8.00%
i = I UL S HERE T EEZR ) buffer plus higher loss absorbency requirements)
65 | H 1 - [ A R of which: capital conservation buffer requirement 2.500%
i1 o fRITREE B GE A KA |of which: bank specific countercyclical capital buffer
66 . . 1.000%
Eg requirement
67 | Hf7 : BE IR ETIEEE T F K of which: higher loss absorbency requirement 0.00%
68 FERF R ERE AR EZ A AHERRY CETI (as a percentage of RWA) available after meeting 48.50%
CET1 ({2 bt Bearny = o EL) minimum capital requirements Ov7e
EEEEEEEEER 58 (EEH . S .
= = NN National minima (if different from Basel 3 minimum
WE=) BIEERAR) ( )
69 |EAEEECETIR{REER National CET1 minimum ratio Z:ﬁﬁ Z:ﬁﬁ
Not applicable Not applicable
70 |ElEERE - R RIEER National Tier 1 minimum ratio R i i
Not applicable Not applicable
. e . o . A3 N3
B A EEEEE R B National Total capital t . .
71 |EEEEEEE R (KRR ational Total capital minimum ratio Not applicable Not applicable
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before
) £ Lo e
Er R EE (Rugmienn) (OO E
NEEEGEHBELDIMISRIFEER  |Insignificant LAC investments in CET1, AT1 and Tier 2
72 |EfTICETIEAZEE: - ATIEARZEYE  |capital instruments issued by financial sector entities that -
o AR E AR E AN IEE KLACKE are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
s e At T o e Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
WEBREGSHELSM SRR | o : . i
73 BETFICET & A 2 b ) B A LACHY & instruments issued by financial sector entities that are -
alel HARIR X |outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
74 B TR (IR R IT Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated deferred tax A3 A3 F
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BAGEHEAREL(RBEEGS
) (8)

(i) BERRCCL ¢ 2202356 H30H

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2023

BRZHE (R EX- (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
REEE SRS A (8)
REMEEGEBETE
EARRNSEREAR
B
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
E%H| sheet under the regulatory
(HE%000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
75 AR M = B E ANV RERIEEE (B4 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences R A ARt
R A A === ®) (net of associated deferred tax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
PO Ry e 5 \ Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier
= Y S S
BLaT A= AR R R 2 capital
i RS [ e b e e el
76 :;g:i£)§ ?EC'ERB%‘ SEC'Sf s approach and SEC-ERBA, SEC-SA and SEC-FBA (prior 1,800
FBATHYAEM S (JEH ERAT) to application of cap)
TEBSCEHEABSTCE A K SEC- Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the BSC
77 |ERBA, SEC-SA J; SEC- approach, or the STC approach, and SEC-ERBA, SEC- 10,310
FBA N5+ A A ARER & EIR SA and SEC-FBA
. N e NN Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
AL PATECs S > N
78 ISIIE? ﬁiﬁ?gﬁ%@fﬁzﬁfqﬁgiﬁlﬁ?ﬁgﬁfﬁ exposures subject to the IRB approach and SEC-IRBA -
) TR (& <Rl (prior to application of cap)
19 TFIRBETEE K SEC- Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the IRB
IRBA F AJ3F A SRR H s 4 LR approach and SEC-IRBA ]
= N - Capital instruments subject to phase-out
B RS A B
igfﬂ%ggfﬁﬁggﬁ?%ﬁ %%?—:20 arrangements (only applicable between 1 Jan 2018
IS and 1 Jan 2022)
20 ZIFH LRI CET1 AR ZZfEHT Current cap on CETI capital instruments subject to A3 A3
BT FIR phase-out arrangements Not applicable Not applicable
81 R E i FEIRITT A 1A CET1 #8088 (1F Amount excluded from CETI due to cap (excess over cap A A
FFRHE o] R FHER 6 EE HE IR 26 ) after redemptions and maturities) Not applicable Not applicable
82 FIFHE N AR TAT] K fE 1 H Current cap on ATI capital instruments subject to phase- )
77 LR out arrangements
%3 R E T LRI EIA AT ZEK078088 ( Amount excluded from ATI capital due to cap (excess )
TEF RAE o] R EHFEHIRAE & HE IR = %) over cap after redemptions and maturities)
” PRI A R AR R EE B Current cap on Tier 2 capital instruments subject to )
77 FR |phase-out arrangements
85 R E T LRI A A R E K858 ( Amount excluded from Tier 2 capital due to cap (excess i

1E& | RG] R EVHHIR & LR =2

over cap after redemptions and maturities)
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EBE) (8)
(i) BERRCCL : JR20234FE6 H30HEEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2023
BARZ R (REEZ-TRBESEES (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EERE) (&)
TEERR BT - Notes to the Template:
BBERE (EZEEHE=)
TH|AE Description Hong Kong Foom
basis Basel 111 basis
N HEirmeEE (B AEBrVRIEREER®) Other intangible assets (net of associated deferred i i
tax liabilities)
fik Explanation
FAIEERZE RN (BEBHE=) X As set out in paragraph 87 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel Committee (December 2010),
A (2010128 ) EESTERFTAIE, - 8 HLE mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”) may be given limited recognition in CET1 capital (and hence be
MR {ECETIE AN TFLLEREMRDE (IFH excluded from deduction from CET]1 capital up to the specified threshold). In Hong Kong, an Al is
B CET IS ALK P wEEa5s: » (HUFSE required to follow the accounting treatment of including MSRs as part of intangible assets reported in
P AR ) o (E5H - Pl E RIS E R the AI's financial statements and to deduct MSRs in full from CET1 capital. Therefore, the amount to
Gt R o R S F RS A L be deducted as reported in row 9 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
T B AL S R — 5> » MECET reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 9 (i.e.
V& th - SR IR LSS RE - R 1 the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amount of MSRs to be
%_éﬁﬁﬁfﬁi&?ﬁ??ﬂiﬁcﬂ@%{@ﬂﬁé@%ﬁ’* (E= deducted to the extent not in excess of the 10% threshold set for MSRs and the aggregate 15%
FEF Y, ﬁg;> %ﬂiéﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬂ@é&é’ﬁ , Ezli%ﬁmﬂ'ﬂ threshold set for MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary differences and significant investments in
r <E%%Tfﬁji§: >\ﬁ;5§ ! IET‘—\IE?—&E@%Z%’E)% CET]1 capital instruments issued by financial sector entities (excluding those that are loans, facilities
SR E@E%%%ﬁ@?ﬁﬂ@ﬁiéﬁ CElfE T & /% or other credit exposures to connected companies) under Basel III.
FAE | T TIEVEEE) o MR AR A
HRRI R At CE BB T LU T o » SRR
HBE (CIERBE=) TR atE g
FRERY10% i Rl da (o e B ~ iy
M7 FLPTE A AR AL RV A E BT e R SE TR
BTHCETIEARBIERIGE (NEEE
$AEBN TR - Bl s S R R
EMIEE ) BB 15%F R8I B IR -
10 BRIEMBEEE (BEHIBRHEHBREREEE) Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred tax
liabilities) ) )
fiF e Explanation

FUNEEHZEGHHN (BEHBE=) X
A (20105121 ) 5569 K 8TERFTHI#: » TR
177 DA R IR AER T A T HIR » 1 By
HE M= BA R R e T E FE R A fECET1 &
ANTLAREREE (LR CETIEA
HIFLR P ERER - (HLUEEPIERBIR) - £F
o RwARIEENACE » S8 i HEEEECET
1EA P EHHURFTE R EREEE - NI -
EE 107 T FHE SR E TR EEE R RE &= it (
EIEF T E =) HESHURATEEE - AR
1T (EERRES) % H T EREEE
oA B AE 55 1077 AT PE SRy B8 o K FR B 1y
EE 10 TRTE RS EEE (BIE T &R | 1
THEEREER) o TSR TR AR
7 A BT IR AE AR T A A R T DA T A
AR (EEEBE =) T
72 B BT 7 AR I U AERR TE 7 T XE 119 10 %[ 48 K
AR HERE TERE - HHRTHS I 78 ST A 1R
TEFRTEE E BN SRS E A TICETIE A
HREAKE (NaEEEEEEASNE
R~ BB ECHAE R BRIENREE ) FTER
LR 15%PIE BB -

As set out in paragraphs 69 and 87 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel Committee (December|
2010), DTAs of the bank to be realized are to be deducted, whereas DTAs which relate to temporary|
differences may be given limited recognition in CET1 capital (and hence be excluded from deduction
from CET]1 capital up to the specified threshold). In Hong Kong, an Al is required to deduct all DTAs
in full, irrespective of their origin, from CET1 capital. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as
reported in row 10 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount reported under the
column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 10 (i.e. the amount reported
under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amount of DTAs to be deducted which relate
to temporary differences to the extent not in excess of the 10% threshold set for DTAs arising from
temporary differences and the aggregate 15% threshold set for MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary
differences and significant investments in CET1 capital instruments issued by financial sector entities
(excluding those that are loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies) under|
Basel IIL
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EBE) (8)
(i) BERRCCT © 720236 530 H B (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2023
BERZHBR (R EX-RIBEESE (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EE) (&)
TERRATEE © (48) Notes to the Template: (Continued)
B (BEEFEHE=)
TE|IRAE Description Hong Kong FoxE
basis Basel I1I basis
NEEEGZATREIINISRZE BTN Insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
CETIEAZEBNIEEALACKE (GGBH10% instruments issued by financial sector entities that
18 P 8)) are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation . N
(amount above 10% threshold)
fiEfE Explanation
BETEN SR TS THCETIE R BN For the purpose of determining the total amount of insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
JEE RLACH S 444 » 30 A Mk EET R (it instruments issued by financial sector entities, an Al is required to aggregate any amount of loans,
T AT [ 4 B S B B 11 75 )\ B AT 8 facilities or other credit exposures provided by it to any of its connected companies, where the
FAMYERER - Rlomoh H (S F R R Iy &5t connected company is a financial sector entity, as if such loans, facilities or other credit exposures
FE o FRUTZ S AR - BloE s E (S R R were direct holdings, indirect holdings or synthetic holdings of the Al in the capital instruments of the
B AT E B BB AR A% financial sector entity, except where the Al demonstrates to the satisfaction of the MA that any such
SRR RS AT o M T AR A loan was made, any such facility was granted, or any such other credit exposure was incurred, in the
[ 4 e B B 8 S NI (o (S s AT R A ordinary course of the Al's business. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as reported in row 18 may|
B S 7R o /R U] 2 S 2 ~ R be greater than that required under Basel III. The amount reported under the column "Basel III basis"
S B B D [T T 3% S (= P R R in this box represents the amount reported in row 18 (i.e. the amount reported under the "Hong Kong
HIRR SN o I » 15551 81 TRT LR/ TR AT basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the
YEATREE A (EEMES) HIE IR Al's connected companies which were subject to deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
B o RSN T (CERGES) B
TH T DRESER Y SR s S S B Y A1 55 1 81T T D SRy
B (BT BB ) TH TSR EE)
AR %E 7 A S B bR BB BRI 777 TR 10
TR A R AN EIRY R - Bl e
5 F R bR S S5t 4EAE -
RIEEEGATRE NI SR ERBETH Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
CETIEAERNEKLACIEE (BH10%F9 instruments issued by financial sector entities that
19 (g8 are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - -

(amount above 10% threshold)

fre

FSERE R R E G A TRYCET LR A SRR
EARLACKELEE » sl At R AT
FEAA 3 2 Rl BT RR YA A B B AT B
FYEGEK ~ i s L (5 U b R HE Y St R
LA K Rl A (S P R BB B
R E R - MBS ARG A%
RIS RRHY R AT — i - MR TR RE [
B E B B R AN (0 S 4 T R A
BRI EMZE SR - #l e
R AR 05 R ATk T A (S R e A
BN o BRIEE > AR5 19TT R H TR B A
AREEE (EEMRE=) FUEAIIRNE
B FERRAR T (EIEMRE=) At H
T R SR ) BB R K R AR 55 191 T TR S 1
# (EME T &AL ) H MERIEED -
BT EE B R R A T H TR
Y AT R A R N B SR - Rl ECH A
15 PR R HE R At 4 -

Explanation

For the purpose of determining the total amount of significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities, an Al is required to aggregate any amount of loans,
facilities or other credit exposures provided by it to any of its connected companies, where the
connected company is a financial sector entity, as if such loans, facilities or other credit exposures
were direct holdings, indirect holdings or synthetic holdings of the Al in the capital instruments of the
financial sector entity, except where the Al demonstrates to the satisfaction of the MA that any such
loan was made, any such facility was granted, or any such other credit exposure was incurred, in the
ordinary course of the Al's business. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as reported in row 19 may
be greater than that required under Basel III. The amount reported under the column "Basel III basis"
in this box represents the amount reported in row 19 (i.e. the amount reported under the "Hong Kong|
basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the
Al's connected companies which were subject to deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EBE) (8)
(i) fERRCCL : FA20234E6 H30HERE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2023
BRZHE (R EX- (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
R E B SRS EEE) ()
FERRFEE ¢ (%) Notes to the Template: (Continued)
BBERE (EZ=EHE=)
TH|AE Description Hong Kong Foom
basis Basel 111 basis
RNEEEEASHEIMISHETERTH Insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital
ATIEAERBHIEE ALACKEE (BH10%9 instruments issued by financial sector entities that
39 |8 are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - -
(amount above 10% threshold)
R Explanation
BN EEAREBITEEGIEM TEERSEE The effect of treating loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies which are
BEEA B\ E AV E R ~ RluE s E A (S E S financial sector entities as CET1 capital instruments for the purpose of considering deductions to be
EIERBCETIEAERE (R CAMEREL made in calculating the capital base (see note re row 18 to the template above) will mean the
SITHIMTEE ) (EHIIRATEEE » e <A n headroom within the threshold available for the exemption from capital deduction of other
EATIE AEENH A IEE K LACIR EHIEA insignificant LAC investments in AT capital instruments may be smaller. Therefore, the amount to
ISR Es S PR 2 R W e A B/ - IR > 1 be deducted as reported in row 39 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
39T A TR EE e e = A (2 reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 39 (i.e.
EEWES) BEEHRITEGE « 1A the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of]
C(EZEREGES) B E NERAREES loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the Al's connected companies which were subject to
SRR 1T S 397 TR FE SR e (BIAE T Bk deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
FAE | T TIEHVEEE) o MR AR
TEB AN ITE T A TR rI A
N EIRER - RlE B A (S R R dE Ry
EratEE -
PEEEGAETE DN SRZEEB RN Insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
ZREAREBNIEEARLACKEE (BH10% instruments issued by financial sector entities that
54 |F9ER (AER) S%PE2#) are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - -

(amount above 10% threshold and, where
applicable, 5% threshold)

e

Rl et E A AT Z SRR 0t T E R
AR SRR ~ Rl B F
HRIEGRCETIE A S (R ESCARABAREE 18
TTHIMTEE ) ZHF IR 4E R - B &S mAT

B AR R HA I FEALACR BRI EA
HURETER R P I 2= I T RE S A A/ - (R

TEEE SATTRTHE A THIRAV BT e & =l (
CEERGE =) FUEALIRAVEE - FEAFEA
BT (EEERGE=) B4 ) H T ERAVEEH
RS RENIFE S ST RV (BE T &

AERE | T T RSV - HRIAER

BRAEZ AR 0705 T A TR I i A
AHEENTEIN SR - Bl s A (S R R i
FEET4EEE -

Explanation

The effect of treating loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies which are
financial sector entities as CET1 capital instruments for the purpose of considering deductions to be
made in calculating the capital base (see note re row 18 to the template above) will mean the
headroom within the threshold available for the exemption from capital deduction of other
insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital instruments may be smaller. Therefore, the amount to
be deducted as reported in row 54 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 54 (i.e.
the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of]
loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the Al's connected companies which were subject to
deduction under the Hong Kong approach.

i
ESTHR R 0% PR S%P G AR (5
ST B2 AR TR HIR 7 2B EHICET 15
KBRS - 1S%P R RS e
ZEGHHE (EEBHES) K (20107
1271 ) SERRERFTAL - $IE BTG E -

Remarks:

The amount of the 10% threshold and 5% threshold mentioned above is calculated based on the
amount of CET1 capital determined in accordance with the deduction methods set out in BCR|
Schedule 4F. The 15% threshold is referring to paragraph 88 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel
Committee (December 2010) and has no effect to the Hong Kong regime.
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BEAGERE LT RER (IRBEES
BEBE) (8)

(i) FERRCC2 - 722023412H31H
EERAREEARRIHR
CREE - IR E SRS

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(ii) Template CC2: Reconciliation of Regulatory Capital to Statement of Financial

Position as at 31 December 2023 (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

HRZ M B BRA
ZEEMBIRTR
Consolidated
Statement of Financial
Position as in

BETZ&EETIA
ZHBIRILR
Under regulatory scope
of consolidation -
Group's Statement of]|

S~

EfFERRCC1Z
R

Cross-
referenced to

dictosare statemend|___ Finanial Positon) TS
PABELRIL]  poyopserizfsi|
2023 As at 31 December 2023
HK$°000 HK$°000
B Assets
B & R i E 2k TE Cash and balances with banks 112,229 112,229
SRR ERAHR 2B I | oo Wi Danks matuing beween one 45,300 45,300
2 R R SR TE ;_;):gljni:d advances to customers and other 227,580 227,561
uﬁﬁ{g{g?fﬁﬂgﬁijgf/\ﬁ{még Investment securit.ies ?t fair value tthrough 199.003 199.003
G &S %% other comprehensive income ’ )
REEEGAEEMA B AT 2 |Investments in subsidiaries not consolidated ] 0
= for regulatory purposes
Yt > BEE N Property, plant and equipment 120,292 120,292
EYE Investment properties 305,600 305,600
HEFEEE Right-of-use assets 22,813 22,813
BeU Bl FREk Tax recoverable 85 51
BEGE Total assets 1,032,902 1,032,859
=0t Liabilities
% EIEE Deposits from customers 241,135 242,341
HEaE Lease liabilities 25,477 25,477
Hoth & (& R Other liabilities and provisions 41,350 41,364
KEAFRIHA & Current tax liabiliites - -
IR IERRTSFR Deferred tax liabilities 9,389 9,350
=0-v=v18 Total liabilities 317,351 318,532
R i 2 Shareholders' Equity
HUREA Paid-in share capital 310,000 310,000
HofdE FUR S MY  |of which:  share capital paid up in cash and
Yy e A A capitalized from realized 264,987 1)
N revaluation gains of properties
. N . - share capital capitalized from
%gﬁgg%@iiﬁm unrealizgd revalI:lation gains of 45,013 2)
S properties
HAYEE L Other properties revaluation resreve 1,855 1,855 (€))
g@;f%gi%i{jéﬁﬁ AFEfER Investments at FVOCI revaluation reserve 302 302 “)
L General reserve 610 610 5)
TR Regulatory reserve 1,800 1,800 (6)
BER AT Retained earnings 400,984 399,760 @)
HoffE FE gy  [of which:  unrealized revaluation gains of
S investment properties 270,164 ®
HA B 6B Mt Al other retained earnings and profits 129,596
RIS EET Total shareholders' equity 715,551 714,327
BEAEREERSEE Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,032,902 1,032,859
B &E Note:

¥EE20234E6 H30H » 20234F£12H31H
REEE A S S GBI R M 2 B

There are no material changes in the reconciliation between the composition of the regulatory capital
and the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023 when compared to that of

30 June 2023.
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BAGEHE AR EL(TBEES
EELE) (&)

(i) fERRCC2 * FA2023£FE6H30H
EEEAHEEAMER HR
(REFEZ-RBEEEGEERE)

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(i) Template CC2: Reconciliation of Regulatory Capital to Statement of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2023 (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

HRRZ B R B8
RNZEFEMBRR
x| BEETZ&ETE| EHIRCCL
Consolidated Statement| BBk E Z ¥
of Financial Position as Under regulatory Cross-
in published interim| scope of consolidation| referenced to
financial disclosure| - Group's Statement Template
statement| of Financial Position CC1
2023586 H30H 7202346 H30H
As at 30 June 2023 As at 30 June 2023
HK$°000 HK$°000
B Assets
[EFEI 4 B AFR R 2E00E Cash and balances with banks 146,694 146,694
_ . Placements with banks maturing between one
=1 EEEe A1 Z> |
SERR SRR E 12 A | 114,877 114,877
% ERCE R IR TE Loans and advances to customers and other 292,327 292,305
accounts
DIANE(EE R = H g Ehst AHAM4E  |Investment securities at fair value tthrough other

sz g o . 22,165 22,165
G2 A comprehensive income
R LT AN B AT 2  |Investments in subsidiaries not consolidated for 10
=4 regulatory purposes )

W > BEE R Property, plant and equipment 121,878 121,878
P e =C/ES Investment properties 306,000 306,000
A HEEE Right-of-use assets 24,238 24,238
BHEGE Total assets 1,028,179 1,028,167
=0 Liabilities
2 F{FEER Deposits from customers 245,062 246,370
HAh & (& LA Other liabilities and provisions 32,403 32,219
HEas Lease liabilities 26,512 26,512
AREAMTH AR Current tax liabilities 70 50
IRIEFRTEFT Deferred tax liabilities 9,222 9,222
=0 -t=v18 Total liabilities 313,269 314,373
R A A Shareholders' Equity
BFUTIEA Paid-in share capital 310,000 310,000
Hrp i FIHR STt e MY~ |of which:  share capital paid up in cash and

L E vl =N =Y/N capitalized from realized 264,987 a

ZREAR revaluation gains of properties

N . share capital capitalized from
AR 257 N
;ﬁz;szi?i;i;{aﬁ unrealized revaluation gains of 45,013 @)
T ~ properties

HA Y2 B L Other properties revaluation resreve 1,919 1,919 3)
DAASHE AR & H I EE A M 4R .

o o - Investments at FVOCI revaluation reserve 954 954 4
s R @
R General reserve 610 610 Q)]

ETE R Regulatory reserve 1,800 1,800 6)
Pooles s v Retained earnings 399,627 398,511 (@)
HoaE FHE LB YSEE L [of which:  unrealized revaluation gains of
| investment properties 270,564 ®
HAh B 6B FE Kt A other retained earnings and profits 127,947
AT Teaas Total shareholders' equity 714,910 713,794
AERERERSESET Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,028,179 1,028,167
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9 EBREBETRBERRBEESGSER)(

&)

(iii) 722023412531 H &20234F:6 H30H B
EEANTE Z TRERY RN Z
F2(CCA »

RERITHRAE

FRCCA = 2023%12H 31 H % 202346 H30H

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
(Continued)

(iii) The main features of the regulatory capital instruments (Table CCA) as at
31 December 2023 and 30 June 2023 are disclosed below:

Tai Sang Bank Limited

Table CCA: Main Features of Regulatory Capital Instruments as at 31

B RS TR December 2023 and 30 June 2023
P RAEFRITARATE
I
L3 ssuet Tai Sang Bank Limited
JE 75 i AR (40CUSIP ~ ISINZYBloomberg¥f Unique identifier (eg CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg identifier| . .
2 N, . K3 Not applicable
FLNBCE /YA E) for private placement)
3 | EBAVEREE Governing law(s) of the instrument R
Laws of Hong Kong
B P oA Regulatory treatment
4 (BEEHES) EEHar Transitional Basel I1I rules” /3] Not applicable
CETIER
R = = 7895 + _ s + =
5 (EEBRE=) BiEEIHHa] Post-transitional Basel III rules Common Equity Tier 1
6 w]Et AR SR/ EEE R R AL Eligible at solo*/group/group & solo LI R
Solo and Group
. L Instrument type (types to be specified by each IR
B R ) 3 SH e e . .
7 SRR (R ESHE A7) jurisdiction) Ordinary shares
g E%%‘%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ?%ﬁi;&%ﬁ n Ar.nc.)unt recognised in regula.tory capital (Currency in HKS265(E £)(Mn)
CLEREMEES PR RS HE) million, as of most recent reporting date)
9 |FEEHE Par value of instrument HKS$1
@l ok - ficati PR M A
10 |&5ta¥E Accounting classification :
Shareholders' equity
11 |8t HE Original date of issuance 1954, 1969, 1990, 2001, 2010
12 |k A% E AR Perpetual or dated HANE
Perpetual
N . . fmEHAH
HIE
13 JHETZIHAH Original maturity date No maturity
14 |JEIEEE E S Se b AR ry 21T A\ g ol Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval ;ﬂt
0
n[EEE N H ~ sCA T EELH 0 DA Optional call date, contingent call dates and . .
15 )& =R v redemption amount R Not applicable
16 %A AT HE R H (a0 H) Subsequent call dates, if applicable N7 FH Not applicable
=R A Coupons/dividends
17 EEOFEREE | EA Fixed or floating dividend/coupon IR,
- e Lo Floating dividend
18 ==y SR sy ek | it 4 Coupon rate and any related index i A Not applicable
19 12 1R I B ] Existence of a dividend stopper ;ﬂ;
. Fully discretaionary, partially discretionary or S
2 IR SE L S AR E , ol 1
0 EBEI ~ BRI > SR mandatory Fully discretaionary
21 B B R HAE RSN Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem I\j?;
22 JEREtE EET Noncumulative or cumulative 3{3;";45
- - Non-cumulative
N i
23 | efEfa s RN alE i Convertible or non-convertiable Tﬁ%]ﬁl
Non-convertible
24 5 nlEn o S If convertible, conversion trigger(s) 3 F Not applicable
25 ol - e E Sy If convertible, fully or partially R F Not applicable
26 e o R R R If convertible, conversion rate A7 F Not applicable
27 Z5 AT > e ] R A If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion R F Not applicable
e - e A If convertible, sepcify instrument type convertible . .
28 AT - fE IR A SRS into i Not applicable
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9

ERETRER(RBEESS

EBE) (8)

(iif) FECCA * 20234E125 31 H % 20234E6 5 30H

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

(Continued)

(ii1) Table CCA: Main Features of Regulatory Capital Instruments as at

BLOEEARER Y TR (E) 31 December 2023 and 30 June 2023 (Continued)
75 s > SRR AR Y 2 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it . .
29 TN converts into i Not applicable
. . it
30| kB 5 Bk Write-down feature N
o
31 FRE o B AR S EE If write-down, write-down trigger(s) K3 Not applicable
32 NG > e Ay If write-down, full or partial K FH Not applicable
33 EE o kA BRI M E If write-down, permanent or temporary R Not applicable
H B RE - SREAE R If temporary write-down, description of write-up . .
3 &%%U mechanism Z:}Eﬁﬁ Not appllcable
Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation
SER IR b I B (P o perarety ] \ ,
33 B SIS ) (specify instrument type immediately senior to ZRi#FH Not applicable
e I instrument)
36| EEHY R SRR B Non-compliant transitioned features I\i}t
o
37| R > FEEHR &R, If yes, specify non-compliant features K FH Not applicable

Footnote:

*

B R SERRO L R ELT IR AR IR ST 2E (B A B
W 22 4AHPIT R 8 22

+ EAEBNEERE AR ERTEERR
SIS R ANFT Y 38 22

o HREEESG G

# Regulatory treatment of capital instuments subject to transitional arrangements
provided for in Schedule 4H of the Banking (Capital) Rules

+ Regulatory treatment of capital instuments not subject to transitional arrangements
provided for in Schedule 4H of the Banking (Capital) Rules

* Include solo-consolidated

Full terms and conditions of the Bank's CET1 capital instruments are disclosed in the
website of the Bank.

HRAT 2 — SR
Z HAVE R -

KEA TR Z & EEI AR EAERAT

Countercyclical Capital Buffer Ratio (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

The details of the Bank's countercyclical capital buffer ratios as at 31
December 2023 and 30 June 2023 are disclosed in Template CCyB1 below:

2023412 A31 H 5202346 H30H $R17

BARLERGEE YRR T A RRCCYBLA

2 4% 1l

FERRCCYBL : 2023412431 H Z AR EH S EHE
Z(CCyB)HI{E F SR\ AR B B 3R o3 A7

Template CCyB1: Geographical Distribution of Credit Exposures Used in
Countercyclical Capital Buffer (""CCyB") as at 31 December 2023

F20234£12H31H
At 31 December 2023 (@ © (d) ©
TR I HEHICCyB
. EHAZHIE A CCyBLL g 4
HEEE IR S SR kel Frmme
Geographical breakdown by . - i Y CCyBH#H
. Applicable CCyB ratio in RWA used in Al-specific CCyB
Jurisdiction . R CCyB amount
effect computation of CCyB ratio
ratio
J) Y% HKS '000 % HKS '000
1 % # Hong Kong SAR 1.000% 222,320
4EET Total 222,320 1.000% 2,223
1202346 530H
At 30 June 2023 @ © (d ©
T EEE I HEHICCyB
. EHARHIER CCyBLE P S
DEEHE ERREERCG G e ST
Geographical breakdown by . - e Y CCyBR#H
o Applicable CCyB ratio in RWA used in Al-specific CCyB
Jurisdiction . R CCyB amount
effect computation of CCyB ratio
ratio
J) Y% HKS '000 % HKS '000
1 7 Hong Kong SAR 1.000% 285,863
4851 Total 285,863 1.000% 2,859
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PEARCCYBL : 20231231 HZ IR EHIEEE
Z%(CCyB) Hu{E A B A B A S8k 7 (8)

Brat:

DL FARE 202348212 H 31 H 202386 H30H
IR SR T4 S BUR P S th S A AR A AL -
A RIT RIS A E AT LA AR E E R by
AYEREET B R FE AR EE AL - $RATH2023
FF12H 31 B Z 2 P B4R L B AR & 7 EE A
[E > BB 1% HR 20234 T 240 & SRAT Bk B
s, HFE RIS B R Bk A T T B
bRtz g%, ARSRATIE F B & s o i TE A AR
ST 1 P P9 16 e o

11 FRARERZ B (IRBEE GO ERE)

LPUFFRASFIRIF 20234212 331 H 2 B R N3 IR
ZBGFE R E SRR LR E R IE S T B PhEm =

(BERRLRL) FejA2023412 H31 H KX 202349H30H
ZAERREEAREAR. (FEARLR) » A DAUHE T-70 R BT
B

(i) MEERLRL : 2023412831 A 2 @i L EEHEE
ERE AT BN LR E R E -
RBAESTFEERD)

Countercyclical Capital Buffer Ratio (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
(Continued)

Template CCyB1: Geographical Distribution of Credit Exposures Used in
Countercyclical Capital Buffer ("CCyB'") as at 31 December 2023
(Continued)

Note:

The above templates show the CCyB ratios of the Bank computed on the
consolidated basis as at 31 December 2023 and 30 June 2023. As the Bank
only operates and has private sector credit exposures in Hong Kong, the
overall countercyclical capital buffer ratio was the same as the jurisdiction
countercyclical capital buffer ratio of Hong Kong, that is. 1% as at 31
December 2023. The level of private sector credit exposures in Hong Kong
has decreased during the second half year of 2023 as a result of the smaller
loan book. Apart from this, there have been no material changes in the
geographical breakdown of the credit exposures of the Bank during the
current semi-annual reporting period.

Leverage Ratio Dislcosures (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

The tables below represent the summary comparison table for reconciling the
total consolidated assets of the Bank as stated in the financial statements as at
31 December 2023 to the leverage ratio exposure used in the computation of
the leverage ratio (Template LR1) and the leverage ratio template (Template
LR2) as at 31 December 2023 and 30 September 2023, presented in
HK$’000.

(i) Template LR1 : Summary Comparison of Accounting Assets
Against Leverage Ratio (""LR") as at 31 December 2023 (Unaudited -
on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

(@
AR RE R THVE
Value under the LR
EHH Item framework
EH000EE
HKS$'000 equivalent
. B Total consolidated assets as per published
fig (42 S B A
I |ES3AR B R A F kA4 & & A financial statements 1,032,902
. . . e A s e e Adjustment for investments in banking, financial,
saEstRIVREG R BEREs [0 e
N I I e ——— insurance or ~ commercial entities that are 10
ﬁi W B 7@;% s IR TR = consolidated for accounting purposes but outside
BT AR R 5 the scope of regulatory consolidation
R T A g HER N EEA R Adjustment for fiduciary assets recognised on the
3 FNHESY - BN BB AR LR E R i balance sheet pursuant to the operative
s EE NV Z(EEE M BRI HEL T accounting framework but excluded from the B
L leverage ratio exposure measure
4 VERECTAE Rt T E AR Adjustments for derivative contracts -
5 BRI HMER SRR (BRI 5 R Adjustment for SFTs (i.e. repos and similar
HAB R A IS ) secured lending)
e - N e Adjustment for off-balance sheet ("OBS") items
6 Egﬁi%&?ﬁ%ﬁi?ﬁgi {é;g?%%g\ (i.eJ. conversion to credit equivaleglt amot)mts of] -
RN PR IR RIS RS : OBS exposures)
N . Adjustment for specific and collective provisions
R S B R I ] B S 8 o T
6a gfg%%ﬁiiégiwFﬁ%sﬁ*ﬁg‘%%i&% that are allowed to be excluded from exposure -
RIS measure
7| HAtERE Other adjustments 8,189
EAELEREERIESTE Leverage ratio exposure measure 1,041,101
B3 Note:

AR Z s > SR LR AIRTT
FIRIN G E M BIRN R Z e BERERE
7E B DAE T RARAR LR 2 g R HE P 2 BRI
HIffERAEZRE -

There are no material changes in the summary comparison reconciling items
of the Bank's consolidated balance sheet assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position with the exposure measure for the calculation
of leverage ratio for the current semi-annual reporting period.
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(ii) BARLR2 : 20234E12 331 H ZEREELR(
REEE - IRIBE A AR

Leverage Ratio Dislcosures (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(i)

Template LR2 : Leverage Ratio ("LR'") as at 31 December 2023

(Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

(@) (b)
TEARELRER TR
Leverage ratio Leverage ratio
THH Item framework framework
#4000 1000
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
2023412H31H 202349H30H
31/12/2023 30/09/2023
& EEFE N EE&IE On-balance sheet exposures
HEAEENEERE CREERTE On-balance sheet exposures (excluding those arising
1 | TE&YEE845mER 5 (SFT)EAR from derivative contracts and SFTs, but including 1,041,101 1,028,845
RS AH AR ) collateral)
) HR ¢ B E — 4 & RIS BT LUR AT & EE Les.s: Asset amounts deducted in determining Tier 1 (318.832) (319,296)
#H capital
3 EEAERNERREGEE CREET Total on-balance sheet exposures (excluding A ——
A THAYKSFT) derivative contracts and SFTs) Z ’
APTAE T B &4 E A1 JE G & Exposures arising from derivative contracts
FrABLLTA T HE4FERVEERR AR ( Replacement cost associated with all derivatives
4 W AHE - RS ERINS SRS transactions (where applicable net of eligible cash - -
SR | BEEEIREEGEED) variation margin and/or bilateral netting)
5 P BT AE T B &4 BB IE R 2R Add-on amounts for PFE associated with all ] ]
B R B AN B I SEE derivatives contracts
BIFRRE T T S mAERE EA gt Gross-up for derivatives collateral provided where
6 |fEZMfrEEaEBRPHIERNLTE T B deducted from the balance sheet assets pursuant to the - -
P SR applicable accounting framework
7 U, ¢ BEETAE T E A4t IR &8 E) Less: Deductions of receivables assets for cash i ]
TREs B AV FEYLE 57 variation margin provided under derivatives contracts
g N tp oA BT R R e T B Less: Exempted CCP leg of client-cleared trade i )
FEEEAL S AR EER I 5 exposures
9 MR O EEHTE TEEYINA Adjusted effective notional amount of written credit i ]
A FREEH derivative contracts
0 HIR - e EERSTE T EESYIMESR Less: Adjusted effective notional offsets and add-on i )
SR A TR SN B M SR AR, deductions for written credit derivatives contracts
11 |£74E TR &S EA R E R RIELEER Total exposures arising from derivative contracts - -
FH SFTE 4 i JEl @ 2K 4 Exposures arising from SFTs
12 KPR SR % (FEAR TSR] Gross SFT assets (with no recognition of netting), ] ]
STET) WISFTEELEE after adjusting for sales accounting transactions
13 IR - SFTEEESEETHHINE(T B & BLE Less: Netted amounts of cash payables and cash ] ]
SR 5%E receivables of gross SFT assets
14 |SFTEERVE T 5 (5 F B la & IiE CCR exposure for SFT assets - R
15 [(RHEAE F) JE bR 1 Agent transaction exposures R -
16 | FHSFTEE 4= 1Y\ K YE 48 EH Total exposures arising from SFTs - -
HAth & 7 A EFRSNE R RIS Other off-balance sheet exposures
17 | EEAEFRINE G RIE LS BREsE s Off-balance sheet exposure at gross notional amount 5,100 107
FLURR « mhiEe By (5 S EEE B E AT Less: Adjustments for conversion to credit equivalent
18 - (4,590) (96)
2 amounts
19 | EEABEFRINEH Off-balance sheet items 510 11
BB, g K344 %E Capital and total exposures
20 [—8ER Tier 1 capital 395,494 394,198
20a %ﬁi%{%?ﬁ&;’éﬁ%%{%{ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ%% Total (.:xposure.s.before adjustments for specific and 722,779 709,560
1Y JE s K AR collective provisions
20b | B e AE G & B AR RS M S E A H Adjustments for specific and collective provisions - -
21 Bl B e N RS e B E R Total exposures after adjustments for specific and S 209.560
1Y JE g K AR collective provisions J ,
FEFREEZR Leverage ratio
22 [fEEE |Leverage ratio 54.72%| 55.56%
et - AHEE20234FE9H 30H ¢ jiA20234E12 531 H Z#812EE Note: The decrease of leverage ratio as at 31 December 2023 from that of 30

SR T - WY E BN B SIS 2
GREMTIRT RSB - BT ERR R
IR BT -
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September 2023 was predominantly due to the higher level of leverage ratio
exposure measure, which was resulted from an increase in the level of
customers' deposits, making a larger consolidated statement of financial

position.
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Liquidity Disclosures

U]

Table LIQA Liquidity Risk Management

Governance of Liquidity Risk Management

The Bank has a low liquidity risk tolerance and ensures that funds
are always available to meet obligations fully as they come due,
particularly for customers’ deposits which should be fully covered
by highly liquid treasury funds.

The Board of Directors assumes the ultimate authority in the
approving the liquidity management policy of the Bank. Day-to-day
management of the Bank's liquidity position is delegated to senior
management, whose operation is closely monitored by ALCO.
Internal liquidity position reporting is prepared by the Bank's
accounting department and reported to senior management on a
daily basis and to ALCO at every ALCO meeting. Internal trigger
limits are set for the effective monitoring of the liquidity position.
Upon review by ALCO of the liquidity positions, it assesses in light
of prevailing market condition, if the Bank's liquidity management
strategy or guidelines are required to be amended.

The Liquidity Risk Management Policy of the Bank as approved by
the Board and liquidity management strategy as determined by
ALCO from time to time are communicated to relevant operational
departments within the Bank during periodic meetings held among
the departments and senior management.

Funding Strategy

While efforts have been made to promote depositors' loyalty to
maintain funding stability from customers' deposits, bank
management constantly reviews market situation and explores
suitable funding sources such as term depository products and
establishing correspondent banking relationships with other
financial institutions, both locally and overseas, with an aim to
provide reciprocal funding arrangements or standby funding lines.

Liquidity Risk Mitigation

To mitigate its liquidity risk, the Bank maintains an adequate level
of overnight interbank funds. It also aims to maintain an adequate
cushion of high quality liquid assets.

Stress Testing on Liquidity Risk

Stress testing on liquidity positions are performed on a quarterly
basis and presented to ALCO for review. The liquidity stress testing
exercise includes scenarios covering an institution-specific crisis
scenario for the Bank and a general market crisis scenario. ALCO
examines the liquidity stress testing results to decide if the minimum
number of days necessary for the Bank to arrange emergency
funding support is satisfactory to the needs of the Bank and
formulate the necessary strategies to address the cash flow needs
reflected from the scenario analysis. ALCO also determines if the
mix of the Bank's holding in liquefiable assets has to be adjusted
based on the outcome of the stress testing.
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Liquidity Disclosures (Continued)

@

(i

Table LIQA Liquidity Risk Management (Continued)

Contingency Funding Plan

Upon the awareness of liquidity crisis concerns, emergency ALCO and
Board meetings would be called to decide on the ways that the Bank's
liquidity position can be improved, including, but not limited to the
following possible means: cancellation of undrawn customers' overdrafts
facilities, calling back of customers' overdrafts / loans outstanding,
availability of un-used interbank funds that could be utilized,
negotiating with major depositors for increasing their deposits with the
Bank, pledging of appropriate assets of the Bank for funding facilities,
convincing major shareholders to place deposits with the Bank or
making additional capital injection. Prompt decisions are to be made by
ALCO and the Board. Contingency funding drills are carried out
periodically to test the availability of funds available for the Bank.

Maturity Profile of Balance Sheet

The maturity profile of the items in the balance sheet of the Group as at
31 December 2023 has been disclosed in note 3.3.1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As the Bank is designated as a Category 2 institution for liquidity
monitoring purposes, Template LIQ1 on liquidity coverage ratio and
Template LIQ2 on net stable funding ratio are not required to be
disclosed.

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures

@

Table CRA General Information about Credit Risk

The Bank is stringent in accepting credit customers and would only deal
with customers whose background and financial conditions are known
to our management. Tangible securities and/or strong guarantors to
support credit facilities are insisted. This has given rise to a high quality
credit portfolio with decades of zero loan loss.

The credit approval, review and monitoring functions are delegated by
the Board to Credit Committee. Granting of new credits and renewals of
existing credit are guided by Credit Policy as approved by the Board.
The credit initiation and review process involve the Credit Officer who
is responsible for information gathering, analysis and report preparation.
New credits are subject to prior compliance clearance before the loan or
credit limit would be made available to borrowers. Credit risk
management and administration are examined by Internal Auditors once
a year, with results reported to Audit Committee.

Credit Policy is reviewed annually, or more frequently as changes in
regulatory or business environment necessitate a policy change.
Revisions to Policy require concurrence of the Credit Committee and
approval of the Board before taking effect. Policy limits are established
upon referencing the regulatory requirements, market practice and our
own risk tolerance.

Weekly meetings are held among senior management to review the
performance of each existing credit exposure and new credit
applications. Members of Credit Committee meet monthly to examine
the overall portfolio, market trend and compliance-related issues.
Information on connected exposures, as approved by Credit Committee
members who are not connected parties, are provided to Board members
at each Board meeting.
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Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(i) THERCR] - EeRIEZ(EH (ii) Template CR1: Credit Quality of Exposures
B5&
@ | ® (©) ) I @) ® @)
Hep : ZSTCRHEAE THERKE
R ARATMEHBERERELK| X4 : HIRB
MU B Z SR GRS BHAEETHIR
Gross carrying amounts Or which ECL accounting R A IBR1E
of provisions for credit losses on STC | # R M EHHY
approach exposures FEHIE AR
PR/ AR A GiERS FE
BEERT | JERmpy | Alowances | smpeemn | 4R gEgy) | OF Which ECL| Netvalues
BRI | RpoRy | mpairments | ppeempme | gympmepge | Accounting
Defaulted Non- Allocated in Allocated in pl‘O\.’lSIOIlS for
credit losses on
exposures defaulted regulatory regulatory
IRB approach
exposures category of category of
specific provision collective exposures
provision
720234128 31H 12\(:2a3t 31 December | yxs000 | HKs'000 | HKs'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 | HKs'000
[ 1 [ees Toans 1 222320 i : 1 222320
| 2 |m#sm%  Debtsecurities 4 177,553 -| -| | 177,553
B A (EsR  Off-balance sheet
| 3 SNERENE  exposures - 5,100 - - - 5,100
| 4 Jast Total 1 404973 | | 1 404973
@ | ® ©) () I ©) (0 @
o BSTCHHRHE TR A&
FIfs R EMEHHIREERES -
TR 2 R WS o ;‘é o
Gross carrying amounts Or which ECL accounting " F EEL
of provisions for credit losses on STC WA RROME
approach exposures Eé&ﬂ_ﬁ{’ﬁﬂjﬂ‘]
FHYME Rk
PSR A T EREe HME
Allowances Or which ECL | Net values
BRI | RN | impairments | Sy TR EER] | S NEAEMER | accounting
FREE |HERRE KRGS | HOMASdEfES | provisions for
Defaulted Non- Allocated in Allocated in | credit losses on
exposures | defaulted regulatory regulatory IRB approach
exposures category of category of exposures
specific provision collective
provision
#320234E6 530H As at 30 June 2023 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
IEEES Loans - 285,863 - - - 4 285863
I 2 |{§f§§§§‘# Debt securities -| -| - .| .| -I .|
B Es  Off-balance sheet
| > |obmpRiE  exposures ] 408 ] ‘ ‘ ] 408
[ 4 et Total | 286271 . . . | 286.271]
Tk EEE20234F12H31H F2023 Note: There was a decrease in the level of loans of the Group between the positions as at 31
Pfak: SRER P p

F6H30H M 2 BFOK BT
TR « 120234E 1231 HIFH
B B E BN INER
SEBZIE - EEF20234F
12731 H K2023F6 H30H
FTE {8 R R 5 R R B
B AR

December 2023 and 30 June 2023. The debt securities held as at 31 December 2023 were
investments in Hong Kong Government exchange fund bills. All credit exposures of the
Group as at both 31 December 2023 and 30 June 2023 were non-defaulted exposures.
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(iii) fEERCR2 : BEETREHSH 2N (iii) Template CR2: Changes in Defaulted Loans and Debt Securities
-3
(a)
B
Amount
20234128315 As at 31 December 2023 HKS$'000
! A E— (RS R B T SR R (B E5 Defaulted loans and debt securities at end of the previous reporting
SHER period -
| ) | Ay 5 R K R (T S I];;):igz and debt securities that have defaulted since the last reporting i
| 3 |$§;|E]§§3 BB IR |Returned to non-defaulted status | -|
| 4 |ness | Amounts written off | ]
| 5 |E@%§ﬂ |Other changes | _|
6 NERITH &S B R B R B IGse 54 Defaulted loans and debt securities at end of the current reporting
BR period -
(@)
B
Amount
12023468308 As at 30 June 2023 HKS$'000
{ A E— (SR BT SR R (B E5 Defaulted loans and debt securities at end of the previous reporting
GEER period -
| ) | Ay 55 B K R (T S rI;;):ir;Z and debt securities that have defaulted since the last reporting i
| 3 |$§;@§3E§:§;{jﬁjﬁ |Returned to non-defaulted status | -|
| 4 |giese [ Amounts written off | -|
| 5 LE\:@%@J |Other changes | _|
6 RIRTH S B R BT Bk R BI04 Defaulted loans and debt securities at end of the current reporting
iz period N
fifsE: 72023412531 H 202386 H30H Note: Our Bank does not have any defaulted loans and debt securities as at 31
s RERITIG A To] SR RE BT TBE R 2 December 2023 and 30 June 2023.
B RS S ©
(iv) FECRB: RN EGRIBEHEEREZSE (iv) Table CRB: Additional Disclosure Related to Credit Quality of Exposures
HMNEER
s EE 2 (ERECEE3EE - Exposures are considered by the Group to be past due when repayments are
WEESHEET - B E R RE overdue by 3 months. Impaired exposures are those of which the discounted
Jh¥ae% DL A IS FRIERER 2 future cash flows using the original effective interest rate are lower than their
AR 4R B R IR AR IR A R existing carrying values. Impairment is considered when there is objective
B2 BERE - SR BT EET evidence of the happening of the following events, including, but not limited to:
LUF Tl i EHA RS Z HIA SR A
B E W -
- EEEBEEAMBEE - significant financial difficulty of the borrower;
- FIEEARSE (TR EE - default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
4
- EEREEE MR > - the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's
4 |- By SRR 45 E7d financial difficulty, grants to the borrower a concession that the Bank
O L BOAEM &S T ERK ty, g
E—(ERTNEM S T A e would not otherwise consider; or
BEZESL K
- EEEIETTREN: ESETHAM - it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
{EY&EL - financial reorganization.
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(iv) RCRB : BREERIERSRERZSIMNEE(E)

(\))

Gat AR B EE AR b2 B b AR R it
R AR HE 2 SE A -

E A R yE Y B G G T — M LR K
EREEE Z R RIE - Bl BRER R/
SRS HATE R -

R AR IERY20234E 12 H31 H 5 20234E 12 H31H LA
HrERIEIE - 173 RRIEREIH H Z 3 e s lIER
ARG BHR IS 1. 11(a) » M5
3.1.11(b) RefffaE3. 3. 14 »

7A20234E12 531 H 20224125 31 HEBE T
o] LR EL A - AE R BRI - B LYK
PE R E A AR -

FRCRC © BHFIEASS R BB S A L 5% 28

RS2 VA YIS M L E R T E
A i o SRS 2 RO (S E R D E U
RIEEEHZZH > SN EEEER TR
BEEH - CHTEEZ EhEsRNEHFHE
7 DA GRS A 1H 2 SRR LT i (B (E EE R AE iRy

732023512 A 31 HY)3E848 ) _Eiies IR 2
By R R 210,337, 81477 K s
11,982,0167C » M EERIF W K LiAFE
BB N SEAEE 55 Bl R #8503, 000, 000 7T bz kg
16,094 ,7897C » AEWIEAYIE T - (FTYE
(G Y REEE 2 12. 5% » TG Y E A EST.
5% o FTATE FREEESRIRIT 2 Fsstg L
& FiEgs

FEEAMOHEBEARRN KINZ BFAIE -

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

@iv)

(\)

115

Table CRB: Additional Disclosure Related to Credit Quality of
Exposures (Continued)

There are no differences between the definitions of past due
exposures and defaulted exposures for accounting purposes and those
for regulatory purposes.

Restructured exposures are those exposures that the Group has
granted concession in its repayment, such as, a longer repayment
period and/or lower installment amounts, when compared to the
original exposures.

The breakdown of exposures by geographical areas, industry and
residual maturity as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are
given in Note 3.1.11 (a), Note 3.1.11(b) and Note 3.3.1 of the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

The Group does not have any impaired exposures, past due
exposures, defaulted exposures nor restructured exposures as at 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

Table CRC: Qualitative Disclosures Related to Credit Risk
Mitigation

The Group accepts first legal property mortgages and listed securities
as collateral for secured loans. Updated valuation of properties under
mortgages are obtained at least annually for credit review purposes or
when changes to the credit facility lines are proposed. Listed
securities pledged to the Group are revalued on a daily basis to ensure
the prudent loan-to-security value ratios have been preserved.

The carrying amounts of loans secured by mortgaged properties and
listed securities amounted to HK$210,337,814 and HK$11,982,016,
while the fair value of these mortgaged properties and shares in listed
companies were HK$503,000 and HK$16,094,789 respectively as at
31 December 2023. Of the total mortgaged properties, residential
properties accounted for 12.5% of the total value of such properties
while commercial properties were 87.5% of total mortgaged
properties. All listed securities pledged to the Group as loan
collaterals were blue-chip listed equities.

The Group does not net its on- and off-balance sheet exposures.
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(vi) PBERRCR3 : BB RTR(EAS A EUBS A TS B8

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(vi) Template CR3: Overview of Recognized Credit Risk Mitigation

(@)

(b1 (b (d ®
PsEE{EH
DASERTEH | ISR ERRME | fT4ETAE
EEAFERK| FRERREZ | (FREZER | REZERR | OEREZ
¥ REEEE & R & BB AR
Exposures | Exposures to be Exposures Exposures Exposures
unsecured: secured secured by secured by ssecured by
carrying recognized recognized recognized
amount collateral guarantees credit
derivative
contracts
#2023512H31H As at 31 December 2023 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
[ 1 e |Loans 222,320 ] ] ; ;
| 2 |mwmes | Debt securities | 177,553 . . ] ]
| 3 |ast | Total | 399,873 . . g 8
| 4 |mimmmsy |of which defaulted | | | | | |
(@) (b1) (b) ) )
e e
DR | SRR ME | fTETRSE
EAEERR| FREERZR | FREZER | REBZERR | EREZ
& - PRIEBEE & R & B\ R Y
Exposures | Exposures to be Exposures Exposures Exposures
unsecured: secured secured by secured by ssecured by
carrying recognized recognized recognized
amount collateral guarantees credit
derivative
contracts
1202365308 As at 30 June 2023 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
[ 1 e |Loans 285,863 - - -
| 2 |{§i‘%§§%’:—% |Debt securities | -| _| _| _| _|
| 3 |esst | Totat | 285,863 . . ] ]
| 4 |mepasms |of which defaulted | | | | .| .
Bt Note:

FELA_ERRRRCR3A (2) FIFTER &1 2023512 3 31 H
F2202356 H30H 2 &8 SR BiE )y Ryse = A BA

FEE2 A {5 B b B i AR 2 &K

(EtEttes

JoE BN 31T 2 SR N A 5 5% -

All loan amounts reported in Column (a) in Template CR3 above as at 31
December 2023 and 30 June 2023 are fully secured by collaterals other than
recognized Credit Risk Mitigation. Debt securities represent exchange fund
bills issued by the Hong Kong government which are unsecured.

116



13 RS BIR RS AR I = (5 A B (&)

(vii) fERRCR4 * {5 AR AR SE BB AT BB AE

PR\ 8 i~ #—BSCat B

Mitigation - for BSC Approach

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(vii) Template CR4: Credit Risk Exposures and Effects of Recognized Credit Risk

@ | o © 1 @ @ | ®
R CCF Bz 5845 FH U B It | 26 C CF B R P o | e Ao B I\ Bk R
HEEAZ ERASE HEERZ ERERRE R
Exposures pre-CCF and pre- | Exposures post-CCF and post-| RWA and RWA density
CRM CRM
HEAER | HEARR | FEARR | BERER |ERRER | EimEs
N8 SN NEEE A Ve #H HEE
On-balance Off-balance On-balance Off-balance RWA RWA density
#20234£12H31 H As at 31 December 2023 sheet amount | sheet amount | sheet amount | sheet amount
JE AR EE R Exposure classes HK$'000
IR Sovereign exposures 184,954| i 184,954| i 17,755 9.60%
| 2 |Q}%${ﬁﬁwﬁ7¥@% |PSE exposures | -| -| -| -| -| 0400%|
3 %R Es R TR K Multilateral development bank ) ) B _ - 0.00%
& exposures .00%
| 4 |sermpmme | Bank exposures | 147,619| -l 147,619| -l 29,524| 20.00%|
| 5 |mema | Cash items | 2,509] -l 2,509] -l -l 0.00%|
N e Exposures in respect of
U\Ejﬁg%ﬁﬁﬁ/ijuﬁ failed delivery on
6 HOIP AL THIZE TS transactions entered into on - - - - - 0.00%
N § e N
g%ﬂﬁlﬁﬁ/ﬂiﬂ’]ﬁ&z " a basis other than a deliver-
- versus -payment basis
| 7 |senmex |Residential mortgage loans | 25,247| 4,682| 25,247| -| 25,247 100.00%|
| 8 |eampiris |Other exposures | 680,772 413 680,772 | 680,772 100.00%)|
9 G SR R B A Significant exposures to ) ) ) B _ 0.00%
R HE commercial entities .00%
| 10 et | Total | 14,101 51000 1,041,101 | 753,298 72.36%)|
@ | o © | @ @ | ®
R CCF B BB A5 P B 8 | K C CF BORRALE A5 R B T | PRk A S e JE e o
SRR B AR SEENZ BRI HRE
Exposures pre-CCF and pre- | Exposures post-CCF and post-| RWA and RWA density
CRM CRM
BEAMR | EEAER | EEAMR | BEAGR |ERITER| B
B SMNEUEE NEEE SN #H HEE
On-balance Off-balance On-balance Off-balance RWA RWA density
7220236 H30H As at 30 June 2023 sheet amount | sheet amount | sheet amount | sheet amount
JE AR SR Exposure classes HKS$'000
| 1 |EHEREEEE Sovereign exposures 5,774| -| 5,774| -| - 0.00%
| 2 |L}%${EJ§W§‘§7¥G}§ |PSE exposures I -| -| -| -| -| 0.00%|
; YR EEFRRTT R R Multilateral development bank ) ) ) ) _ 0.00%
i exposures ue
| 4 |smpermsmis |Bank exposures | 252,426 - 252,426 -| 50,485 20.00%|
| 5 |meme | Cash items | 3,371 - 3,371 -| | 0.00%)|
Sy LI T Exposures in respect of
E’\]ﬁ;%i’éﬁﬂ’;;%i failed delivery on
6 ’ . e transactions entered into on - - - - - 0.00%
ggﬁiﬁﬁ’%%@wy% a basis other than a deliver-
= versus -payment basis
| 7 |eemmen |Residential mortgage loans | 88,057 151 88,057 g 88,057 100.00%|
| 8 |rmmme |Other exposures | 686,272| 257 686,272| | 686,270| 100.00%|
P SR Y B R Significant exposures to ) ) ) _ _ 0.00%
B o commercial entities -00%
| 10 |emst | Total | 1,035,900] 408]  1,035900| | 824812 79.62%|
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(vii) ERRCRA © {5 P EUBE AR I8 Rt TS P VR

2 S8 —BSCETEVA ()

bt

1202345 T4 - BWEARRNZBERE
ARIESAIEIN - B - A E R RIEER 2
sl &34 TE(E - 120234125311 »
HEE WA E T ERERER 2 S NER S
S - ST RS ERORIE R
AT TR -

FR20234E12H 31 H ZHHE0K-PF 2 BER R
WETIHEETORE SR A ERAE P
HEER - WEEREERIBEATT R #R
ZSERAET | NPT E & ZAE YR (F AT
ZERRIETL

AEEERZ B IIREEEE E 202346 H30H
AT TR - ERHN2023F12H31HNZ
B EREBAREAES 2 KF o RERE
R IR % 10%2 (5 R IEE - AHEET IR TR
BRI R BB b R 73 IR 209%A1100%.2 (5
FE b R - B DI AR & (£ 2023
FOH30HZT79.62% NFEZE2023F12H31HZ
72.36% °

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(vii) Template CR4: Credit Risk Exposures and Effects of Recognized

Credit Risk Mitigation - for BSC Approach (Continued)

Note :

Overall on-balance sheet exposures have only slightly increased
during the second half of 2023. However, the mix between the
different exposure classes has changed. More funds have been placed
with sovereign via investment in exchange fund bills. On the other
hand, lower level of residential mortgage loans and interbank
placements as at 31 December 2023 are noted.

The lower level of on-balance sheet residential mortgage loans for 31
December 2023 was resulted from the repayment of loans by
customer during the current half year. Residential mortgage loans in
the above templates include loans and overdrafts secured by
residential property mortgages, as defined by the completion
instruction of the Capital Adequacy Return.

The RWA of the Group as at year end has decreased from 30 June
2023. This was directly resulted from the higher level of sovereign
exposures for 31 December 2023 which attracted at most 10% credit
risk weighting which was lower than the credit risk weighting of bank
and loan exposures of 20% and 100% respectively. RWA density has
decreased from 79.62% as at 30 June 2023 to 72.36% as at 31
December 2023.
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Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(viii) PERRCRS | HEEEFIAEEEEEE] (viii) Template CR5: Credit Risk Exposures by Asset Classes and by Risk
SrE9{E AR B AR & —BSCETBA Weights - for BSC Approach
12023512531 H As at 31 December 2023 @ ® © @ © ® © (h) Q)
ESA2E Risk Weight R R
(BB CCF IR &
B AR R
0% 10% 20% 35% 50% 100% 250% Hepth EW)
Others Total credit risk|
exposures amount
(post CCF and post
CRM)
JE SRR FExposure class HKS '000
[ 1 |ermeremmss |Sovereign exposures 7401 | 177,553 | - - - | - | 184,954
| 2 |ovmsipm s | PSE exposures | - - i 1 ] i 1 ] ]
3 |wmasmmrmma Multilateral development bank } ) ) i i i i i )
exposures
| 4 |sRermlsmis | Bank exposures | | | 147619 | | -l -| | | 147,619 |
| 5 |m4EE | Cash items | 2,509 | | | | | | | | 2,509 |
PLESREH SR =0LISN Exposures in respect of failed
6 L R EETTHIRE H3E delivery on transactions entered
NP R: g a:) v into on a basis other than a . B -
% delivery-versus-payment basis
| 7 Iﬁ:%}‘i?{%%%’( IResidential mortgage loans | —I —| —| | | 25,247 | —| —I 25,247 I
| 8 |3titmpmis |Other exposures | -1 -| -l | | 680,772 | -l -l 680,772 |
9 PGS E RS E AR Significant exposures to
oz commercial entities B B . . B B B B -
| 10 szt | Total | 9910 | 177553 | 147619 | 1 706019 | . | 1,041,101 |
#20234E6H30H As at 30 June 2023 @ (b) (© (d) (© ® (® (h) @
EBSHEE Risk Weight B R REE
(B#CCF B BAE
SR ERERTE
0% 10% 20% 35% 50% 100% 250% it EW)
Others Total credit risk|
exposures amount|
(post CCF and post
CRM)
JE SR EE B Exposure class HKS '000
| 1 | B EREm s R ISovereign exposures 5,774 I —| -| -| -I | .I .I 5,774
| 2 |ovestrmpm s [PSE exposures | i - 1 1 ] | 1 ] ]
| 3 |%§é§§$ﬁﬁﬁ\l§ﬁ7¥(’f§ Multilateral development bank | _| _| _| _| | _| _| _| »l
exposures
| 4 |seirmuszis | Bank exposures | - | 25242 | - i i i i 252,426 |
| 5 IiﬁﬁIﬁﬁ ICash items | 3,371 I —| -| -| -| .| .| .I 3,371 I
PUESREM S LISN Exposures in respect of failed
6 T TN 58 delivery on transactions entered
{26 BB Y B K into on a basis other than a : : ° ° ° B - - -
% delivery-versus-payment basis
| 7 Iﬁi%ﬁ%%?ﬂ IResidential mortgage loans | -I -| -| -| -| 88,057 | -| -I 88,057 I
| 8 |Hftm bR |Other exposures | -l | -l -l | 686272 | -l -l 686,272 |
9 P E RN E AR Significant exposures to
i commercial entities ; B ) . B B B -
[ 10 Jemst | Total | 9,145 | -l 252,426 | | 4 774329 | -| -| 1,035,900 |

WEE: B ERE AR 20234E 127 31 Hi22023
FEOF0HEEE BT BRHINEE S NESE
BEB KPR - HEHERIEER10% -
S—J7H > 5202356 H30HE - 1T ERR
& RS R AR YE 2 AR BT T

e FEERI 2 A EE WA SNE
B IRAL -

Note: Sovereign exposures as at 31 December 2023 showed a significant
increase from 30 June 2023, resulting from a higher level of investment in
exchange fund bills which are attracting a 10% credit risk weighting. On
the other hand, the level of bank exposures and residential mortgage loans
have decreased from 30 June 2023. The funds released from such asets
have been applied mainly to the investment in exchange fund bills.
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R IRRBBASRTTRE Y Z AR - JEB B E H AR
BUR

SRITRRA Z AR B ( “SRITIRAIR AR )55k
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MEREREE - MERGEAEEEERERINA
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EEC T (rEE R AR TIRA R E
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FECOBREE) FOFFEUA CHFHEUA) Z & -
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TR &M H RRA R TT A2 B = AH R
b S T o S I DB E RN R R
TR EE FOF AR ANE R B 2 Mt (8 Ry 2
BEmdmbl > W EREART BEEAEZ RS
e LIRS T %2 R Rl R

TP BI 1 R B S R T R ST IR T 2
R SR » SR T A e R AR
SR -

() Sl (6 o [ R
L SRR B R R S
W T T R A
] R S0 P s B ST IE R e
SR R -

EEHZ BEEN - RERZERE PR
(0] Jlg o % FE\ B ] 4 S 1 K A A
(0] Z EAET RN AR » SREIBY LT T 2 FEE S
EABURT BRI Z e R I EERIEE &

(&)

(M)

(17) SEEDERAEFIRER AR EHIE Y
TAGEAS A 22 WLV 2 B

BERME BB -

Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book

@
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Table IRRBBA Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book - Risk
Management and Objectives and Policies

Interest rate risk in the banking book ("IRRBB") is defined as the risk
of loss to the Group due to possible changes in the level of interest
rates impacting interest rates sensitive assets and liabilities and off-
balance sheet items in the banking book of the Group.

The Group has established a Board approved policy on the risk
governance management of IRRBB. The subject policy refers to
elements of IRRBB management framework as advocated in the
Supervisory Policy Manual IR-1 "Interest Rate Risk in the Banking
Book" issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. The monitoring
of IRRBB of the Group is delegated by the Board to the Risk
Committee, ALCO and senior management of the Bank. With Risk
Committee overseeing the overall risk management framework of the
Group, ALCO concentrates on direct monitoring of IRRBB via its
reviews of periodic reports submitted by management on IRRBB
impact and gives necessary instructions on the Group's level and type
of interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities for the controlling of
IRRBB of the Group. ALCO also conducts regular reviews of interest
rate trends, risk profile and stress testing results.

Risk appetite in IRRBB has been thoroughly considered by the Board
when approving the Group's IRRBB policy. The risk appetite has been
reflected in the risk limits established by the Group and duly
documented in the IRRBB policy. Such risk limits serve as the basis
for on-going monitoring of the impact of possible future interest rate
changes on the economic value of equity ("EVE") and net interest
income ("NII").

With the current structure of the Group's HKD interest rate sensitive
position being more than 95% of the total interest rate sensitive
position in all currencies, the monitoring of IRRBB is effected through
the compilation and review of related risk reports on the HKD interest
rate sensitive positions as at the end of each calendar month. Such
reports are compiled based on the same scenarios for the EVE and NII
impact analysis as the regulatory returns and are submitted to ALCO at
its monthly meeting for review and discussion.

In the measurement of IRRBB for both internal monitoring and
regulatory reporting purposes, the Group relies on the following
assumptions and characteristics of its interest rate position profile:

(a) The Group does not provide any fixed rate retail loans.

(b) The non-maturity deposits of the Group, including current and
savings deposits, are assumed to continue into the foreseeable
future. The earliest repricing date of such deposits is used to
determine the impact of IRRBB on the Group.

(c) The retail time deposits of the Group are normally subject to early
redemption risk by the deposit customers. However, such risk is
mitigated by a material penalty applied on time deposits for pre-
maturity redemptions. The historical pattern of the Group in this
regard reflects a very insignificant early withdrawal rate on retail
time deposits.

(d) The Group assesses the impact on earnings under the earnings
perspective approach, based on the two standard interest rate
shock scenarios while assuming a constant balance sheet.
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Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book (Continued)

U]

(i)

Table IRRBBA Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book - Risk Management
and Objectives and Policies (Continued)

The Group also conducts periodic stress-tests on IRRBB for the measurement of
its vulnerability to loss resulted from its interest rate positions under stressed
market conditions. The results of the stress-tests performed are reviewed by
ALCO, which gives specific instructions on the composition and level of
interest rate positions when it sees fit.

The overall risk management framework on IRRBB is subject to periodic
reviews and audits conducted by the internal compliance unit and the internal
auditors of the Group.

Template IRRBB1 Quantitative Information on Interest Rate Risk in
Banking Book

The table below provides information on the adverse change in the economic
value of equity ("EVE") and also the adverse change in net interest income
("NII") over the next 12 months under each of the prescribed interest rate shock
scenarios in respect of the Group's interest rate exposures arising from its
banking book position for the current annual reporting date as at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022.

GE%000) (in HK$'000) (a) (c)
F R T T TR
EE Item ABRERREME | A RS EE A BRI BIRA ABFBBA
Adverse impact Adverse impact Adverse impact Adverse impact
A EVE AEVE ANII ANII
HiRE Period 2023412318 20224£12H31H 20234212 H31H 20224£12H31H
31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022 31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
1 AT Parallel up 32 - - -
2 NESIEED Parallel down 191 613 5,060 4,991
3 s fE R} Steepener - -
4 [ Flattener 1,724 1,812
5 FaR T Short rate up 1,644 1,616
6 MR TE Short rate down - -
7| B Maximum 1,724 1,812 4,991 4,991
. 20234125318 202242124 31R

Hifd Period 31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022

8 —IREAR Tier 1 capital 395,494 390,524

SRR R B SR R R

MR GFIRANFIRER TR

AT

U ST I L BRI — (B P
LT

2 BT T TR A — B VTR
KRR

3 MR TR T RIIFI 7

4 W AR LT R T

SRR e
ST E R R ) BRI

6 SR T RIS AT I R TR -
SRR BT SRR il

RELLED T Z &R - HTE TEEERE S
B Z S AT R R Z AR - HIEEZ
SRS T TFE31.64%( 20224 AT T
% 51.55%) © o7 > SEEEE RS
HAEOR B ERREAANEE > GaKPz—
PEAREEHO0.44%( 20224 0.46%) ZJk/D -

The prescribed interest rate shock scenarios are provided by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority in their Supervisory Policy Manual IR-1 "Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book" and are described as follows:

Parallel up: A constant parallel shock up across all time buckets
Parallel down: A constant parallel shock down across all time buckets

Steepener: Short rates down and long rates up
Flattener: Short rates up and long rates down

Short rate up: Rates up are greatest at shortest time bucket and diminish towards
current rates in longer time buckets

Short rate down: Rates down are greatest at shortest time bucket and diminish
towards current rates in longer time buckets

Based on the results of the above analysis, the parallel down shock scenario
would result in the most significant adverse impact on the Group's net interest
income, i.e. a 31.64% (2022: parallel down shock 51.55%) decrease in the
Group's NII. On the other hand, the flattener scenario would cause the largest
adverse impact on economic value of equity, which would lead to 0.44% (2022:
0.46%) decrease in the Tier 1 Capital at the consolidated level.
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Disclosure on Remuneration

(i) FRIEREMA FEH&EIBEEE (i) Table REMA Remuneration Policy
7&%&' THEIE—6 F DL B E i T —H = The Bank establishes a Remuneration Policy which governs the set up of a
@ K HREIE 8 T 73 e BRI 3t Remuneration Committee and formulates the principles of remuneration
Pﬁ){ﬁ)’(ﬁ T SRR E R E determination for its staff. The Remuneration Policy of the Bank promotes
—EfH @BAfﬁl TG EME > FMEEE an overall scheme of remuneration that matches the Bank's business
FE R B\ TR A > T MR ST - objectives, risk tolerance and risk management framework.
EEHFMZEE ZHKREZE R EFETE The composition and responsibility of the Group's Remuneration
T B A 18 B EE STRE N B » 20234F Committee has been set out in note 5 of the Supplementary Financial
128 31 HIFEERT ST 22 e o 357 Information. During its two meetings held in the year ended 31 December
T2 B el AT > SFm s R 2023, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved the annual
TET*RRDT&ﬁtjfnyf?r—}Z&’_:f%J:‘( 5 remuneration to be paid to the Bank's senior management (being those
BB/ B4 s DL FAR A R TR holding position as Deputy/Assistant General Manager or above) and key
T ORISR TR 1 A BT B personnel (being heads of key functions as stipulated in Fourteenth
TR £ ) RN 0 T B e RE Schedule of the Banking Ordinance) in accordance to the Bank's
KRATHINECE > GG » 2B iR Remuneration Policy and Board instructions. It also approved the annual
SR PR s N - e review of the Bank's Remuneration Policy where minor changes were
FE T B SR R R 2T 2 Hhre R s made. The basis of determining the annual emolument adjustment payable
B ER TR SR HE R T EE by the Bank to its senior management and key personnel is by reference to
T ERESREE - HIt - AERRE Board approved benchmark based on public sector indicators in this area.
LS Y BT AR s ﬁﬁ fsgE Accordingly, employees who are responsible for risk control functions are
if%ﬂﬂ’ﬂgﬁ%ﬁ PRT Z{I%J%%JT/T\ remunerated independently of the businesses they oversee. No individual
:J;EEQ B4 o director of the Bank will be involved in decisions relating to his/her own
bl remuneration.
FA2023F 12331 HIEFEE N » S T45%7 The total fees paid to the members of Remuneration Committee during the
Bl == & ek & 2 445 4 B 1,200,000 year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to HKS$1,200,000 (2022:
TT(20224F + #iE1,200,0007T) » 7EAH HK$1,200,000) which were paid for their overall workloads and
S L T Ry R HE 2 SR o commitment to the Board as a whole.
(if) FERKREM1 FERA BB NS T HYETHN (ii) Template REM1 Remuneraiton Awarded During Financial Year
12023412H31H At 31 December 2023 (2) (b)
B om p
| RIS B (30 Rt EAT
Remuneration amount and quantitative information Key personnel
management
2 B T._A % Number of employees 3 6
— HAEE R - Ho:
#7fM Fixed remuneration Lo h S ik
3 PLEREBCER) . 3,613,140 3,772,882
Total fixed remuneration of which:
cash-based (HK$)
4 4EZEEN Total remuneration 3,613,140 3,772,882
1R20224E12H31H At 31 December 2022 () (b)
Brom A
1 HBICE B (30 el FAT
Remuneration amount and quantitative information Key personnel
management
2 B T A% Number of employees 4 5
— HAMEE R o Ho:
& E #HHl Fixed remuneration Lo S
3 B REBECER) 4 3,088,145 4,162,216
Total fixed remuneration of which:
cash-based (HK$)
4 4EE5 Total remuneration 3,088,145 4,162,216
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(i) HERRREM1 FERABUAEREISE T HI%TEN ()

Bfat:
EHRGETHSREHEBRTIEE THE
e SORAE EEHT o SEEN AL
EREHE R TEE TG - I &
BT B G H T B8 > nT )
A o FA20234E12 H 31 H 1k 2 FEE 522022
FEDRANHIEZFERN - EEIEME T
RUBWEHRE S NBOR VG TR EHE
KT HEE T 7 BB B i 2 R e
B

FR20235F12H 31 HIEEERN - S EHE
NEBUR D THNBLL N E B 2 B0
MHEE » AEAREE SR E G EITRE -
A > B N B AT 4
B N B2 EEFHMA R - 55— 5
C IR EER T Z AAEE) - #ZE20234F
12A31HIEERE > EHE T ABARTEI
o A EEE B T2 EEHMAIART
T EFRHENEE2023F12H31H IR
RN ER IR ] 3% 5 £ B L BRIy 22
o

(iii) FEPRREM?2 : 45 RI1F2x

22023412 A 31 H IR 520224412 H 31
HIEFREA - BN UHTES
IR EAL (T m s E T N £ 2 A
T RIIE - AR A BRI AR REM24F 5]
30 > RIELEARAGIRARE » A0SR LR
et - A e BT AEeS -

(iv) HERRREM3 JRIEHBH

22023412 A 31 H IR 2022412 H 31
HIEEREAT - 52 B ] 2 A e - B
HEElHg Rk EEHAT - HIt > Ak
A AEL A HRREM3 MR A - PRIEL SRR L
FEARR > WANRELEER AR - A &R
TR

16 HFERER - Er BRI R K H SRR

HERHRR

$RITIN20234E 12 H 31 H 1k 2 FEFE T i 22 BT
MILTETHER S » BHEMER DB HER S
s JREETEIN AR — SIS S - HILE
KT E A B (5 F R S s B R R B R
¥ PRI o % E I B AR
HYR A GREERELER -

SRATHE R S 1 5 T 5 B N ' 2 > TR
a0 T 55 R s R A5

Disclosure on Remuneration (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Template REM1 Remuneraiton Awarded During Financial Year
(Continued)

Note:

The Group only provides fixed remuneration to its senior management
and key personnel in the form of salary and allowance in cash. No
variable remuneration, whether in the form of cash, shares and share-
linked instruments and other instruments, has been provided by the
Group to its senior management and key personnel. There were no
deferred remuneration nor retained remuneration, whether vested or
unvested, awarded, in the form of payment or reduction through
performance adjustments, to the Group's senior management and key
personnel during both the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022.

The decrease in the number of employees for senior management in the
year ended 31 December 2023 was due to the fact that senior
management of the Group was more stable during this year when
compared to the previous year when there were more personnel changes.
However, the level of fixed remuneration paid to these staff has
increased as a result of salary adjustment to such personnel. On the other
hand, the number of employees for key personnel has increased in the
year ended 31 December 2023 owing to the staff change in this category.
The level of fixed remuneration paid to such key personnel has decreased
mainly due to vacancy among such key personnel during part of the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Template REM2 Special Payments

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the
Group did not have any new sign-ons, severance payments or guaranteed
bonuses awarded to its senior management and key personnel. It has
therefore not included disclosure Template REM2 on special payments,
which is considered not to be relevant and would carry nil balances in
such template if published.

Template REM3 Deferred Remuneration

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the
Group did not have any outstanding deferred remuneration not pay out
any deferred remuneration in any forms for its senior management and
key personnel. It has therefore not included disclosure Template REM3
on deferred remuneration, which is considered not to be relevant and
would carry nil balances in such temple if published.

Disclosure Templates on Counterparty Credit Risk,
Securitization Exposures and Market Risk

The Bank does not engage in any derivative transactions, securities financing
transactions or securitization transactions as at and during the year ended 31
December 2023 nor has plan to engage in such transactions in the coming year,
and has therefore not included any disclosure templates on counterparty credit
risk and securitization exposures, which are considered not to be relevant and
would carry nil balances on such templates if published.

The Bank has been exempted from the calculation of risk weighted assets for
market risk and accordingly has been exempted from disclosing templates on
market risk.
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Capital Charge for Credit, Market and Operational Risks

The capital ratio in note 3.5 to the financial statements represents the
consolidated ratio of the position of the Bank for regulatory purposes as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 computed in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules.

The capital requirements for each class of exposures are summarised as
follows :

@

(i)

(iii)

Capital charge for credit risk

BARTR

Capital requirement

2023 2022

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

Sovereign exposures 1,420 790

Bank exposures 2,362 2,781

Residential mortgage loans 2,020 7,021
Other exposures which are not past

due exposures 54,462 55,197
Total capital charge for on-balance

sheet exposures 60,264 65,789

Direct credit substitutes - -

Trade-related contingencies - -
Total capital charge for off-balance

sheet exposures - -

Total capital charge for credit risk 60,264 65,789

The Bank uses the Basic Approach for calculating credit risk. This
disclosure is made by multiplying the Bank's risk-weighted amount
derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the Bank's
actual “regulatory capital”.

Capital charge for operational risk

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$°000
Capital charge for operational risk 4,352 3,589

The Bank uses the Basic Indicator Approach for -calculating
operational risk.

Market risk capital charge

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$°000

Market risk capital charge - -

The Bank was granted by the HKMA an exemption from the
calculation of market risk under the exemption criteria under section
22(1) of the Banking (Capital) Rules on 22 March 2016 and has
excluded market risk in the calculation of capital ratio since then and
as at 31 December 2023.
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Disclosure on Fair Value Practices on Financial Instruments for CA-S-
10 Guideline issued by the HKMA

The Group holds listed equity investments measured at FVOCI which are
subject to fair value measurement as stipulated in the CA-S-10 Guideline
issued by the HKMA. The valuation technique used by the Group to
value the subject listed equity investments measured at FVOCI has been
set out in note 3.4 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
while the sensitivity analysis of such investments are detailed in note
3.2.1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group uses prices quoted at the stock exchanges for each of the listed
equity investments measured at FVOCI to mark the investments to their
fair values on periodic basis. The fair value measurement and calculation
process is performed by a department independent of the risk taking unit
and is subject to stringent controls supervised by senior management of
the Group. The fair values of the listed equity investments measured at
FVOCIT are reviewed regularly by senior management and the Board.

Climate Risk Management

Following to the issuance of Supervisory Policy Manual GS-1 “Climate
Risk Management” by the HKMA in December 2021, banks are required
to disclose climate-related information that addresses the financial risks
and opportunities posed by climate change.

Climate risk is broadly classified into physical risk and transition risk.
Physical risk refers to the impact of climate and weather-related events
and long-term progressive shifts of climate that impact directly on the
Group through events like property damage and reduced productivity.
Transition risk refers to the financial risk that results from the process of
adjustment towards a lower-carbon economy which may include changes
in climate policy of governments, technologies advancements or changes
in the market sentiment.

With regard to climate risk, the Group has put in place a Climate Risk
Management Policy which was approved by the Board in October 2022.
The Board has the ultimate responsibility for the Group’s climate risk
management and resilience. Risk Committee has been delegated with the
prime responsibility for overseeing the development and implementation
of climate risk policy and strategy while the Executive Committee ensures
adequate resources, systems and controls are in place to support the
implementation of the climate risk strategy. Other parties that take part in
the day-to-day management of climate risk include the compliance
function, heads of various departments and the internal audit function.

The Group commits to the following strategies adopted for its
management of climate risk:

- to integrate climate risk considerations into its strategic planning
process;

- to ensure that climate risks are identified, measured, monitored,
reported and controlled through active Board and management
oversight, adequate policies, procedures and limits, efficient
management information systems and comprehensive audits;

- to keep abreast of the latest standards and development on climate
risk and adopts industry recommendations on the subject; and

- to promote staff awareness on carbon neutrality and the carbon
footprint of the Group’s operation and adopts practices, products
and equipment that are environmental friendly.
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Climate Risk Management (Continued)

The Group has identified that the lending portfolio, the investment
portfolio and the business operations to be the three channels that are
prone to potential impacts of climate-related risks. The assessment of
these channels further identified the following potential impacts:

(i) Credit risk — credit risk of the Group’s lending portfolio will be
affected via the widening of borrowers’ credit premium and
lowering of the value of loan collaterals due to climate-related
damages or policy changes

(i) Market risk — investment securities and investment properties held
will be affected through price fluctuations;

(iii) Operational risk — operations of the Group will be subject to the risk
of business disruption, costs associated with property repairs and
compliance with new rules; and

(iv) Reputation risk — poor management of climate risk will adversely
affect the reputation of the Group.

At the initial stage, simple metrics are planned to be adopted by the
Group to periodically measure and report climate risks. Examples of such
metrics include the amount of loans exposed to climate sensitive sectors,
the amount of loans with collaterals exposed to climate risk,
environmental risk rating of the equity investments made by the Group,
are adopted by the Group to measure climate risks, the Group’s properties
held and its operation location by geographic segments and the number of
incident events and loss related to climate risk. Periodic stress-tests on
financial impacts are to be performed on severe but plausible scenarios of
physical risk cases where climate changes result in business disruption to
the Bank’s operations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI SANG BANK LIMITED
( Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability )

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Tai Sang Bank Limited (the “Bank™) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 8 to 78,
which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code™), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
directors’ report and supplementary financial information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI SANG BANK LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability )

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS
Certified Public Accountants

HONG KONG, 25 March 2024
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